Public Comment
SIGN IN SHEET
February 2, 2016 ~ ~ ~ 6:00 PM

The Public Comment Seszions at this meeting is limited to & total of 40 minutes, & minutes per pecsen, Please be
advized that citizens not utilizing their full four [4] minutes may not “donate” their remaining Gee to another speaker.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
QCONEE COUNTY, 8C

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: _Fchruary (2. 2016
COUNCIL MEETING TIME: G:00 P

| ITEM TITLE [Bricf Statement]: _ i
Annual Avdit Presentation of Financial and Compliance Results for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015; David
Irwin, CPA - Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LIC

| BACKGROUND DESCRITTION:
This presentation includes a review of perlinend mallers relatsd o Coones County's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and the Independent Auvditor’s Report and required communications o County Couneil.

| SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS OR CONCERNS [only if applicable]: i |

Monc

| FINANCIAL IMPACT [Bricf Statement]: |

.// Check Here iF Itemn Previvusly approved in the Budaet, Mo additicnal information required

l_ Approved by : MVF Finance — -|

COMPLETE THIS FPORTION FOR ALL GRANT REQUESTS:
Are Matching Funds Availahle: Yes / MNo
[f wies, whio iz matching &nd how much:

|. Approved by Girants

| ATTACHMENTS Uk §
Annual Andit Agenda Presentation of Financial and Compliance Audit Results, June 30, 2015
By: David [rwin, CPA - Mauldin & Jenkins, Cerified Public Aceountants, LLOC

| STAFF RECOMMENDATION [Brief Statement|: i

Staff Recommendation: Accept the Comprehensive Finaneial Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015,

Submitted or Prepared Hy: Approved for Submittal to Council:

Department Heand Elected Official T. Scott Moulder, County Administratar

Conenicdd fias divected thar they recefve thetr agenda peckages o week prior fo each Conncil imecting, therafore, Agenda
Itermy Searaeriss maest Be sabwitted o the Adminivtraior for s reviewdappreovael no fotee e 12 davs prier ro each
Cosineil sreetings It iv the Depariment Head 7 Elected Qfficials responsibility to ensare thal wlf approvels are obiedned
privr te submizsion to the Administrator for inclasion on on agenda.

A ealendar with due dovey muarked may be olifadred from e Olerk to Canneil,



AULDIN
& | ENKINS

To the Members of the Oconee County Council
Walhalla, South Carglina

In planning and performing our audil of Lhe financial slzlements of Oconee Cownly, Saoth
Caraling fLthe "Counly") as of and Tor the year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance wilh zuditing
standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of america, we considered Lhe County's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) a5 a Dasis for designing aur avdiling
procedures for the purpose of expressing osur opinion on the Fnancial statements, but nat for
the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the County's Internal control,
accordingly, we do not express an cpinion on the effectivensss of the County’s internal contrel,

However, during our audit we became awzare of several matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiercy. This letter includes comments and
supgrestions with respect to matters that camea to our attention in connection wilh our audil of
the financial statements of the County as of and for the vear enced lune 20, 20015, This letler
daes nat affect our report dated Decemoer B, 2015, an the financial statements of the Caunly,

The following items are offered as constructive suggestions to be cansicered part of the
ongeing process of modifving and improving the County's practices and pracedures,

1) Grant Accounting Structure and Cross-training

During our audit of the County's grant programs, we noted that the County
personnel with direct responsibility for Federal and State grant activity were nat
direcily supervisad by the Administrative Services Department. Sased on the
predominantly financial nature of grant administration and  accounting, we
recommend that the County assipn the associaled respensibilites of grant
administration  to  County  employees within  the  Administrative  Services
department, while maintaining an appropriate level of cross training, so as 10
strengthen inkernal controls in order to Tester open lines of communication, as well
as camplimant the reparting znd reconciliation aspecls of grant accounting and
administratian.

i RLUNTREN SNREET. SUTUE 300 « FOST OFFICE B0 1577 » MACON, GEORGIA 31 202-1877 + 4754510000 » FAN TT-0-805 7 « wavw, myjcmcons
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2) Schools and Roads Grants to States Program

During our audit of the County’s grant programs, we noted that the County did not
have a 45 day public comment period prior to spending the Federal Title Il funds
and did not submit a proposal to any resource advisory committee established
under 16 USC 7125 prior to using the Federal Title lll funds as outlined in the grant
award. We recommend the County strengthen internal controls related to grant
compliance so as to ensure that the requirements set forth in the grant award
requiring a 45 day public comment period prior to the use of Federal Title 11l funds
as well as the requirement to submit a proposal to a resource advisory committee
in a timely manner prior to the use of Federal Title Ill funds are appropriately
followed.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the County Council of Oconee
County, South Carolina, its management and other officials, federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve Oconee County, South Carolina and would be happy to
assist you in addressing and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter.

o éﬁ/,«(m/ XLe

Macon, Georgia
December 8, 2015

Y

AULDIN
ENKINS
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Oconee County
South Carolina

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
Financial & Compliance Audit Results
June 30, 2015

Presented by:
David lrwin, CPA

AULDIN
& | ENKINS




Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis {ADSA)
lune 30, 2015

PURPOSE OF ANNUAL AUDITOR'S DISCUSSION 8 AMALYSIS

& Engagement Team and Firm Information.

¢ Overview of:
o Audit Opinion;

o Financial Statements, Footnotes and Supplementary
Information;

o Compliance Reports;

o Audit Scopes & Procedures.

¢ Required Communications under Government Auditing Standards.

¢ Accounting Recommendations and Related Matiers.

¢ Other [tems and Closing Thoughts

¢ Answer Questions.

Cerlilied Public Acconnbmis

o

=1
Eotahfiahed V77

Mauldin & Jenkims, LLT Page 1



Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

MAULDIN & JENKINS -~ GOVERNMENTAL PRACTICE

General Information:

s  Fgunded in “1920.
=  Large regianal firm serving the Soulheastern United States,
= Offices located in Macon, Atlanta, Albany, Bradenlan, Chattanaoga, and Birmingham.

= Approximately 260 persannel are employved at Mauldin & Jenkins.

Governmental Sector:

s Largast specific industry niche served by Firm representing 25% of Firm practice.

o Serve more governmental entities in Southeast than any other certified public
accounting firm, requiring over 63,000 hours of service on an annual hasiz.

e Approximately 90 profassicnal staff persans with current gavernmental experience,
s I opast theee [3) years, have served appros. 200 governments ino e Southeast,
including:
v 75 cities;
400 caunties;

o
v A0 schoo! systems and 20 charter schools;
¥ 40 state entities;

o

S0 special purpose entities [stand-alone entities: water/sewer, fransit, gas
electric, airports, housing, development, cthes educationzl, retirement, libraries,
etc.); and,

* Included in the above are T8 povernments receiving the GROA's Certificate of
Achievemant tor Excellencs in Financial Reparling.

#  Experiance performing forensic audil scrvices and information technology consuitations,

s Liperience perfarming municipal bond debt issuance attestation services serving clients
with over 58.7 billion in aggrepate publicly issued debt instruments,

s 10" highest level af Single Audits conducted in U.S.A. approximating S8.0 billian
arrialiy.

Engagement team leaders on the audit enpagement include:

s David Inwin, Engagement Partner — 12 vears experience service gavernments

#  Miller Edwards, Concurring Reviawsar — 25 yaars expericnod semving governmaonts

Mauldin & fenkins, LLC Page 2



Oconee County
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)

June 30, 2015

MAULDIN & JENKINS — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Other Industries & Services by Mauldin & Jenkins:

Each of Mazuldin & Jenkins” offices provides 2 wida variety of services to a broad range of
clientele. We have partners and managers whe are responsible for specialized practice areas af
auditing and accounting, taxes and management advisory services. Their purposs, as leaders in
the particular practice zrea, s to establish policies with respact to technical matters in these
specific areas and ensure that the quality of the Firm's practics is maintained,

Industries Served: COwver the years our partners have developed expertise in certain industries
represenlative of & cross section of the Southeastern economy, including:

Governmental Entities [state entities,
cities, counties, schoal systems,
businazs type cperations, libraries, and
other special purposs entities)

SEC Registrants

Wholesale Distribution
AEri-Businessey

mManufacturing

Professional Services

Employee Benefit Plans

Financial Institutions (cammunity banks,
savings & loans, thrifts, credit unions,
moriEsEs companies, and finance
compani=s)

MNon-Frofit Organizations

Retzil Gusinesses

Long-Llerm Heallhozre

Construction & Deweloprmanl
Individuzls, Estates and Trusts

Real Estate Maragement

Services Provided: This diversity of practice enzhles our persannel to experience a wide variety

of business, accounting and tax situations

SEMvices su ch as:

Financizl Audit / Review / Compilation
Campliance Audits & Single Audits
Agreed-Upon Frocedurcs
Farensic Audits

Bond Issuance Services
Ferfarmance Audits

State Sales Tax Matters
Interrational Tax Matters
Business & Strategle Flanning
Profitability Consulling

Gudgeting

Buy-5ell Agreemants & Business
Valuation lssues

Maguwldin & lenkins, LLC

We provide the traditional and not-so-traditional

Incame Tax Planning & Preparaticn
Fulti-5kate Income Tax [ssues
Information Systems Consulting

Cost Accounting Analysis

Healthcare Cost Reimbursement
Dulszcurced Billing Services

Fizad Aszel rvenlories

Luccession & Exit Strategy Consulling
Estate Planning

FManagerment Information Systems
Employves Benefit Plar Administraticn
MWorger S Acguisition & Expansion
Financirg

Poge 3



Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The independent auditor’s report has specific significance to readers of Lhe financial rapart.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The financial statements are the responsibility of maragement.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Dur responsibility, as external auditars, is to express apin‘ons on these financial staiements
basad on our audit, We conductad cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepled in the United States of Amerca and the standards applicable to firancial audits
contained in Government Auditing Stoodords, issued by the Complroller General of the Unitad
States, We planned and perfarmed aur audit to obtain reasorable assurance abaut whether
the firancial statements are free from material misstatement.

Opinions

We have issued an unmadified zudit report fi.e., “clean opinians™). The respective financial
statements are considered to aresent fzirly the financial position and resulls of cperaticns as
of, and far the year ended lune 30, 2015,

Emphasis of Matter

The tinancial statements reflect the implementation of certain new pronouncements, and our
apinion(s] isfare not modiffed with respect to them.

Other Matters

Cerlain reguired supplementary information and ather infarmation is included in the financial
repart, and as directed by relevant auditing standards, we have nol expressed an apinion ar
provided any assurance an the respective information,

Dther Reparting

Government Auditing Stondords require auditors to issus a report an aur consideration of
internal cantral over financlal reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulalions, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. We
have issued suck a report and reference Lo this report is included in the independant
auditor’s report.

fWawldin & Jenkins, LLC Page 4



Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

REVIEW OF COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

General Information about the CAFR

& Comprebensive Annual Financial Repart (CAFR) goes bevond Lhe normal financizl reporting
reguired by accounting principles zenerally zccepted in the United States. & CAFR includes at a
minimum the following elements/sections:

& |ntroductory  Sectlon: general information on the County's
structure and Lhe services il provides,

»  Letter of Transmittal

* Oreganizztional Chast

®  Directory of Officials

* Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reparting

® Financial Section: hasic financial statements, fooinoies and
required supplementary intormation along with the auditor's
report,

= |ndependent Auditor's Repart
*  panagement Discussion & Analysis (MDEA)
* Financial Statements and Footnotes

& Ltatistical Section: broad range of financial, demographic
information useful in assessing Lhe County's econamic condition,
and this information covers multiple yvezars.

= Financial Trends InformmaLlion
®  Rpvenue Capacity Infarmation
= [ebt Capacity Infarmation

= Dperating Information

A CAFR goes far beyond the basic requirements of annuzl financial reporting, and the County
shauld be commended for going beyand the minimum arnd providing such a report,

Recopmnition and Award

Dnece completed, the fiscal vear 2014 CAFR was submitted to the Government Finance Officers
Assaciation (GF3A) for determinaticn IF the reporl would meril the GFOX's Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reparting. We are happy Lo inform everyone Lhat the
GFOA did indeed review the CAFR and awarded the County with the soughl alter Cerlificate.

The GFOA Ceortificate has been made a parl of tha County's 2015 fiscal year CAFR, and s
included in the Introductory Secticn.

Mouldin & fenkins, LLC Page 5



Oconee County

Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (ADEA)
June 30, 2015

The finarcial statements as presenled Lo you today include the basic financial statements as
will a8 Managemenl's Discussion and Anzlysis as prepared by County management.

The County's hasic financial statements include threc components: (1) government-wide
financial statemants; |2) fund tinancia! statements; and (3] noles to tha financial statements,

The government-wide financial statements orovide a broad averview of all of the County's
funds. The Stotement of Net Position presents infarmation on all assets and labilities of the
County, with the difference hetween the two reported as net position. The Stalement of
Activities presents information showing how the Counly’s nel position changed during the mast
recent fiscal year. HKevenues are caleporized as program revenues or gansral revenues,
Expenses are categorized by function.

Tne fund fimancial statements more ciosely resemble the financial statements as presented
prior to the adoption of GA5E Statement Mo, 34, Al of the funds of the County can be divided
inta three calagories: governmenlal Tunds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary Tunds.

General Fund

Of primary interest to the Counly is the General Fund, which accounts for the majority of
revenues received and funds expended in the operations of the County, including
administration, judicial activities, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and
caommunity service, The following charts present the sources of revenues and the expenditures
af the General Fund for the Nscal vear ended June 30, 2015:

Maouidin & Jenkins, LLC Page &
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Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

‘General Fund Revenues - June 30, 2015
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Oconee County

Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

Total fund balance of the General Fund at June 30, 2015, was a positive 521,433 470, Fund
balance does not necessarily egual cash on hand and availsble to spend. Fund bajance is the
gifference between assels and liabilities, anly a portion of which is cash available to be spent.
While the General Fund has cash and cash equivalents on hand at Jure 30, 2015, of
513,420,565, the General Fund also has $2,264.561 In currenl liabilities due to outside parties
and employees. The County's General Fund also has at June 30, 2015, deferred inflows of
resources totaling approximately 51.0 million in unearned/unavailable revenues. Addilionally,
the General Fund incurs axpenditures of approximately 53.4 milllon per manth.

The following is 3 history of the total encing fund balance of the General Fund over the past five
{5} years:

General Fund - Fund Balance History

24,000,000
25,172,051

-y

5,000,000 oy T L RRRFL]

74,000,000 -

22,000,000

22,132,984
22,000,000 o

21,000,000

20,400,000

19,000,000

Other Gavernmental Funds

The County also maintains twelse (120 special revenue funds (Emergency Services Proleclion
District, Sheriff's Wickim  Assistance, Miscellangous Special Revenue, Solicilor’s  Victim
Assistance, 911, Stale Accommodations Tax, Local Accommadations Tax, Library State Aid, Tri
Counly Tech, Duke Energy Grant, Road Maintenancse, and NS5 Title W Child aupport Fundsi,
three 43) capital projects Tunds [Capilal Projects, Econaomic Develaoment and Bridse and Culvert
Capilal Projects Funds] and 2 debl service fund. These funds account for revenuas derived fram
specific sources which are legally restricted Lo finance particular functions ar activities.

fowldin & Jenking, LLC Page 8
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Oconee County

Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (ADEA]
June 30, 2015

Enterprise Funds

The County maintaing two enterprise funds which are used o zccount for cperations in a
manner similar e private business enterprises —where the intent is Lhatl the costs of providing
the poods or services Lo Lhe general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. These include the FOCLS Fund and the Rock Quarry Fund.

Both of the County's enterprise funds generated revenues sufficient to cover the costs of
aperations for the year endod June 30, 2015 a5 reflected in the following graph,

" Enterprise Fund Operating
Revenues vs Operating Expenses

4,500,000
4,000,000
3,500,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2 000,000

2,120,812

1,500,000
1,000,000

200,000 =
.

FOCUS Rock Quarry

Fiduciary Funds

The Caunly maintains the following agency funds — School Gistrict of Goonee County (SDOC)
General Fund, SD0OC Debt Retirerment, Firerman’s nsurance znd Inspection, Municipal Tasx,
Keowes Key Fire District, Delinquent Tax, Sheriff's Office, Clerk of Court, Family Cauort,
Magistrate Funds, Probate Court, Register of Deeds, Soficitor’'s Worthless Check Program,
Kelisee  Health  Beimbursement, cmployee  Health Flexible  Spending,  Pickers  County,
Willizrnsburg County, and Community Develapment — which are wsed to account for the
callection and disbursement of funds by the County on hehalf of other governments and
individuals,

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC Poge 8



Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 34, 2015

COMPLIANCE REPORTS

Last, bul nol least, bwo (2] reports on compliznca and intamal controls ara included.

The first report s based on our tests of the County's intermal cantrols and compliance with
laws, regulations, etc, The report is not intended to provides an opinion, but to provide a farm
of negative assurance as to the County's intermal contrels and compliance with applicable rules
and regulations. This reporl and the procedures parformed zre required by Government
Audifing Standards as issued by the L1 5 Gavernmeant Accountahility Office (GAD],

The second repart is based on our tests of the County's internal controls and compliance with
laws, regulations, etc. relative to the federal award expenditures reparted for the fiscal year
ended as required by the Single Audit Act ard the U, 5, Office of Managemenl & Budget (OME)
Circulzr 8-133, In this repaorl we do provide zn opinion an campliance that could have a direct
and materizl effect on the County's major federal program for the respective year anded,

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

The Auditor's Responsibility Under Government Auditing Standards
and Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America

Qur audit of the financial statements of Ocanes County, South Carolina (the "County™) tor the
vezr ended Jupe 30, 2015 was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America and Sovernmen! Aoditinog Stangards issued by tha
Comptroller General of the United States. Those slzndards require we plan and perform the
sudit to obtain reasorable assurance zbout whether the financial statements are free af
materizl misstatement, whether caused by error, fraudulent  financial reporting or
misagpropriation of assets. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made oy management, as well as
evaluziing the overall financial statement presentation. Accordingly, the audil was designed to
ahtzin reasanable, rather than absolute, assurance about the financial statements. We belisve
aur audit accomplishes that abjective.

I. In acoordance with Gaoveroment Auditing Standards, we have also perfarmec tests of
controls and compliance with laws and regulations that contribute to the evidence
supparting our apinicn an the financial statements. However, they do nat provide a basis
far opining on the County's internal control or compliance with laws and regulations.

Aecaunting Policies

MManzgameant has the ultimate responsihility tor the aopropriatensss af the accounting palicies
used by the County. There are several new accounting standards which will be reguired to be
implemanted in the coming years, These are discussed later in this document,

Mowldin & Jenkins, LLC Page 10



Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Anolysis (ADEA)
lune 30, 2015

in considering the gualitative aspecls of the County’s accounting palicies, we did not identify
any signilicant or unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. The County's
policies refative to the timing of recording of fransactions are consistent with GAAP and typical
government organizations.

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial slatements and are
based upen management's current judgmentl. The process used by manzgement sncompasses
their knowledge and experience sbout past and current events and certain assumptions about
future events. Management has informed us they used all the relevant facts available to them
at the time to make the best judgments about accounting estimates and we considared this
infarmation in the scape of cur audic. We considered this information and the qualitative
aspects of management’s calculations in evalualing the County's significanl zccounting policies.
Estimates significant to the financizl statements include such items the estimated lives of
depreciable assets, and the estimared allowance for uncollectinle acoouents.

Financial Statement Disclosures

The footnote disclosures to the Minancial slztements are also an integral part of Che Tinancial

ztements. The process used by management o accurmulale Lhe informaticn included in the
disciosures was the same process used in aocumulating the financial stalements, and Lha
accaunting poelicies described above are included in those disclosures, The averall neutrality,
consistency, and clarity of the disclosures was considered as part our audit and in forming our
opinion an the financial statements.

Significant Difficulties Encounterad in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulsies in dealing with manazement refating Le the performance of the
audit.

Disagreements with Management

We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant
aceounting principles, the basis for management’s judgments on significant matters, the scope
of the audit or significant disciosures to be included in the tinancial statements.

Representation from Management
We requested written representations from management relalig Lo Lhe accuracy of
infarmation includad in the financial statemants and the completeness and sccuracy of various

information requested by ws, during the audit. Management provided those written
representations withaout a problem,

MWouldin & Jenkins, LLC Poge 11



Oconee County

Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

Management's Consultations with Other Accountants

Wi are not aware af any consultzlions manzgement had with aothar accountants about
accounting or zuditing matters.,

Slgnificant lssues Discussed with Manasement

There were no signilicant issues discussad with management related to Gusiness conditians,
plans, or strategies that may have affected the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements. We are not aware of any consultations management had with us or other
accountants about accounting or auditing matlers. Mo major ssues were discussed with
management prior Lo aur retention to perform the aforementioned audit.,

Audit Adjustments

During vur audit of the County’s basic financial statements as ot and for the year ended lune
30, 2015, there were sevaral adjustments proposed o the funds of the County. All adjustmants
have been discussed with management and posted by management, and are availaale for aur
presentation Lo you.

Uncorrected Misstatements

We had no passed adjuslmenls.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

We are riot aware of any ather documents that contain the audited hasic financial statements.
If such documents were to be published, we would have a responsibility to determinge that such
financial information was not materially inconsistent with the audited stalements of the
County,

Independence
We are independent of the County, and all related organizations, in accordance with auditing

standards promulgated by the American Institute of Public Accountants and SGovernment
Auditing Stondords, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
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Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
Jupe 30, 2015

ACCOUNTING RECOMMEMNDATIONS AND RELATED MATTERS

Recommendations far Improvement and Other Matters

During aur audit of the financial statements as of and for the year endec June 30, 2015, we
noted argas within the accounting and internal contral systems that we belisve can be
improved.  Our recommendations (20 commanly referred ta as management points) are
presented in the following paragraahs. We believe consideration of these recommendalions
will help provide proper cantral over financial activities, and add effecliveness and efficiency Lo
overall aperations.

Recommendations for Improvement {Management Points)

1) Grant Accounting Structura and Cross-training

Cruring aur audit of the County’s grant programs, Wwe noted that the County personnel with
direct responsibility for Federal and State grant activity were nol directly suparvisad by the
Administrative Services Depariment. Based on the predominantly financizl nature of grant
administration and accounting, we recommend that the County assign the associated
responsibilities of grant administration to County employees within the Administrative Sarvices
department, whifc maintaining an appropriate level of cross training, so as to strengthen
internal eantrols in arder to foster open lines of communication, as well as campliment the
raparting and reconciliztion @spects of grant accounting 2nd administration.

2] 5choals and Roads Grants to States Progzram

During our audit of the County’s grant programs, we noted that the Counly did rot have a 45
day public comment period prior Lo spending Lha Federal Titls 1l funds and did nat submit a
proposal to any resource advisory committes established under 16 USC 7125 prior to using the
Faderal Title [l funds as outlined in the grant award, We recammend the County strongthen
internal controls related to grant compliznce so as to ensure that the reguirements set forth in
the grant award recuiring 2 45 day public comment pericd prior to the vsa of Faderal Title 1
funds as well as the reqguirerment to submit a proposal ta a rescurce advisary committes in 3
timely manner prios to the use of Federal Title 11 funds are appropriately followed.

Other Matters for Cormmunication to the Board and Management

During our audit of the finarcizl statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, we
noted other maltlers which we wish to communicate to youw in an effort to keep the Caunty
afreast of accounling matters that could present challenges in tinancial reporting in future
poriods,
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Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
Jume 20, 2015

4 GASB

Gosarnmanial Accaunting Stesderds Board

1) New Governmental Accounting Standards
Board [(GASB) Pronouncements

A5 has been the case for the past 10 years, GASE has issued several other new proncuncements
which will be effective in future years. The Tollowing is a brief summary of the new standards:

a) Statement Mo. 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions and Statement No. 71,
Pension Tronsition for Contributions Mode Subseguent to the Measurement Date (oan
Amendment of GASE No. 68} are effective for the County’s fiscal year anded June 30,
2015, and it has been adopted as part of the financizl reparts prepared and issued by
the County as of and for the ended June 30, 2015, This pronauncement replaces tne
reguirements of Statement Mo, 27, Accounting for Pensions by Stote gnd Loool
Governmental Emplayers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
gavernments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or
similar arrangements that meet cerlain eriteria, including agent and cost-sharing
rmultiple employer plans.

their long-term abligation for pension benefits as a lability for the first tims, 2nd to
mara comprehensively and comparahly measura the annual cosls of pension benefits,

The statement alsa enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new
aate disclosures znd required supplemenlary information (R51).

Defined Benefit Pension Plans., Statement Moo BE requirss sovernmenls that
narticipate in defined benefit pension plans to report in their statement of net position
2 net pension liability. The nel persion liability s the difference between the total
pension liability (the present value of projected benefit payments to employess based
an_their oast service] and the assets (mestly investments reported at fair valus] =et
aside in g Liust and restriclec lo paving benefits to current employveses, retiress, and
their beneficiaries.

statement Mo, 68 calls far immediate recogniticn of more pension exoense than is
currenily reguired.  This includes immediate recognition of anndal service cost and
interest on the pensian liabiity and immediate recognition of the effect on the net
pension fability of changes in benefit tarms, Other cormpanents of pension expanse will
be recopnized over a closed period that s determined by the average remaining service
pericd of the plan members {both current and Tormer employeas, including retirees).

Thess other components include the effecls on the net pension lability of: (1) changes
in ccanamic and demographic assumptions used to praject benefits; and, (2} differences
bebween Lhose zssumplions and actual experience.  Lastly, the effects on the net
pension lability of differences belbween expecled and actual investment returns will be
recosnized in pension axpanse over a closed five-yvear period.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC Page 14



Oconee County

Auditor's Discussion & Analysis (ADEA]
June 30, 2015

Etatemnent Mo, B8 requires cost-sharing emoloyers 1o record a liability and expense
equal to their propartionate share of the collectivie nel pension lizbility 2nd expensea for
the cost-sharing plan. The statemenl also will improve the comparabifity and
cansistency of how governments calculate the pension Fabilities and expense, These
chanpsas include;

» Projections of Benefit Payments. Projections af benefit payments to employees
will be hased an the then-existing benetit terms and incarporate projected salary
changes and projected service cradits [iF they are Tactars in the pensicn farmulz),
g5 well as prajected automatic postemploymant benefit chanpes [those written
inte tha benefit terms|, including automatic cost-of-living-adjustments [COLAS).
For the first time, projections alse will include ad hoc postemplayment benefit
changes |those not written inte the benefit terms), including ad hoc COLAs, 1T
Lhey are considered to be substantively aulomalic.

+ Discount Rate. The rate used Lo discounl projected banafit paymants to their
present walue will be based on & single rate that reflects (2] the long term
sxpected rate of return an plan inwestments as long as the plan net position s
projected under specific conditions to be sufficient to pay pensions of currant
employvess and retirees and Lha pension plan assets are sxnacted to be invested
using A strategy to achieve thar return; and (h) a vield or index rate on tax
exempt 20vear, Sf-ar-higher rated municipal bonds to the extent Lhal lhe
canditions for use of Che long-Larm expected rate of raturm are not met,

« Attribution Method., Govornmenis will use a sirgle acluarial cost allocation
melhod — "enbry age,” with szch pericd’'s sarvice cast determined zs 3 leval
parcentage af pay.

Mote Disclosures and Required Supplementary Information. Statement Neo. 68 also
requires employvers to present mare oxtensive note disclosures and RSE including
disclosing  descriptive  infarmation  zbout the typas of benefits providad, how
conlributions Lo the pensicn plan are datermined, znd assumptions and methods used
to calculate the pension liability. Single and agent emplayers will disclose additional
infarmation, such as the compasition of the employees coverad by the benefit terms
and the saurces of chanzes in the components of the nel pension liability Tar the current
wear, A single or agent empioyer will alse presenl RS schedules covering the past 10
YEArs regarding:
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»  Saurces of changes in the companents of the nat pension liability
»  Ratios thatl assist in assessing the magnitude af Lhe nel pansian liability

o Comparisons of actual emplayver  contrioutions to the pension plan with
actuarially determined contribution requirements, if an employer has 2ctuarially
determined contibutions,

Costsharing employers are required to present the RSl schedule of net pension liability,
infermation about cantractually required contrioutions, and refated ratios,

Defined Contribution Pensions. The existing standards for governments that provide
defined contribution pensions are largely carried torward in this new statement. Thesa
apvernments will recognize pension expenses agual to the amount of contributians or
credits to employees” accounts, absent forfelted amounts, A& pensicn liability will be
recognized for the difference between amounts recegnized 2c expense and actual
contributicns made to & defined cantribution pension plan.

Special Funding Situations, Certain governments are legally resoansible for making
contribusicns ciractly Lo a pension plan that 5 used to provide pensions 1o the
emaloyees of another government. Far example, a stale may be legally required to
contribute to a pension plan that covers local schoal districts' teachers. In specific
circurmstances called special funding situations, the statement reguires gavernments
that are non-employer contbributing entilies Lo recognize in their own financial
statements their proportionzie share of the cther governmental employers” net pension
liability and pension expense,

The changes roted above by Statement No. 68 are significant o Governments who
sponsor refirement pians, and we strongly encourage County officials to continue to
review the actual pronouncement and always consider the potential effects on Lhe
linancial reporting of the Government.

Statement MNo. 69, Government Combinctions ond Disposals of Government
Operations i effective for the County's fiscal year endad June 30, 2015, This
prencuncement primarily applies to governments invalved in same form of mergers,
acguisitions, transfers of operations ar dispasal of operations. Unless the County enters
into any apreements whereby such actions are anticipaled, tis pronauncemant should
not affect the County. As of June 30, 20015, we ara not aware of any applications af this
proncuncement to the Counky, bul County officials should proceed Torward always
considering Lhe polentizl effecls of any prospective governmenl combinalions and
disposzl of aperatiaons.
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Statement Na. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application was issued in February of
2015, and is effective for financial statements for periods beginning alter June 15, 2015
resulling in the County's Msczl vear ending Juna 30, 2016,

This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value
measurements, The definition of falr valie is the price that weuld be received to sell an
asset or paid e transfer a liability in an ardarly Lransaction betwean market participants
at the mezsurement data. This statement provides guidance for determining a fair value
measurement for financial reporting aurposes, and also provides guidance for apnlying
fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements,

This statement generally requires investments to be measured at fair value. An
Investment is detined as a security or other asset that (a) a government holds primarily
for the purpose of income or profit and (b) has a present service capacity based solely
an its ability Lo penerate cash or to be sold to generate cash, Investments not measured
at fair value cantinue to include, for example, money market investments, Za7-like
external investment pools, investments in life insurance contracis comman stacs
masting the criteria for applying the equity methed, unallocated insurance contracts,
and synihetic guaranteed invesiment contracls. A government is permitted in cerlain
circumstances to estahlish the fair value of an investment that does not have a readily
determinable fair value by using the net asset value per share [or its equivalent] of the
vestment.

This statement requires measurement at acquisition value (an entry price) for donated
capital assets, donated works of art, historical treasures, and similar assets and capital
assets received in a service concession arrangement. These assets were previously
required 1o be measured at Tair value,

This statement requires disclosures to be madse about fair vzlue maasuraments, the
level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation technigues, Governments should organize
these disclosures by type of asset ar liabilicy reported at fair value. It also reqguires
additional disclosures regarding investments in certain antities that calculzte nat aszset
valus per share (or its equivalent).

Statement No. 73, Accownting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Reloted Assets
Thot Are Not Within the Scope of GASE Statement No. 68 was issued in lune of 2015,
and is effective for financial statements for periods beginning atter June 15, 2015
resulting in the County's fiscal vear ending June 30, 20145,

The objective of this statement is to improve the usefulness of inforrmation about
pensians included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local
governments for making decisions and assessing accountability. This stalemenl resulls
trom a comprehensive review of the effectivencss of exlsting standards of accounting
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and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits with regard to  providing
decision-useful infarmation, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period
ecjuity, and creating addizional transparency.

The requirements of this statement will improve financial reporting by establishing a
single framework for the presentation of informatlon about pensions, which will
enhance the comparabdity of person-related information reported by employvers and nan-
ermployver conbribuling enlities.

This statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are not
within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounling ard Finonciol Reporting for Persions,
as well 25 for the assets accumulated for purposses of praviding those pensions. In
addition, it establishes reguirements for defined contribution pensions that zre not
within the scope of Statement Mo, 88, It also amends certain provisicns of Statemeant No.
GY, Finonciol Regarting far Pensioh Blass, and Statement Mo, 68 for pension plans and
pensions Lhat are within their respective scopes.

The requirements of this statermnent extend the approach to accounting and financial
reporting established in Statement Moo G2 to all pensions, with modifications as
nacessary o reflect that for accounting and fnancial reporting purposes, any assais
accumulated for pensions that are provided throuph pension plans that are not
administered through trusts that meet the criteria specitied in Statement Mo, 68 should
net be considered pension plan assets, It also requires that information similar to that
required by Slalement Mo, 68 be included in notes Lo financial slatements and required
supplemantany information @y zll similarly situated smplovers and nan-employer
contributing entities,

This statement also clarifies Lhe application of certain provisions of Slatemants NoJ's 67
and B8 with regard to the fallowing issues:

s Information that is required to be presanted as notes to the 10-year schedules of

reqguired supplementary information zbout  investment-related factors that
significantly affect trends in the amounts reported,

« Accounting and fimancizl reparting for separately financed specific Habilities of
indivicual emplovers and mon-employver conlributing antities for defined oenefit
pEnsicns.

«  Timing of employer recegnition of revenue for the support of non-employer
conbributing entities nol ina special funding situztian.
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g} Statement Mo. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Mons Other Than
Pension Flans was issued in June of 2015, and is effective for financial statements for
periads beginning after June 15, 2016 resulting in the County’s fiscal vear ending lune
3, 2017, This statement could easily be described as the GASE MNa. 67 for
posternployment benetit plans due 1o the fact that it will closely tollow the orovisions of
&858 Mo, 67 for pension plans,

The chijective of this statament is la improve the dsefulness of Infarmation about
postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment banefits or
OPER) included in the peneral purpose external financial reports of state and local
governmental OFEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability.  This
statement results from 2 comprehsnsive review of the affectiveness of exisling
stancards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits
[pensicns and OPEB) with regard to providing decisicn-usatul information, supporting
aszessments of accountability and  inter-period  eculty, and  creating  additicnal
transparency.

This stalement replaces Statements Mo, 43, Fnancal Reparting for Post- emplovmant
Benefit Pions (ther Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPES Megsurgments by
Agent Emplovers and Agent Muiriple-Employer Plans. It alsa includes requirements far
defined cantribution OPER plans that replace the reguirements for those DPEB plans in
Statement Mo, 25, Snancial Reparting for Defined Bengfit Pension Planz and Naote
Disclosures  for Defined Contribution Plans, a5 amended, Statement Mo, 43, and
Ztatement Mo, 50, Pension Disclosdres.

Statement Moo 75, Accounting ond Fnanciol Reporting for Postempicyment Benefits
Dier Than Persions, establishes new accounting and financial re- parting requirements
for governments whose emplovees are provided wilth OPEB, as well as for certain
nan-emplover governmanis that have a legal chlization to grovide financal suppert Tor
OPER provided to the employees of other entities,

The scope of Lhis statement includes OPER plans (defined bernefit and defined
contributiaon! administered through srusts that meet the following criteria:

v Contributions from emplovers and non-employer contributing entities 1o the
OPEB pfan and e2rnings on those contrioutions are irrevocable,

e OPLEB plon assets are dedicated to providing OPEE o plan members in
accordance with the benefit terms,

« OPEB plan assets are legslly protected from the creditors of employers, non-
empicyer contriouting entities, and the DOPEDR plan administrater If the plar s a
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defined benefit OPEE plan, plan assets zlso are legally protected from creditors ot
the plan memhears,

The requiremeants of this statement will improve financial reporting primarily through
ernhanced note disclosures and schedules of required supplementary infarmation that
will be presented by OFEB plans that are administered thraough trusis that mes: the
specitied criteriz, The new intormation will enhance the decision-usefulness of the
financial reports of thase OPER plans, their value for assessing accountability, and thelr
transparensy by providing information aboul measures of net OPER labilities and
pxplanations of how and why thase liabilitiss changed from vear ta vear.

The net OPER liability information, including ratios, will offer an up-to-date indication of
the extent Lo which Lhe Lotal OPEB liability i= covered by the fiduciary nel position of
the OFER plan, The comparability of the reportec infermation for similar bypes of OFEB
plans will be improved by the changes related to the attribution method used o
determine the total OPEE liability.

The contriution schadule will provide measucres o evzluzte decisions relaled to the
assessment of contribution rates in comparison with actuarially determined rates, if such
rates are determinad. In addition, new informaticn about rates of return on OPEB plan
irvestments will inform financial report users abaut the effacts of market conditions on
the OPEE plan’s assets over time and provide intormation for users to assess the
refative success of the QPEE plan’s investment strategy and the relative contribution
that investmenl earpings provide Lo the OPFLS plan’s ability to pay benefits te plan
mambers when they come due.

fl Statement Mo. 75, Accountling and Financlal Reparting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Thon Pensions was issued in June of 2015, and is effeclive Tor Tinancial
staternents for periods beginning after June 15, 2017 resulting in the County’s tiscal WEar
ending Jlune 30, 2018, This statement cauld easily be described as the GASE Mo, &8 for
postemployment benefit plans due to the fact that it will closely follow the provisions of
GA5E Mo, 68 for pensicn plans,

The primary ohjective of this statemant is to improve accounting and financial reparting by
state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
posternployment benefits or DPER). 1T also improves information provided by slate and
focal governmental employers aboul financial supporl Tor OPEB thal is provided by other
entities. This statemeant results from a comprehansive review of the seffectiveness of
existing standards of accounting and financial reperting far all pastemplayment benefits
(pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and inter-perind equity, and creating additional
Lransparency.

Mouldin & Jenkins, LLC Page 20



iy

Oconee County

Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
June 30, 2015

This statement replaces the requiremeants of Statements Mao. 45, Accownting and Fingneial
Reporting by Emplavers for Postemployment Benefits Other Thon Pensions, 25 amended,
and Mo, 57, OPER Measurements by Agent Emplopers and Agent Multiple-Emplayer Flans,
for OPEB. Slatement Mo, M, Fraoool Beporting for Posternplovment Benefit Flons
Other Than Pension Flans, establishes new accounting and  financial reporting
requirements for OPER plans.

The scope of this statement zddresses accounting and Tirancial reporting far OPEB that s
provided to the employees of state and local povernmental employers. This
staternant establishes standards for recopnizing and measuring liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For
defined henefit OFER, this statement identifies the melhods and assumplions that are
reguired to be used to project benefit payvments, discount projected benefit payments
to theair actuarial present value, and attrioute that present value 1o periods of emnloyee
seryice. Mote disclosure and required supplementary information reguirements about
defined benetit OPER also zre addressed.

In addition, this statement detzils the recognition and disclosure requirements for
employers wilh payables to defined benefit OPER plans that are administered threugh
trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers whose employees are provided
with defined contribution OPER, This statement also addresses certsin circumstances in
which a non-employer entity provides financial support for OPER of employees af
ancther entily.

In this statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements
depending upon whether the OPEDR plans through which the benefits are provided are
adminislered through trusts that mest the following criteria:

« Contributions from employers and non-employer contributing entities to the
OPEB plan and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable,

= OPEE plan assels are dedicated 1o providing OPLE to plan members in
accordance with the berefit berms.

« OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, non-
employer contributing entities, the OPER plan administrator, ang the plan
rembers.

The requirements of this statement will improve the decision-usetulness of information
in employer and governmental non-emplaoyer contributing entity financial repoarts and
will ephance Its value for assessing acoountability and inter-periad equity by regulnng
recognition of the entire OFEG liability and 2 more comprehansive measure of OPEG
expense, Decislon-usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced through new note
disclosures and reguired supplementary information,
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Statomont Mo, 76, The Hierorchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Locol Governments was issued in June of 2015, and is effective far tinancial
statements far pariods beginning atter June 15, 2015 resulting in the County’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015, This statement supersedes Statement Mo, 55, The Rierarchy af
Generally Accepled Accowrling Privclples for Slole ond Local Governments,

The objective of this statement is to identify [in the context of the current
goveramental financial reporting envirenment) the hierarchy of generally acceptiod
accounting  principles (GAAP). The "GAaAP hierarchy” consists of Lhe sources of
accounting  principles used to prepare financizl statements of state and  local
povernmental entities in conformity with GAAF and the framework for selecting those
principles. This statement reduces the GAAP Rierarchy to two (2] categories of
autharitative GAAP and addraszexz Lhe use of authorilative and nos-adthoritative
[frerature in the event that the accounting treatment tor a transaction or other event
is ot specified within a source of autharitative GAAE,

The requirements in this statement improve financizl reporting by: (1) raising Lhe
category of GASE Implementation Guides in the GAAFP hierarchy, thus providing the
opportunity for broader public input an implementation guidance; (2] emphasizing the
importance of analogies to aulhoritative bterature when the accounting treatment for an
pvent is nat specified in authoritative GAAR: and (2] reguiring the consideration of
cansistency with the GASE Concepis Statements when evaluating accounting treatments
specified in non-authoritative lterature. As a result, governments will apply financial
reporling puidance wilk less varation, which will improve the usefulness of financizl
statement information for making decisions and assessing accountahility and enhance

the comparability of financial statement information amang governments.

Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures was issued in August of 2015, and is
affactive for financial statements Tor paricds beginning afler Decamber 15, 201%
resulting im the County’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017

lax abaternents are ‘widely used by state and local governments, particularly to
arncourage ecconomic developrmenl. For financial reporling purposes, this statement
defines tax abatement as resulting fram an apreement between a povernment and an
individual ar entity in which the government promises o forgo 1ax revenucs and the
individual or entity promises Lo subsequenthy take a specific action that contributes Lo
sconemic development ar atharwise nenefits the government or ils ctizens.

This statemant regiires disclosure of tax abatement infarmation alout: {1) a reporting
gavernment's own tax abatement agreements; and (2) these that are entered into by
other governments and that reduce the reporting government’s tax revenues,
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This statement requires povernments that enter into tax abatement agreements to
discloze Lhe following information ahout the agreements:

«  Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority under
which tax abalemenls are provided, =ligibility criteria, the mechanism by which
taxes are abated, provisions for recapiuring abated toxes, and the bypes of
commitments made by tax abatement reciplants

o The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period

Commilments made by 2 pavernment, other than to abate taxes, as part of a tax
abatement agreement,

Gavernments should organize these disclosures by major tax abatement program and
may distlose information for individuzal tax zbatement agreements within those
Rrograms.

lax abatemenl zgreements of olher governments shauld be arganized by the government
that entered into the tax abatement agresment and the specific tax being abated.
Governmants may disclose information for individual tax abatement agreements of
other povernments within the specfic tax being abated. For those tax abatement
agreements, a reparting government should disclose:

« The names af the governments that entered into the agreements.
s The specific taxes being abated.
+ The gross dollar amount of Laxes abzled during the periad.

i} Other Pending or Current GASB Projects. 4s noted by the numerous pronauncements
issued by GASE over the past decade, the GASE continues to rescarch various projects
of interest to governmental units, Subjects of nole include:

+ Fiduciary responsibilities ard new definitions for fiducizry funds and use of
whether a governmeant has “contrel” 2nd wha benefits 1o determine accaunting
as fiduciary. Final standard expected in Oczober 2015,

« [apital leases or operating leases cantinues o be a hot tople,  Locking into
whether all leases should be treated the same way. Final standard expectad in
Movember 2015,

» Asset retirement obligations in which the GASE is considering standards for
reporting liahilities related to obligations to perform procedures ta close cortain
capital assets, such 25 nuclear power plants. This concepl wauld not change
existing standards such as GASE 18 (landfills) or GA%E 48 (pollution remediation].
Firal stzndard axpacted in Dacember 20715,

= External investment pools. Current standards allow pools that are considered tao
be Za7-like to report investments at amaortized cost rather than fair walue,
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however, the SEC recently made significanl changes to Rula 2a7 making it hard
to be 2a¥ lke.

An exposure draft crezted criteria [which are based on old ?a? criteriz) for an
external investment poals to cantinue to be accaunted far using amartized coast,
Final standard expecied in December 2015,

« rrevocable split-interest agreements which are pravalent at colleges and
universities whereby split-interest agreements in which an asset is given to
pavernment in trust, During stated term of the trust the income generated by
the trust goes 1o the donor and when the trust ends then the assets become the
gavermmenis, Final stancard expected i January 2010,

« Blending requirements for certain business-type activities. GASE is considering
revising the standards regarcing how certain companent units of business-type
activities should be presented.  There s diversity Inooractice, with same
companant units blended for reascns nat included in Statement 14 [such 25 sole
member of an LLC), Final standard exnected in March 20146,

¢« Conceptual Framework is a constant matter being looked a7 by GASE. Current
measurement focus statements (for povernmental funds] to change ta near-
Lerm linancial resources measuremenl. May dictate a period [such as 60 days)
far revenue and sxpenditure recazgnilion.  May expense thing such as supplies
and prepaic assets at acquisition, Will look into which balances (at all statement
levels) are measured at acguisition and which need to be re measured at year
end. Project placed or hold Far now,

+ Economic Condition Reparting is anolhar long-Lerm maller baing looked oo by
GEASE. Includes prazentztion of infermation on fiscal sustainzbility (including
projections). Tabled far now pending resalution to issues raised an GASEs scope.

Summations of Thoughts Noted Above

We helieve the implementation of these suggestions will enhance both the control
environment and the financizl reporting process, making both more effective. We also believe
these recommendalions can be easily implemented, and all problems resolved guile Limely
should manazement elect Lo empley Lhae corrective measures.

Wouwldin & Jenkins, LLC Foge 24
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FREE QUARTERLY CONTINUING EDUCATION
AND NEWSLETTERS FOR GOVERMNNMENTAL CLIENTS

Frec Continuing Education. We provide free continuing education {guartarly is the goal and
objective] for all of our povernmental clients. Each quarter we pick a3 couple ot significant
topics tailored to be of interest to governmentz| entities, In an effort to accommodate aur
entire gavernmental client base, we offer the sessions several Omes per quarter at a variety of
clignt provided localions resulling i grester netwaorking amang aur povernmental clients, We
normally ses approximately 100 people per quarter, We obtain the input and services of
experienced ouiside speakers along with providing the instruction utilizing our in-house
professigrals. We hope County staff and officials have been able to participale in this
apporlunity, and that it has been bereficial to yvou. Examples of subjects addressed in the past
few guarters include:

& Accounting for Delt lssuances

s American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA} Updates

» Best Budgeting Practices, Policies and Processes

e CAFR Preparation [sevaral times including a twa (2} day hands-on
COLIFSE]

e Capital Asset Accounting Processes and Controls

» Collzteralizatiaon of Deposits and Investments

¢ Evaluating Financial and Non-Financial Health of a Local Government

s GASE Mo, 51, Intangible Assets

s 3A5E Mo, 59, Governmental Fund Balance [subject addrassed Lwice)

s [ASE No. 60, Service Coreossion Arrangements (wabeast)

o GASE Mo, 61, the Financial Reperting Entity (webgast)

s ASE Mo's 63 B GBS, Deterred Inflows and Dutflows weaboast)

= (ASE MNo.'s 67 & 68, New Pension Stds, (presented several occasions)

& GASE Updates (ongoing and several sessions)

& 4rant Accounting Processes and Controfs

s Inlemzl Conbrols Over Accounls Payable, Payroll and Cash
Cisbursements

# Inlermzl Conlbrols Over Receivables & the Ravanua Cycle

e Intermal Revenue Service (IB3) Issuaes, Primarily Favrall Matlers

a Lepal Considerations for Debt Issuances & Disclosure Raguiramanls

s Palicies and Frocedures Maruals

a Segrepgation of Duties

s Single Aucils for Aucilees

« Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax {SPLOST) Accounting, Reparling
& Compliance

» Uniform Grant Reporting Requirements and the Mew Single Audit

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC Page 25
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Governmental Newsletters. We paricdiczlly produce newsletlars Lailored to meet 1he needs of
governments. The newsletters have addressed a variety of subjects and are intended to be
timely in their subject matter, The newsletters are authored by Mauldin & lenkins partners and
managers, and are not purchased from an culside agency. The newsletters are intended Lo
keep vou informed of currernt developments in the government finance anviconmenl.

Communication. In an effort to better communicate our free continuing education plans and
mewsletters, please email Paige Vercoe a2t pegrcce @ mijcpacom [sond corresponding copy o
dirwin@micpa.com), and provide ta her individuzl names, mailing addrasses, email adoresses
and phane numbers of anyone you wish to participate and be included in our database.

CLOSING

We believe Lhe implementation of these suggestions will enhance both the control
environment and the financial reparting process, making both mare effective. We also believe
these recammendations can be easily implemented, and all problems resalvad quite timely
should management elect to employ the corrective measures, If you have any gquestions
regarding any comments, suggestions ar recommendations set forth in this memaorandum, we
will be pleased to discuss it with you at your conwvanienca.

Thiz infarmation is intended solely for the u=e af the County’s management, and others within
the County's organization and is not intended to be anc should not be used by anyvane other

than these specified parties,

We appreciate the oppartunity to serve the Qranse County, South Caraling and loak torward to
semving the County in the future. Thank you.

Mowlain & lenking, LLC Poge 26
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T. Scott Moulder
County Administrator

Oeonee County Administeaive O ees
415 South Mine Sireel
Walhalla, S5C 29091

(R} n38-1245

Drecerber 8, 2613

Ttk ernbars ol Gee Oeones County Coaret | and the Citieens o0 Oleunee Coan b

The Comprehensive Anraal Financinl Repors (CAFR) for Caenes Connty, Sowih Caroling, e che fecal vear sndad June 3,
2003, is kerehy submitted pursvant o Scuth Cerolicn Code of Laws, Title 4, Chapter %, Section 130 The CAFR is intended
o present the financizl activiey of the County for the fiscal vear and the financial condition of the County &z of June 30, 2015
Fhis CAFR arovides a fair presentation of the County's financial position and changes in financial position in accordance
with the stunedands proomulpsted by the Governmen el Accoemiing Stamdends Board [GAS1

Mapagement assumes full rezponsibility for fhe completenes: and refiakility of he information contained in this report, as
well as the presentation and disclosure. Managemens is 2lso responzible for establisking ard mainswining a svstem of inkemi!
contrals to safcguard asacts and o provide soascnable assusancs thot s financizl stetements are fres of Ay material
mistelements,  The cocepl of weasenable, rather than absslute, assurance recosnizes that the cost of an internal conirol
shoalid nol exceed e expected benelitg, Manaecment ovaluates the costs and anticipated benefiis of Inernal contols within
this Framewaork, We balieve the Connty's interma| sccoustg, contrals adeguately saleouand asgems and provide reasosalilz
pasurance of proper recording of Spanczl trangaedons,

Ion compliance with the laws of the Sfate of Scuth Caraling, the County's financizl statements have been sudited by BMaaldin
e Jenking, Contificd Public Acceuntants, The avditess ssued an enmedified {“clean™) azinica on Ocones Couney’s finoncind
slalements [or the vear cnded June 20, 20050 The tedependent avdivess' veport s located at the front of the financial section
o this repott Nanagement's Dascussion ad Arcdlesis (08 AT inrrediztcly fallews the independent auditors" iepont and
provvides a mirmitive mnirecducizen, overview, and analysis of the basic Tnancial setaments, MO&A complements tos Tetier of
transmital and shauhd be reisd 0 conjunciion with i,

Profile of the Govermment

COlearge County, incaraorated of 1868, 18 lecated in the nostwest coces of South Caraling e the szeale Bloe Ridse Foethills
and moantains,  Frve imeomonied monicipphibes exist owithin the 823 sguare miles of the Counly, Oconee Coundy iy
empowerad e bevy 2 propery s om both o real acd persanal propery locided witkin s Boandaries i order 10 provicle
services (oo papuiatien of approximiniels 75025

Ceonee County has opergtod under the county-sdministzater form of 2ovemment since 2000 Policy-moking and tegisintive
authaeiny are vested Gy a goverming council (Council) consisting of Sve council momaers, Council members arc clected by
distriet tooa four-year stageered vme The Counesl elocts a chaiiman, vice chainnan, and chaizman pro tom &t the Tist
mezting in Loy, The Ceancl appoints the Coonly Adeeeistrator woho 2 responsible Tor caomying oot the policies of
oot and oversesimr Lhe dive-lo-cay opertions ol the Coonty, Oeonee Counly |'|n_1'.-'i-:|¢:= i dull rnge ol sereies, inelucling
pelice amdd fire protection, jadicial services, solid waste dispesal and recyeling, the construction. and maintenines of
kighwenys, streeds and other infrastriciure, and receeaticnnd and cultural nosivities.

The Council is required to adopt a feal Bodese By oo Later than the closs of the Ascal vear, This anneal biadgel seoves as the
foundatizn for Ooones County's financial plonning and contral. The budges i prepared oy fand, tunction, (cg.. gublic
saferyy, and depariment 2.2, emergency servicesh, The Counsy Adminiztrator iz aukorized o wansfer appropriations
between obicet classifications within departreental budgets. County Council mny transfer furds from any fund. depamnent.
aptivity or purpase e another By narmal Couneil acion. subjeet o all ether applicable Leeal ceguirements,



Local Economy

Oconee County’s economy produced some very positive outcomes during the most recent fiscal year. For example, from
June of 2014 to June of 2015, the county unemployment remained the same at 5.7% according to the US Department of
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. In conjunction with the lowest unemployment rate since the early 2000’s, the number of
workers participating in our workforce remains around 32,082. These signs are indicative of the intensive efforts to recruit,
attract, and retain strong business partners in Oconee County. The County Council established economic development as one
of the most important long-term strategic objectives for the next five years. In keeping with this commitment, Oconee
County began construction of necessary infrastructure projects, including water and waste water to support the Golden
Corner Commerce Park located in the southern part of the County with easy access to Interstate 85. While this business park
is still under construction, the future plans of Council include expansion of this infrastructure to exits 1, 2 and 4 of Interstate
85. This project began in December of 2013 and the sewer force mains were nearing completion at June 30, 2014. In the
coming fiscal year, the County plans to complete the infrastructure projects and have this property in inventory for potential
business development near the close of fiscal 2015.

There are more positive developments to report during fiscal year 2015, there were several major economic development
announcements which included a total of about $87,500,000 of new capital investment within Oconee County. The
following companies within Oconee County decided to expand their base of operations: U.S. Engine Valve, BorgWarner,
Greenfield, Sandvik, and Ulbrich. Also, the economic development efforts worked to successfully recruit the following new
companies to Oconee County: Plastic Products Company, GreenTech Recycling, and the headquarters of TDC Cutting Tools
(parent company of Greenfield).

Throughout 2013 and into 2014, the county continued the work of bringing the Oconee Industry and Technology Park on-line
with infrastructure enhancements and road installation. Essentially, the county money was used to “turn farm land into
industrial real-estate.” The county put into place a 300,000 square foot pad site and a 50,000 square foot pad site. This
investment is designed to have sites readily available for attracting potential business investment in Oconee County and
thereby create new jobs that help diversify and strengthen the County’s job base. Oconee County’s manufacturing portfolio is
diverse and technologically focused. Companies include those in the automotive, plastics, precision tooling, advanced
materials, and specialized medical equipment industries. These industries benefit from the proximity to the Clemson
University research facilities and the Tri-County Technical College training programs that provide a highly skilled
manufacturing workforce.

In addition to manufacturing, the County economy has a strong agricultural sector that includes farming, livestock production
and timber interests. A small but growing sector includes specialty and organic produce, sold locally and to near-by markets
in Charlotte, North Carolina and Atlanta, Georgia. The County recognizes the cultural influence of this sector to the work
ethic and character of its citizens as well as the economic impact to the County. For the last two years the County has
provided space for the Carolina Foothills Heritage Fair which celebrates agricultural excellence and draws visitors and
exhibitors from throughout the state and region. The County has also begun to work with the agricultural community to
develop future plans around a county-wide farmers market, a “farm to table” initiative and various other ways to strengthen
this economic driver for our community.

As Oconee County contains a significant amount of public lands, in addition to 1,355 miles of lake shore line, tourism
provides a significant contribution to the local economy, and is especially important to local small businesses. Oconee
County continues to support the Mountain Lakes Convention and Visitors Bureau. Several potential recreational
developments have been put on hold due to the economy, and the County expects that as the economy improves there will be
increased activity and investment in the tourism industry. The County has improved the method of allocating
accommodation taxes to ensure the most effective use of these revenue sources to promote and develop the tourism sector of
the County.

Long-term Financial Planning & Major Initiatives

The County Council created a Capital Projects Advisory Committee, which has been charged with prioritizing proposed
future large capital projects and making recommendations to Council. This committee is composed of a Council
representative, the County Administrator, a representative from the Infrastructure Advisory Committee, and two citizen
representatives. In addition to the voting members, a representative from the Planning Commission and the County’s
finance, facilities and planning directors serve in a non-voting advisory role. At present, the County is pursuing a strategic
goal of using funds on projects that are predominately beneficial to local and regional economy.

The County’s long-term debt management policy is influenced by State law regarding debt limits, bond rating agencies, and
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The MD&A includes a brief discussion of the debt limit and the current
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bond ratings. The County remains well withu the legal debt limit. Futuze capiid projects will be plamed o emsane that the
Cowty dozs sl exceed the debt limit and that debt service remains ata reasonohls Tevel

Prring fiscal wear 2015, the councy invested very |'||.'il.1.'|.|].' o cepnatic dovelopment o provide & backbone of infFasiuciune
fofhe soutleeny end of te councy near intersizte 35, T mvestingnt meludes the shortrange goal of developing 2 commerce
]:;_rk. wiih u::-rnpluh_ amemibies.  The sile 25 becated on Seath Camlina ||i|;|1'.\.'.-'|'_.' 3% near the Town nf Fair Plav and within
minubes ol & major interstale with easy nocess (o severn] nearby major metropaliton orens, This is Phaze 1 of the longer term
plan fo develap infrastrucire incleding water, sewer, and necessare ueilities w0 seppont orowth o the intersections of
interstate 83 within Czongee Counly's kaeders,

Financizl Palicies

The C‘:mm:.- = Fimancial policics were created with e seem] purpose of eaabling the County 1o achieyve a long-term slzble
and pogiave Noaocial condition, Belaw are some o U relevant loasaal policies:

o Fund Balence Beseove Paley - 25 w0 30 % ol resular gemecal Tend exposdineres.

e dluln-Year Financial Forecasting — County Capuial linprovement Flan must be updared and adegred on an nonaal
I'.'H!ii!'c.

e Duarterly Fruancinl Recording and Mocitoreg - Cownmy Fasaeee Departneitt will provide Council with guarterly
financial reparis,

e rancal Accowntim Aaward o Finooee Depariment well prepaze ad gebaon the comprebensive annual Gascial
report 1o the Governmental Finonze Officers Associalion each veor, tor the pward b excellence

v Budgsting Award - Finanee Deparimeent will prepare and submit the bucdged docoment 1o the Govemmenla] Finance
Diifizers Associntbon ench venr, Far the award of excellence.

Fimanzinl manapement is o crucial comporsnl ol crelil analysis o all levels of governnent, and & Gavorakle credil ranng is
essential for the Counsy in planning lor the future

Aovards wed Ackoowledgenteats

Fhe CGrowermment Finance O0hcers Assooebon of the United  Sizes aod Casada (GFO A awarded a Cemificnrs of
Achizvemant for Excellence in Finpneinl Rl."""!-i.'l.'|'i|'||£ 1o Cdgorse I'.‘.'-::unh_,-' [ 1% |.'|.||1|F|n_'|'.-_'|'|nil.-|: aruzl Nmancial ot tor the
fiscal veor ended June 30, 230020 In crder to be owarded o Cenificate of Achizvement, o govemmenl muest publesh an eaaly
rendable and efficientdy orconczed comprehengive anoeal financial soport This repor must satisfy both WS, penerally
apceprod aecsunting prmciples and applicahle lega] requiccmenes, A Cemilicate of Achievenwest 8 valid Zor o period of cne
year only.

W believe thar our current gomprehensive annunl faoncia] report contipues o mest e Ceelificaie of Aclhicvement
Prosram's requiscinents arad we are subasitting it oo GROA o deszrmine i ¢ligibilite fer another centificnte

[he preparatien of tus report would not bave been pasable witbwat e elfzoieon asd dedicaved serace of te eovive safl of
the Finance Depariment, We wish 10 express our appres iateen o all of the departments wlo asasied amd corirthuted w0 the
prepartion of ihis report. We would cspecially Like to thank the Treasurer ond Auditar and their sl for all of thear
assistane during the audit, Credit must glae be given o the govenaing couneil fae their unfailing suppest for mointaining the
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Oconee County Council
of Oconee County
Walhalla, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Oconee
County, South Carolina (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Oconee County, South Carolina’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Keowee Fire Tax District, which represents 100% of the assets, net position and revenues
of the discretely presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Keowee Fire Tax District,
is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

300 MULBERRY STREET « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 - MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 « 478-464-8000 * FAX 478-464-8051 « www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Oconee County, South Carolina as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 16, the County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ~ an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, as well as
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, as of July 1, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion
and Analysis (on pages 4 through 15), the pension information for the Retirement Plans for the employees of
Oconee County, South Carolina (on pages 77 and 78), and the Schedule of Funding Progress (on page 81) be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Oconee County, South Carolina's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section listed in
the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The summary schedule of court fines, assessments and surcharges is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by the State of South Carolina, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.



The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, budgetary comparison schedules, summary schedule
of court fines, assessments and surcharges, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, budgetary comparison schedules,
summary schedule of court fines, assessments and surcharges, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 8, 2015, on our

consideration of Oconee County, South Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Oconee County, South Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and

o ? Gplinr, KE

Macon, Georgia
December 8, 2015



OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of Oconee County's financial performance provides an overview of the
County's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Please read the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information presented with the County’'s financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= The County implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pension, which required a restatement of beginning net position in the governmental activities
and business-type activities in the amounts of $30,556,116 and $1,416,108, respectively.

= Oconee County’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources as of June 30, 2015 by $128,573,480, which was an increase from the prior
year of 1.9 percent. The County’s deficit unrestricted net position was $7,426,652.

= The County's governmental activities reported an increase in net position of $3,560,446 resulting
from the fiscal year 2015 activity. Net position of the business-type activities decreased
$1,176,414 due to the fiscal year 2015 activity. Overall the County’s net position increased
$2,384,032.

= During the year, the County had expenditures in governmental activities that were $2,810,446
less than the $54,219,572 generated in tax and other revenues for governmental programs
(before transfers). For comparison, the prior year expenses were $680,770 more than the prior
year revenues (before transfers) as reflected in the Changes in Net Position Figure 2.

* The General Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $699,494 resulting from fiscal year
2015 activity, resuiting in an ending fund balance of $21,433,470.

= In the General Fund, actual revenue sources available for appropriation were $706,426 less than
anticipated primarily due to property tax revenue, intergovernmental revenue and charges for
services. Actual expenditures were $1,009,307 less than the final budgeted expenditures.
Further, actual revenues were $1,579,588 less than actual expenditures.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Oconee County’s
basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. The basic financial statements present two different views of the County through the use of
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements,
this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the
financial condition of the County.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. These provide information about the overall government and provide a longer-term view of the
County’s financial status. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current
year's revenue and expenditures are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



In addition, these two statements report the County's net position and changes in them. The difference
between the assets and the liabilities can be indicative of the County’s financial position. Other non-
financial factors, like changes in the County’s tax base and economic growth, would need to be
considered, as well, in determining the overall financial health of the County.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are divided into two kinds of activities:

= Governmental activities — Most of the County’s basic services are reported here for departments
that are included in the following categories: general government, public safety, transportation,
public works, culture and recreation, judicial services, education, health and welfare, and
economic development.

= Business-type activities — Activity for the Rock Quarry is included in this category as the County
charges fees to cover the cost of products sold to customers. In addition, activity for the Fiber
Optics Creating Unified Solutions (FOCUS) project is a business-type activity as the County will
lease bandwidth to customers to generate revenues.

The next statements are fund financial statements that begin on page 18. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the County’s government. These statements provide more detailed
information on the significant funds rather than the government as a whole. Some of the funds are
required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. However, County Council and
management have established many other funds to aid in controlling and managing money specified for
particular purposes or to show that legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other special
funding are being met. There are three types of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each
uses a different accounting approach.

= Governmental funds — Most of the County’s services are reported in the governmental funds,
which focuses on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of
the County's general government operations and the basic services that it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs. The differences
between the governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities and the governmental funds financial statements are described following the fund
financial statements in the Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
and the Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances to the Statement of Activities. Following the governmental fund statements is the
General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule. It includes the original budget, final budget as
amended, and actual, all of which are required supplementary information. In this report, the
County includes a variance column, which is not required.

= Proprietary funds — When the County charges customers for products or services that it provides,
those activities are reported in the proprietary funds. The proprietary funds reports consist of the
Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,
and the Statement of Cash Flows. Even though a proprietary fund can consist of enterprise funds
and internal services funds, the County only reports for two enterprise funds. The reporting for
these enterprise funds is the same as the business-type activities reported in the government-
wide statements, but contains more detail and additional information such as the Statement of
Cash Flows.

» Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds consist of four types of funds: pension trust funds, investment
trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and agency funds, of which the County only has agency
funds. Because the County acts as a clearing account to distribute certain financial resources to
other entities, the County must report these activities separately, in agency funds, thereby
demonstrating that those resources were used for and by the specific entity for which they were
collected. The report for the agency funds is the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position where the
assets equal the liabilities.
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The Statement of Activities on page 17 shows that the County’s total revenues, including charges for
services, operating grants and contributions, capital grants and contributions, and general revenues,
increased to $58.9 million, or 4.2 percent, from the prior year.

Certain County programs are authorized to charge for services provided to its constituents. For the
County as a whole, the charges for services increased 15.2 percent, or $1.3 million, from fiscal year 2014
to fiscal year 2015. Further, the County receives both operating and capital grants and contributions from
state and federal governments as well as other non-government individuals and businesses. The
operating grants and contributions, $1.9 million, are used to fund the general operations of certain
programs of the County. The operating grants decreased from the prior year by $36,437 (1.9 percent).
This decrease is due to the governmental activities general government, culture and recreation and
economic development programs. Capital grants and contributions fund the purchase of capital assets
and improvements. During 2015, the County received $2.5 million in capital grants compared to the $2
million received for fiscal year 2014, a 25.1 percent increase. The majority of this increase pertains to the
transportation and economic development programs. Property tax revenues increased by $281,133 (0.7
percent).

The total governmental and business-type activities program expenses decreased $1.6 million, which is
composed primarily of decreases in economic development ($1,163,241), transportation ($1,091,858),
health and welfare ($657,209) and interest on long-term debt ($209,146) offset by increases in FOCUS
($717,407), public safety ($370,853), judicial services ($186,588), cuiture and recreation ($129,416),
general government ($78,872), Rock Quarry ($35,135), and education ($24,215). The decrease in
economic development expenses resulted from the construction progress being impeded by slow
approval of the federal grants to fund the further development of the waste water treatment facilities for
the Golden Corner Commerce Park (GCCP). FOCUS expenses increased mainly due to professional
services and employee salaries and fringe benefits. The net revenue, (difference between program
revenues and program expenses), for all programs and services increased $4.0 million from the previous
year, due to the decreased expenses noted.

The analysis in Figure 2 provides more detailed information on the governmental and business-type
activities separately.

Governmental Activities

Net position of the County’s governmental activities increased from 2014 to 2015. This $3,560,446
increase is the due to increased revenues and decreased expenditures in 2015 as compared to 2014.
The governmental activities unrestricted net position at June 30, 2015 totaled a negative $2.8 million, a
decrease from the prior year of $14.1 million. This significant decrease is the result of the implementation
of GASB 68 during the year. Additionally, the fiscal year 2015 total net position from the governmental
activities operations included an increase in the restricted net position of $573,245. Furthermore, the net
investment in capital assets increased by $17.1 million.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $51.4 million compared to $53.8 million last year due
mainly to the decrease in economic development and transportation.

The amount that our taxpayers paid in County property taxes to finance the governmental activities was
$40.2 million. Some operating costs were paid either by those who directly benefited from the services
offered ($5.2 million) through charges for services or other governments and organizations that
subsidized certain programs with both operating and capital grants and contributions ($4.4 million).
Overall, the County’s governmental program revenues, consisting of both fees for services and
intergovernmental aid, increased marginally from $9.1 million in 2014 to $9.6 million in 2015. Both the
transportation and economic development programs capital grants and contributions increased as a result
of state and federal funding opportunities with initiatives that provide infrastructure improvements and job
growth and encourage economic development in the County.
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Business-ty pe Activities

Total nat position of the business-iype activilies decreased by 51,176,414 or 2.6 percent. The decease in
the feizl net position is @ result of an ivsraase in expenses and an increase n the net investmani in
Caplal assels porllon of net position.

Fizcal year 2015 business-type activities program ravenues incraased by 512 millan, or 351 parcesl
over fizcal year 2014, FOCUS had an increase inlease revenues of 3420 230 aver the prior year. Tho
Fock Quarry had an increase in program revenues of 3773350 (or rock sales.  The business-typa
aclvil=s erpenses ncreased 158 poarcent, or 5730847, This s primanly dus 1o incresses in tha
deprecigiban sxpenss for the FOCUS preject and in the professional services and supplies for the Raock
Claarmy.

Expenses and Revenues - Business-type Activities
Chart 4
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FUND FINANCIAL AMALY SIS

Ar describad earlisr, the County has bo inclede detsiled reports for is gowarnmantal and propriatary funds
as well as tha Genaral Fund Budgatary Comparison Schedule. Thase statements begin on paga 24.

Governmental Funds

At complation of fzcgl year 2015, the County's governmental funds reported (ol fund balances of F41.3
millign, wehich was a decrease from lest vear's total by 3219 million. This decresse was primarily related to
activity within the Capial Projecis Fund,  Total governmental revenues increased 5548054, or 1.8
percent mainty as a result of increasec propery tax colleclions and intergovammental revanuss,  Tatal
gowvernmeantal funds expandiures increzaed slightly by 2584580, or 0.7 percert from the pries yaar. The
increass in expenditures from capita autlay in the Caoitzl Projacts Fund and the decressed expandiures
in the ecanomic developarant progranm within the Esoncmic Deveopment Fund vintuzily offast each othar
procdiucing the amall increass



The chief operating and major fund of the County is the General Fund. At the end of the fiscal year, the
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $7.7 million, while its total fund balance was $21.4
million. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to its total original budgeted expenditures for the following year. The
unassigned fund balance represents 18.8 percent of the total General Fund expenditures, while the total
fund balance represents 52.2 percent of that same amount. The General Fund revenues have decreased
marginally by $11,880 from 2014. General Fund expenditures increased 3.3 percent primarily in the
public safety and health and welfare programs.

The County is required to present individual financial statements for each of the County’s most significant,
or major, funds. The General Fund is always a major fund. In addition, other governmental and
enterprise funds must be reported as a major fund if both of the following criteria have been met.

a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses/expenditures of the individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for that element (assets, liabilities,
etc.) for all funds of that category or type.

b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for that element (assets, liabilities,
etc.) of all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The County could decide to include any governmental or enterprise fund's individual financial statements
as a major fund, even if they do not meet the criteria for major fund reporting.

The following funds have met the criteria for inclusion as a major fund.

Capital Projects Fund — this fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of capital assets. The
June 30, 2015 fund balance was $764,270, a decrease of $13.7 million from the June 30, 2014 fund
balance. During the year, the detention center construction project was nearly completed which
exhausted most of the bond proceeds for that project.

Economic Development Capital Projects Fund — this fund accounts for property taxes, grants, and other
funding sources restricted for the acquisition and construction of economic development properties and
infrastructure. The revenues collected in fiscal year 2014 - 2015 were $3.3 million. Expenditures related
a temporary halt to the development of the GCCP waste water treatment facilities contributed to the $6.5
million, or 82 percent, decrease from 2014.

Proprietary Funds

The County reports two enterprise funds. Those funds are the Rock Quarry Fund and the FOCUS Fund.
The Rock Quarry produces and sells mined blue granite for use in construction and landscaping. The
FOCUS fund has completed the backbone installation for the countywide fiber optics broadband network,
but is installing cabling to businesses and residences as requested. The total net position for both
proprietary funds at June 30, 2015 was $11.1 million, of which $4.4 million is related to the Rock Quarry
and $6.7 million related to FOCUS. The Rock Quarry transferred $750,000 of its income to the General
Fund, decreasing net position of the Rock Quarry by $669,687 from the previous year. The FOCUS
fund’s net position decreased $1.8 million due to accumulated depreciation. See analysis of business-
type activities above for further discussion of revenues and expenses for proprietary funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

In the 2015 adopted budget (Ordinance 2014-01), the General Fund's original budget totaled
$41,195,283. Encumbrances for purchase orders involving capital expenditures with an outstanding
balance at fiscal year-end 2014 did not lapse and were allowed to roil forward to the 2015 budget year as
allowed in the budget provisions. The 2014 fiscal year end’s encumbrances added $574,435 in
amendments to the original 2015 budget.

By the end of the year, General Fund actual revenues totaled $39,505,016; $706,426 less than the final
budget attributed mainly to reductions in the property tax revenue, intergovernmental revenue, and the
charges for services categories. During the year, expenditure budget amendments increased the total
budgeted expenditures by $1,251,847, which included the purchase order encumbrances from June 30,
2014. Actual expenditures totaled $41,084,604, thus creating a budget variance in total expenditures of
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1,009,307 This difference betwean the actual edpendituras and the final budgatad expenditures was
accomplished by acleal expenditures being less than tha final budget in 8ll functicns of the genarzl fund
Equslly imperiant b nole, the actual expenditures were mors than the arginal budget by $222 540 and
the criginal ard final budgstad revenuss wers tha sames

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assels

Tha County's investment in capisl assats for its govammental and business-tyoe activities 23 of June 20,
201E, todals 214752 milion (net of accumulzied depreciation and depletion), These assets includs @nd,
consfruction in progress, infrastructurs land rights, bulldings and improvaments, vehicles and 2quipmeant,
infrastructure, permils and mineral interests The net increase (ncluging acditicns and deductions) s
2118 million, or 55 percent, above lasl Year.  The Increass & dus fo rumerces capdal projects
Cxpendibures.

DEpnes Camnbyds Capilal Asagts

War of Accmulated earociadion and Daplafon

Fhauira 3
Goyernmemtal dctivitizs Buziness-Type Activitics fofal Primary Govermment |
5 24 AHE 204 s 204
Land § L330ER 3 1MEEM £ e I 239,580 3 L7FRESS 5 A WEII
Irfrastucure Land ?\-!Il_:rh 3G, B 25 20,547,455 - - SR AR AGE 35 H81. 455
Copsbocion n Progress 2E087 AL 14,154 502 e R H PP 14,184,602
Bubding @ed iporasmente M, 780117 a5, 200,530 2711 253 424 28 K7 245 M ANS 1A
Eqdpment and Vehicks £,841,203 10,508 538 085 085 1,08 B2 0,857,289 T H95,88]
IPlrastruciuse 18,753 676 18,73 A58 12,747 412 13,385,595 B ER A3T008E
Cxher b 451 - - - <4451 -
fdreral inlzresls - - 282137 Ha.ma AR/E 1T o b
Trisl 5OISETTRSM 5 10563 555 5 15fned1e & 15471883 5478 B3 E 108 BEE ATT

flajar Sapital aesed ransaclions during the yaar include:

= Construction in pregress far
o Maw detention center faciling, $15,552 519,
o Gewer Souh projest ines and i skalions, 5559863,
o GBUCP waste water reatment plant, 51588,820;
2 Bhiloh amergency subetation, 52,200,
o Whetstone emargency subetstion, 3800;
o Chachae Valley emargency substation, 57 250;
o Airport mnprovement projects, 3154708
m Bk County rosds, 553158
oo Thres Gounty Bridges, 3438832 and
w  Instaliation of Shanff's dapedment softwara system upgrade, 3359 729, and

= Ageat sdditions for:
o Coroner's office, 3357224
2,58 acres lar the airpor] axpansan, 3115 455,
Fourteen Courty reads, 2713 657 and one bridgs, $174 588,
Fifteen passenger vehizies, 5441 74,
Two rigid=frame haul trucks for e Rock Quarry, 523,300, anc
Deanss FOCUES lest-mike additions o inside and oulside plant, 5258247,

1= R IR w jb = B o

Actditicnral inicemation on the County's capidal asseis can e found in Note § on pages 45 - 48 of the basic
financial statements.



Long-term Debt

Az of June 30, 2015, tha Caunty had autstanding a total panced dent of approximatey 312 8 millicn, all of
which = backed by the Tull faith anc credit of the Counly.

Coriee Sounky’s Cubstendng Debt

Govammenlel ik Bushres Tap clivks Total Frimsy G bramast
ST Ea TS 14 bl ] HUE!
Ganaral oaligaticn (&0 bosds
zhatis i the S ==
T bersiks $ LMEGH 5 f43anme 5 -« 5 . F OLISE0CS £ LTI 00D
Phis u-omerizes cosmlom BT S4B 703 - - S T Ts =4f TR I
20 mnzng banoe 1,306,020 21335.000 4,350 030 2006 000
Plua i e tised 2 remi i I -, 45208 - A0z &5 450
Tl (333 nona= apphrat = 10 e d2bt mazin BoWSEITE f TR & -5 - B MI%EIi5 & oo
Hod aopdoioib e b the d2 0L marzing
G b ze dar e al b d i 5  BO00 5 TEO0M S 5 I EEOON0 2 TEOGID
Toml G0 0s0nds il azefzabis w the dasl indrgan H SRS 5 230E % - B E3 aEnnI: 5 TE TR0
Trtal Gl ek 5 SdnITE 5 |TOGEE % =5 "5 IGEGITE £ 17830 2
Zapkal kase ablljecions 1548 32 2037 =57 a + 1 A A 3 UET
Swzal arurce rafening revazue hontds ERLIT| pn] 2 B0 2 TEE [0 2553 60
Tela guisTng ng debt E MITEET 8 (3EMGES ] - i MMiEEr & FiAdl e

AL dune 30, 2015, e Gounty's Wetal autslanding general obligatan (GC) dabs in the governmental funds
wias 515645 17TE. The cutsfarding balance consists of the saries 2007 Kaowes Fire Tax Disretr GO
Bands, sories 2000 G0 refunding bands, =aries 20171 Detention Canter &0 bonda, and the series 2015
Eche Hills Commearca Park S0 bonds,

&5 a part of the prosess of sswing new debl, credil raling assessmenls are reviewad by credit rafing
ggancias, The two mais credd raling agencies are Moody's Investors Sarvice and Stancard & Poors
Each rating agency interorels the Sounty's data slighty differendiy. resulting in possibly diffierant ratinga
O July 3, 20748, Standard & Foor's upgraded the County’s ratings from “AA7 - to "AAT; whils the Couniy's
rabng remarns at “Aa2" with Moody's Investors Servica. These astablz band retings are 3 clear indicatics
of the continued sound finzncial conditicn of the County and are & primary factar in keening inkeres! costs
lowe on thae County's ouistanding debs,

The State of South Carclina limits the amount of general abligation dett that a urit of govemmant can
igsue 10 5 percant of the tolal assessed value of taxabls propedy located within thet covernment's
boundanes,  The legal debd margin, {amounl of geraral oblioation debt that the Cousty could koo
witheo! & raferendum), for tha County s approsomately 2287 million which = & 31 percant herease iem
the prior year. 30 cabt issued for spacial tax districts coss not apply ta the legal debt margin caloulation.

The outsiznding Ealanca of the serieas 2014 apasial source refunding revenue oond is 52,758,000, Since
zpacial source rafunding revenue hords are repaid wilh special rovenues and not with property tawxes,
thay are not included in the calculaticns of 1ne alove stated deal Friks

The 2013 capilal lease purchase had an outstanding balance of 1,844,489, The entarprize furds do not
hiane ary ewsting ar pending bonded debt or capital lzases

Addiionz’ly, the Courty maintaing two clsed municipal schid wasle (M3W) landfils znd two open
construction and demaliticn (C&0) wasle lardlils. A porfion ef the long-term [abiltiss includes an
estimate for the closure and post-clesurs care cosl of basas landiills. During 2075 the estimated lizaility
wiars reduced by 5125.533 dus o the cument years portan. The balance of the estimatad liability fior
closura and post-closure care coats at Jums 30 2005 &5 523 million.

Included in the long-term liabilties are the compensated absences, which consist of accruad scoumulaied

ungaid vacation time, eamad by Cousty empleyeas, Tha estimated lang-tanm liazilicy for annua! leave s
51.250,214 for the gevernmental activities and 323,339 for the business-ype activities.
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Finally, the long-term liabilities include the net post-employment benefit obligation as well as the net
pension liability for state retirement. At fiscal year end, the net post-employment benefit obligation for the
governmental activities was $2,828,196, an increase of $399,702 from 2014. The business-type activities
net post-employment benefit obligation increased $37,609 during 2015 to $131,554 at fiscal year-end. At
fiscal year-end, the net pension liability for the governmental activities was $30,831,126, a decrease of
$1.6 million from 2014. The business-type activities net pension liability decreased $60,047 during 2015
to $1,436,347 at fiscal year-end.

Additional information regarding the County’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 6 on pages 49 - 53
of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The national economy continues to impact Oconee County, although there are definite indications of
improvement. The County's unemployment rate, as of October 2015, was 5.3 percent which is lower than
the October 2014 rate of 6.3 percent. The State’s unemployment rates for the same periods are 5.8
percent and 6.6 percent, respectively. Oconee County continues to make significant investments in
economic development including the development of land specifically to attract industry and thereby
employment opportunities to Oconee County. These investments combined with our proximity to the
Interstate 85 corridor, the outstanding natural beauty of our mountains and lakes, an excellent school
system, and our workforce’s outstanding work ethic have placed the County in an excellent position for
future growth.

Oconee County Ordinance 2015-01 establishes the budget and provides for the levy of taxes for ordinary
County purposes for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. Appropriations in the
2015-2016 annual adopted budgets provide funding for:

o Governmental funds:
o General Fund, $41,848,004,
o Special revenues funds for:
= Emergency Services Protection, $1,702,000,
Road Maintenance, $1,282,600,
Tri-County Technical College Operations, $1,786,000,
Victims Services — Sheriff's Office, $138,264,
Victims Services — Solicitor's Office, $61,430,
= 911 Communications, $504,000,
o Capital projects funds for:
»  Bridge and Culvert, $1,725,000,
= Capital Projects (lease purchase), $4,111,551,
= Economic Development, $2,812,000,
o Debt service fund, $3,046,679,

o Enterprise funds:
o Rock Quarry, $3,269,548, and
o Oconee FOCUS, $2,278,241.

The total budget for these funds is $64,565,317. The General Fund’s adopted budget for fiscal year 2016
totals $41,848,004, which is more than the prior year's budget by $652,721. The increase is due to the
addition of staff to operate the new detention center facility that is expected to be operational in the first
half of the fiscal year.

The total millage levied for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 for the County’s incorporated areas is 71

mills and the unincorporated areas is 73.9 mills. The unincorporated and the incorporated millage rates
did not change from the prior year.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to:

Finance Director

Oconee County Finance Department
415 South Pine Street

Walhalla, South Carolina 29691

Or on the web at: www.OconeeSC.com.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015
Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Keowee Fire
Activities Activities Total Tax District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19135841 § 2,183,547 § 21,319,388 § 611,017
investments 9,735,793 496,670 10,232,463 -
Receivables:
Taxes 1,322,274 - 1,322,274 7.399
Accounts 194,278 197,071 391,349 -
Due from other govemments 1,465,865 15,882 1,481,747 11,250
Internal balances 5,410,737 (5.410,737) - -
Due from component unit 680,000 - 680,000 -
Inventories 182,071 368,904 550,975 -
Prepaid expenses 8,189 - 8,189 -
Seized assets 194,160 - 194,160 -
Assets held for resale 56,419 - 56,419
Assets held for economic development 8,566,242 - 8,566,242 -
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 69,653,064 393,590 70,046,654 -
Depreciable, net 62,525,470 15,282,724 77,808,194 1,393,105
Total assets 179,130,403 13,627,651 192,658,054 2,022,771
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 8,897 - 8.897 -
Pension - South Carolina Retirement System 1,794,436 122,655 1,917,091 -
Pension - South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 1,112,208 - 1,112,208 62,627
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,915,541 122,655 3,038,186 62,627
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,322,439 600,599 3,923,038 -
Accrued liabilities 684,165 37,481 721,646 6,700
Uneamed revenues 183,273 - 183,273 -
Due to primary government - - - 680,000
Claims and judgments - 150,000 160,000
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 3,640,662 36,502 3,677,164 3,031
Due in more than one year 22,983,115 188,411 23,171,526 27,268
Net Pension Liability:
South Carolina Retirement System 21,013,693 1,436,347 22,450,040 -
South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 9,817,433 - 9,817,433 600,805
Total liabilities 61,644,780 2,449,340 64,094,120 1,317,804
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - South Carolina Retirement System 1,771,607 121,094 1,892,701 -
Pension - South Carolina Police Officers’ Retirement System 1,135,949 - 1,135,949 69,518
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,807,556 121,094 3,028,650 69,518
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 115,776,114 15,676,314 131,452,428 676,142
Restricted for debt service 1,682,706 - 1,682,706 -
Restricted for culture and recreation 315,699 - 315,699 -
Restricted for public safety 2,549,299 - 2,549,299 15,432
Unrestricted (2,830,210) (4,596,442) (7.426,652) 6,502
Total net position $ 117493608 §$ 11,079,872 $ 128,573,480 $ 698,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Keowee Fire
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Tax District
Primary government:
Govemmental activities:
General govemment $ 10,126,223 $ 957,289 $ 107,356 $ - $ (9,061,578) $ - $ (9.061,578) 3 -
Public safety 20,502,284 1,121,939 973,344 - (18,407,001) - (18,407,001) -
Transportation 6,916,146 840,747 - 923,373 (5,152,026) - (5,152,026) -
Public works 3,887,619 1,143,107 24,532 - (2,719,980) - (2,719,980) -
Culture and recreation 3,343,201 378,066 144,559 - (2,820,576) - (2,820,576) -
Judicial services 3,233,141 779,808 178,891 - (2,274,442) - (2,274,442) -
Education 1,066,000 - - - (1,066,000} - (1,066,000) -
Health and welfare 400,441 - 259,942 - (140,499) - (140,499) -
Economic development 1,291,090 - 200,000 1,608,039 516,949 - 516,949 -
Interest on long-term debt 642,981 - - - (642,981) - (642,981) -
Total governmental activities 51,409,126 5,220,956 1,888,624 2,531,412 (41,768,134) - (41,768,134) -
Business-type activities:
FOCUS 2,324,110 478,009 - - - (1.846,101) (1,846,101) -
Rock quarry 2,760,715 4,166,519 - - - 1,405,804 1,405,804 -
Total business-type activities 5,084,825 4,644,528 - - - 440,297 {440,297) -
Total primary government $ 56,493,951 $ 9,865,484 $ 1,888,624 $ 2,631,412 (41,768,134) %440,297) (42,208,431) -
Component unit:
Keowee Fire Tax District $ 758,182 $ 51,000 $ 22,447 $ 5,000 - - - (679,735)
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes 32,067,162 - 32,067,162 -
Public safety 1,377,102 - 1,377,102 676,560
Debt service 3,587,523 - 3,587,523 -
Capital projects 519,413 - 519,413 -
Economic development 1,546,525 - 1,546,525 -
Education 1,110,354 - 1,110,354 -
Other taxes and licenses 883,996 - 883,996 -
Grants and contributions not restricted for a specific purpose 2,760,812 - 2,760,812 45,000
Unrestricted investment earnings 521,943 13,883 535,826 751
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - 5,567
Insurance recovery 203,750 - 203,750 -
Transfers 750.000 (750,000) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 45,328,580 (736,117) 44,592,463 727,878
Change in net position 3,560,446 (1,176,414) 2,384,032 48,143
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 113,933,162 12,256,286 126,189,448 649,933
Net position, end of year $ 117,493,608 $ 11,079,872 $ 128,573,480 $ 698,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Taxes receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from component unit

Advances to other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Inventories

Seized assets

Assets held for resale

Assets held for economic development
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - seized property
Unavailable revenue - intergovemmental
Unavailable revenue - forfeited land commission

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:

Prepaid expenditures

Inventories

Assets held for resale

Assets held for economic development

Seized assets

Advances to other funds
Restricted for:

General government

Public safety

Transportation

Cutture and recreation

Judicial services

Education

Health and welfare

Economic development

Capital projects

Debt service
Committed:

OJRSA
Assigned:

Solid waste reserve

Heazlth care reserve

OPEB reserve

Subsequent year's budget
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Other Total
Capital Economic Governmental Governmental

General Projects Development Funds Funds
$ 13,420,565 $ 1,919,204 $ 409,509 $ 3,386,563 $ 19,135,841
785,793 - 3,000,000 5,950,000 9,735,793
1,077,748 - 29,723 214,803 1,322,274
132,763 - - 61,515 194,278
815,276 58,646 - 591,943 1,465,865
578,838 - - - 578,838
- - - 680,000 680,000
4,894,174 - - - 4,894,174
6,656 - - 1,533 8,189
182,071 - - - 182,071
- - - 194,160 194,160
56,419 56,419
2,754,025 - 5,812,217 - 8,566,242
$ 24,704,328 $ 1,977,850 $ 9,251,449 $ 11,080,517 $  47.014,144
$ 1,769,306 $ 1,176,750 $ 86,149 $ 290,234 $ 3,322,439
- - - 2,275 2,275
493,057 - - 5,691 498,748
- - - 60,000 60,000
2,198 - - 181,075 183,273
2,264,561 1,176,750 86,149 539,275 4,066,735
949,878 - 25,329 185,032 1,160,239
- - - 194,160 194,160
- 36,830 - 223,418 260,248
56,419 - - - 56,419
1,006,297 36,830 25,329 602,610 1,671,066
6,656 - - 1,533 8,189
182,071 - - - 182,071
56,419 - - - 56,419
2,754,025 - 5,812,217 - 8,566,242
- - - 194,160 194,160
4,894,174 - - - 4,894,174
- - - 15,221 15,221
- - - 2,549,299 2,549,299
- - - 779,674 779,674
- - - 316,699 315,699
- - - 136,458 136,458
- 1,044,835 1,044,835
- - - 11,791 11,791
- - - 1,088 1,088
- 764,270 1,497,754 3,211,598 5,473,622
- - - 1,682,706 1,682,706
- - 1,830,000 - 1,830,000
2,297,700 - - - 2,297,700
2,592,895 - - - 2,592,895
622,749 - - - 622,749
345,996 - - - 345,996
7,680,785 - - (5,430) 7,675,355
21,433,470 764,270 9,139,971 9,938,632 41,276,343
$ 24,704,328 $ 1,977,850 $ 9,251,449 $ 11,080,517 $ 47,014,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Total fund balances for governmental funds:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the

funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the

funds.

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are therefore not reported in the
funds. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the Statement of Net Position net of issuance

premiums, discounts, and refunding deferral amounts.

General obligation bonds $
Unamortized refunding deferral amount on general obligation bonds
Capital lease obligations
Special source revenue bonds
Other post-employment benefits
Post-closure care liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total long-term liabilities

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when

due.

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other Total
Capital Economic Governmental Governmental
General Projects Development Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 30770115 § - $ 1544601 $ 7,707,980 $ 40,022,706
Other taxes - - - 692,870 692,870
Intergovernmental 3,205,335 223,495 1,507,500 2,208,883 7,145,213
Licenses, permits and fees 3,125,355 - - 11,210 3,136,565
Fines and forfeitures 291,686 - - 105,594 397,280
Charges for services 1,511,531 - - - 1,511,531
Interest revenue 471,617 18,364 38 31,924 521,943
Contributions and donations - - - 27,909 27,909
Other revenues 129,377 - 200,000 45,055 374,432
Total revenues 39,505,016 241,859 3,252,139 10,831,435 53,830,449
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 9,331,112 6,505 - 2,589 9,340,206
Public safety 17,100,408 - - 2,427,652 19,528,060
Transportation 3,486,815 - - 1,875,633 5,372,448
Public works 3,688,058 - - 24,532 3,712,590
Culture and recreation 2,770,670 - - 401,165 3,171,835
Judicial services 2,721,035 - - 180,620 2,901,655
Education - - - 1,066,000 1,066,000
Health and welfare 240,349 - - 154,879 395,228
Economic development 544,645 - 1,240,445 100,000 1,885,090
Capital outlay - 13,983,052 182,218 177,717 14,342,987
Debt service:
Principal 1,143,508 - - 2,335,000 3,478,508
Interest 48,004 - - 695,866 743,870
Total expenditures 41,084,604 13,989,557 1,422,663 9,441,653 65,938,477
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,579,588) (13,747,698) 1,829,476 1,389,782 (12,108,028)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 781,857 - 72,725 40,000 894,582
Transfers out (112,725) - - (31,857) (144,582)
Insurance recoveries 168,154 23,896 - 11,700 203,750
Proceeds from the sale of
capital assets 42,808 64,300 - - 107,108
Total other financing sources 880,094 88,196 72,725 19,843 1,060,858
Net change in fund balances (699,494) (13,659,502) 1,902,201 1,409,625 (11,047,170)
Fund balances, beginning of year 22,132,864 14,423,772 7,237,770 8,529,007 52,323,513
Fund balances, end of year $ 21433470 $ 764270 $ 9,139,971 $§ 9938632 §$§ 41,276,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (11,047,170)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay $ 17,487,709
Depreciation expense (6,030,810) 11,456,899

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions (i.e., sales and donations) is to decrease net position. (141,953)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds. 185,373

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the cument financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. Also, the refunding deferral amount, which is the difference in the amount that is sent to the paying agent
to be escrowed for payment of refunded debt and the principal amount of debt refunded, is amortized as an

Repayment of the principal of long-term debt $ 3,478,508
Amortization of premium on long-term debt 94,114
Amortization of the refunding deferral amount on the
refunding general obligation bonds {13,345) 3,569,277

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of cumrent financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. The following
amounts represent the net liability changes using the full accrual method of accounting:

Pension liability $ (275,922)
Landfill postclosure liability 126,689
Compensated absences 76,835
Accrued interest on long-term debt 20,120
OPEB liability (399,702) (451,980)

S 3560446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses, permits and fees
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Interest revenue
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government:
County council
Legislative delegation
Non-departmental expenditures
Information technology
Procurement
Facilities maintenance
Registration and elections
Soil and water conservation
Administrator's office
Vehicle maintenance
Register of deeds
Assessor
Auditor
Board of assessment appeals
Tax collector
Treasurer
Direct aid
Administrative Services
Total general government

Public safety:
Sheriff's department
Law enforcement center
Communications
Animal control
Coroner
Building codes
Emergency management
Fire services
Emergency services

Total public safety

Transportation:
County airport
Roads department
Total transportation

Public works
Solid waste

(Continued)

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ 31,182,317 § 31,182,317 $ 30,770,115 8 (412,202)
3,628,177 3,528,177 3,205,335 (322,842)
2,823,182 2,823,182 3,125,355 302,173
333,500 333,500 291,686 (41,814)
1,829,600 1,829,600 1,511,531 (318,069)
252,850 252,850 471,617 218,767
261,816 261,816 129,377 (132,439)
40,211,442 40,211,442 39,505,016 (706,426)
296,549 284,799 282,312 2,487
86,796 86,796 86,555 241
1,609,700 1,615,132 991,382 623,750
1,085,177 898,914 887,974 10,940
156,952 158,452 157,565 887
1,128,483 1,147,838 1,139,640 8,198
184,520 218,820 218,521 299
72,923 72,923 72,254 669
462,205 513,377 463,507 49,870
842,031 799,771 789,892 9,879
318,414 319,614 319,260 354
1,081,826 1,043,520 1,026,405 17,115
462,869 462,869 460,275 2,594
11,624 11,624 3,748 7,876
451,193 451,193 406,251 44 942
536,256 536,256 471,204 65,052
637,610 637,610 636,553 1,057
915,468 928,077 917,814 10,263
10,340,596 10,187,585 9,331,112 856,473
7,097,408 7,474,500 7,453,019 21,481
2,981,440 2,980,215 2,947,915 32,300
1,524,092 1,405,275 1,404,723 552
524,033 527,404 511,972 15,432
164,241 564,392 554,363 10,029
610,707 676,099 675,586 513
1,585,000 1,585,000 1,585,320 (320)
1,579,452 1,661,334 1,649,987 1,347
368,763 318,263 317,523 740
16,435,136 17,182,482 17,100,408 82,074
865,642 879,472 874,428 5,044
2,626,487 2,651,732 2,622,387 29,345
3,492,129 3,631,204 3,496,815 34,389
3,566,255 3,689,119 3,688,058 1,061
22
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Expenditures: (Continued)
Culture and recreation:
Library $ 1,345,356 1,314,456 $ 1,313,819 3 637
Parks, recreation and tourism 483,184 626,498 621,448 5,050
High Falls Park 295,933 301,226 302,245 (1,019)
South Cove Park 376,799 329,653 328,899 754
Chau Ram Park 197,061 199,854 204,259 (4,405)
Total culture and recreation 2,698,333 2,771,687 2,770,670 1,017
Judicial services:
Clerk of court 661,120 659,140 658,313 827
Probate judge 380,493 407,643 406,892 751
Solicitor 696,914 691,914 691,447 467
Public defender 200,000 200,000 200,000 -
Magistrate office 722,898 765,382 764,383 999
Total judicial 2,661,425 2,724,079 2,721,035 3,044
Health and welfare:
Department of social services 12,500 12,500 10,075 2,425
Health department 80,027 60,007 35,947 24,060
Veteran's affairs 189,460 194,480 194,327 1563
Total health and welfare 281,987 266,987 240,349 26,638
Economic development:
Economic development 512,051 549,256 544,645 4,611
Debt service 854,152 1,191,512 1,191,512 -
Total expenditures 40,842,064 42,093,911 41,084,604 1,009,307
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (630,622) (1,882,469) (1,579,588) 302,881
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 804,000 804,000 781,857 (22,143)
Transfers out (112,725) (112,725) (112,725) -
Insurance recoveries 142,986 142,986 168,154 25,168
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 36,855 36,855 42,808 5,953
Total other financing sources 871,116 871,116 880,094 8,978
Net change in fund balances 240,494 (1,011,353) (699,494) 311,859
Fund balances, beginning of year 22,132,964 22,132,964 22,132,964 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 22,373,458 21,121,611 $ 21,433,470 $ 311,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Rock Quarry FOCUS Totals
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 2,183,547 - $ 2,183,547
Investments 496,670 - 496,670
Receivables
Accounts, net of allowance 44,558 152,513 197,071
Due from other governments - 15,882 15,882
Inventories 368,804 - 368,804
Total current assets 3,093,679 168,395 3,262,074
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 393,590 - 393,590
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 2,424 347 12,858,377 15,282,724
Total noncurrent assets 2,817,937 12,858,377 15,676,314
Total assets 5,911,616 13,026,772 18,938,388
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - South Carolina Retirement System 107,434 15,221 122,655
Total deferred outflows of resources 107,434 15,221 122,655
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 32,179 568,420 600,599
Accrued liabilities 31,479 6,002 37,481
Current portion - compensated absences 31,840 4,662 36,502
Due to other funds - 576,563 576,563
Claims and judgments - 150,000 150,000
Total current liabilities 95,498 1,305,647 1,401,145
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion 44 577 12,280 56,857
Advances from other funds - 4,834,174 4,834,174
Net OPEB obligation 103,608 27,946 131,554
Net pension liability - South Carolina Retirement System 1,258,103 178,244 1,436,347
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,406,288 5,052,644 6,458,932
Total liabilities 1,501,786 6,358,291 7,860,077
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - South Carolina Retirement System 106,067 15,027 121,094
Total deferred inflows of resources 106,067 15,027 121,094
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 2,817,937 12,858,377 15,676,314
Unrestricted 1,593,260 (6,189,702) (4,596,442)
Total net position 3 4,411,197 6,668,675 $ 11,079,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Rock Quarry FOCUS Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Outside customer sales $ 4,135,711 $ 476,688 $ 4,612,399
Miscellaneous operating revenues 30,808 1,321 32,129
Total operating revenues 4,166,519 478,009 4,644,528
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,064,166 162,468 1,226,634
Supplies 36,883 674 37,557
Electricity and natural gas 73,225 110,010 183,235
Petroleum, oil and lubricants 217,919 - 217,919
Machinery, equipment repairs and maintenance 546,997 346,047 893,044
Professional services 382,979 413,624 796,603
Claims - 150,000 150,000
Miscellaneous 94,170 4,194 98,364
Depreciation and depletion 344,376 933,795 1,278,171
Total operating expenses 2,760,715 2,120,812 4,881,527
Operating income (loss) 1,405,804 (1,642,803) (236,999)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
™ Interest income (expense) 13,883 (203,298) (189,415)
Total non-operating income (expense) 13,883 (203,298) (189,415)
Income (loss) before transfers 1,419,687 (1,846,101) (426,414)
P TRANSFERS
Transfers out (750,000) - (750,000)
A Total transfers (750,000) - (750,000)
Change in net position 669,687 (1,846,101) (1,176,414)
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 3,741,510 8,514,776 12,256,286
Net position, end of year 3 4,411,197 3 6,668,675 $ 11,079,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Rock Quarry FOCUS Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 4,127,757 $ 915,759 $ 5,043,516
Payments to suppliers (1,414,862) (425,350) (1,840,212)
Payments to employees (1,022,139) (155,200) (1,177,339)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,690,756 335,209 2,025,965
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out (750,000) - (750,000)
Net cash used in noncapital
financing activities (750,000) - (750,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,200,387) (335,209) (1,535,596)
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (1,200,387) (335,209) (1,535,596)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (496,670) - (496,670)
Interest and dividends received 13,883 - 13,883
Net cash used in investing activities (482,787) - (482,787)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (742,418) - (742,418)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 2,925,865 - 2,925,865
End of year $ 2,183,547 3 - $ 2,183,547

(Continued)
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Rock Quarry FOCUS Totals

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

-~ Operating income (loss) $ 1,405,804 $ (1,642,803) $ (236,999)
PN Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
™ Depreciation 344,376 933,795 1,278,171
Changes in assets and liabilities:
= Increase in accounts receivable (38,762) (122,931) (161,693)
Increase in due from other governments - (15,882) (15,882)
o™ Increase in inventories (61,720) - (61,720)
e Increase in deferred outflows of resources (37,111) (5,258) (42,369)
Decrease in accounts payable (17,330) 430,395 413,065
(™ Increase in accrued liabilities 16,095 1,981 18,076
‘ Increase in claims and judgments - 150,000 150,000
™ Increase in Net OPEB obligation 21,122 16,487 37,609
Increase in compensated absences 4,810 5,287 10,097
Increase in due to other funds - 576,563 576,563
™ Decrease in net pension liability (52,595) (7,452) (60,047)
- Increase in deferred inflows of resources 108,067 15,027 121,094
™ Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,690,756 $ 335,209 $ 2,025,865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,290,519
Taxes receivable 2644142
Total assets 10,934,661
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies 10,934,661
Total liabilities $ 10,934,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Oconee County operates under a council-administrator form of government. For financial statement
purposes, the County has divided its operations into the functions of the general government, public
safety, transportation, public works, culture and recreation, judicial services, education, health and
welfare and economic development.

The primary government financial statements of Oconee County have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

Oconee County, South Carolina - the primary government - is a political subdivision of the State of
South Carolina. A five-member council elected from single-member districts governs it. These
financial statements present all the fund types of the County. Component units may be presented by
two different methods. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the County’s operations. Discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the County. The component unit discussed below is included in the County’s reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationship with the County.

The Keowee Fire Tax District (the “District”) is a discretely presented component unit which was
established by Oconee County Ordinance 2003-12 in August 2003. The District is governed by five
elected commissioners that serve staggered terms. The District is fiscally dependent upon the
primary government. The district has a June 30 year-end. Separate financial statements for the
District can be obtained from the District's administrative office at 115 Maintenance Road, Salem,
SC 29676.

The County has no blended component units.
Basis of Presentation
The County's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a

statement of net position and a statement of activities and fund financial statements, which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the County
as a primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds and component units that are fiduciary in nature. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the statements. The statements
distinguish between those activities of the County that are governmental and those that are
considered business-type activities.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activities for the County at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the County's
governmental activities and for the business-type activities of the County. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the
goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that
is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the County.

Fund financial statements

During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the County
at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is
on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

The County reports the following governmental fund types:
General Fund - The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for

all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Fund financial statements (continued)

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds are used to account for and report the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures
for specified purposes other than capital projects or debt service.

Capital Projects Funds - The capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the acquisition of capital assets or
construction of major capital facilities.

The County has the following major capital projects funds:

1. Capital Projects Fund - is used to account for funds to be used for the acquisition of
capital equipment or construction of major capital facilities.

2. Economic Development Fund - is used to account for the acquisition and construction
of facilities or infrastructure for the promotion of economic development within the
County.

Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the payment of general long-term debt
principal and interest and related costs.
Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the Council has decided
that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for
management accountability.
The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Rock Quarry Fund accounts for the activities of the County's rock quarry operations.

The FOCUS Fund accounts for the activities of the County's broadband operations.
Additionally, the County reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Fund - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position.

The agency fund, a fiduciary fund type, is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does

not involve measurement of results of operations. The County's fiduciary fund category includes
agency funds for education, clerk of court, family court, property taxes, magistrates and others.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
management focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. All assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of the County are included on the statement of net position.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's
enterprise funds functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Fund financial statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded when
payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Fund financial statements (continued)

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on
the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures
and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner
in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared.

Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to
better identify funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position. The statement of changes
in net position presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total
position. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the County finances and
meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation or capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Agency funds have no measurement focus, but rather are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities).

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences
in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of unearned revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Revenue - exchange and non-exchange transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified
accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and
become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current field
year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the County, available means expected to be received within 60 days of
fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving equal value
in return, include property taxes, grants, entittements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlement and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements,
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first
permitted, matching requirements, in which the County must provide local resources to be used
for a specified purpose and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the
County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at year-end: delinquent taxes, sales tax, grants, interest, and fees and
charges for services.

Unearned revenue

The County reports unearned revenue on its statement of net position and governmental funds
balance sheet. In both the government-wide and governmental fund statements, resources
received that are "intended to finance" a future period are reported as unearned revenue. In
subsequent periods, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of net
position and governmental funds balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Expenses / expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting
pericd in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as assigned fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the
subsequent year. The assigned fund balance for subsequent year's budget totaled $345,996 for
the year ended June 30, 2015.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity
Cash and investments

Cash includes demand deposits as well as cash equivalents and short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the County.

Investments with a readily determined fair value are stated at fair value which approximates cost.
State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies,
general obligations (not revenue obligations) of the State of South Carolina and its political
subdivisions, savings and loan associations to the extent of federal insurance, certificates of
deposits collaterally secured, repurchase agreements secured by the foregoing obligations, and
the State Treasurer's Investment Pool. The State Treasurer's Investment Pool is a 2a7-like pool,
which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but has a policy that
it will operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. There is no regulatory oversight of the pool.

Receivables

All trade and property taxes receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Intergovernmental receivable

Amounts due from federal grants represent reimbursable costs, which have been incurred by the
County but have not been reimbursed by the grantor agency. Costs under grant programs are
recognized as expenditures in the period in which they are incurred by the County.

Inventories and prepaid assets

The County's inventories consist of consumable supplies and processed rock. The inventory
valuation methods used approximate cost based on the average cost method. The costs of
inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased or
produced.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges
and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets
with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as the projects are constructed.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary capital assets is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Capital assets (continued)

All reported capital assets except land and site preparation are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure 25-45
Buildings and improvements 16-40
Equipment and vehicles 2-25

Compensated absences

it is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave. Vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations and retirements.

Deferred inflows / outflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense / expenditure) until then. The County has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category. One item is a deferred charge on refunding,
which is reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or
the refunding debt. The other item relates to the County's Retirement Plan and is reported in the
government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position. Experience gains or losses
result from periodic studies by the County’s actuary, which adjust the net position liability for actual
experience for certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the assumed
dates of retirement of plan members. These experience gains or losses are recorded as deferred
outflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining
service lives of the plan members. Additionally, any contributions made by the County to the
pension plan before year-end but subsequent to the measurement date of the County’s net
pension liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources.

37



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Deferred inflows / outflows of resources (continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has two types of
items that qualify for reporting in this category, one of which arises only under a modified accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, the items, unavailable revenue, are reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from
property taxes, seized property, intergovernmental, and the forfeited land commission and these
amounts are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period in which the
amounts become available. The other item relates to the County's Retirement Plan and is
reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position. The differences
between projected investment return on pension investments and actual return on those
investments are deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five year period, resulting
in recognition as deferred inflows of resources.

Interfund transactions

Transactions among County's funds that would be treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses if they involved organizations external to County government are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved.

Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it
which are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing
fund and as reductions of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Transactions which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund receiving revenues to a fund
through which the revenues are to be expended are separately reported in the respective fund's
operating statements.

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements. Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances".
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Interfund transactions (continued)

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances within the
governmental and proprietary funds and are reported as nonspendable fund balance in the
governmental funds.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the lives of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed
when incurred. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported
as other financing uses.

Fund equity

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can
be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either a) not in spendable form or b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
The County has classified assets held for development, inventories, prepaid items, and long-term
portions of receivables and advances as being nonspendable as these items are not expected to
be converted to cash or are not expected to be converted to cash within the next current fiscal
year.

Restricted - This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the
use of the resources through being either a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a
debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Fund equity (continued)

Committed - This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of
decision making authority, the County Council, through passage of an ordinance. These amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the County Council removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially
committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned - This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to be
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. Through resolution, this
intent can be expressed by the County Council or by an official or body to which the County
Council delegates authority. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance
for all governmental funds except for the General Fund.

Unassigned - This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The
unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balances of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by the offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts.

The County would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources and
the assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively
spend unassigned resources first and to defer the use of these other classified funds.

County Council has established a policy to maintain a General Fund unassigned fund balance
between 25 and 30 percent of regular budgeted General Fund expenditures. At June 30, 2015,
the County did not attain the minimum fund balance due to the fiscal year 2012 and 2013 shortfall
attributable to the long-term advances to the FOCUS fund, the addition of the County’s portion of
the net pension liabilities attributable to the SCRS and PORS retirement plans, and amounts
assigned for the subsequent year’s budget.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Net position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets.
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through
the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments.

Restricted resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed, but Council reserves the
right to selectively spend unrestricted resources first and to defer the use of the restricted funds.
Use of estimates

The financial statements include estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information

County Council adopts annual budgets for General Fund, Emergency Services Protection District,
Road Maintenance Tax, Miscellaneous Special Revenue, 911 Communications, Sheriff's Victims'
Assistance, Solicitor's Victims' Assistance, Library State Aid, Tri-County Tech, Debt Service, and
Bridges and Culverts Capital Project Funds revenue and expenditures prior to the beginning of each
fiscal year. The adopted budgets specify expenditure limits appropriated to each County department.
The County Administrator can approve transfers within departments. County Council must approve
transfers between departments or funds. The budgets are prepared on a consistent basis of
accounting with actual financial statement results, including significant accruals, to provide
meaningful comparisons. The other special revenue funds are budgeted as grants are awarded and
are budgeted on a project basis, therefore, some grants span several years. The other capital
projects funds are budgeted on a project basis and some projects span several years.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2015, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Fund Excess

General Fund

Emergency management $ 320

High Falls Park 1,019

Chau Ram Park 4,405
Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund

Public safety 207,534

Public works 24,532

Health and welfare 154,879

Culture and recreation 10,240

Economic development 100,000
911 Fund

Public safety 33,709

Capital outlay 5,225
Sheriff's Victim Assistance Fund

Public safety 2,837
Solicitor's Victim Assistance Fund

Judicial services 1,048
Library State Aid Fund

Culture and recreation 1,116
Debt Service Fund

Interest 1,793
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Total deposits and investments at June 30, 2015, are summarized below:
As reported in the Statement of Net Position:
Primary government
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,319,388
Investments 10,232,463
Agency Fund - cash and cash equivalents 8,290,519
Component Unit - cash and cash equivalents 611,017
$ 40,453,387
Cash deposited with financial institutions $ 14,863,319
SC State Investment Pool 15,357,605
Certificates of deposit 10,232,463
$ 40,453,387
Custodial credit risk
This is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
County's policy regarding cash custodial credit risk is to require the banks with which the County
maintains deposits to coliateralize or insure the County's funds. As of June 30, 2015, the carrying
amount of the County's deposits was $39,842,370 and the bank balance was $40,955,471. All of the
County's deposits at year-end were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in
the pledging financial institutions' trust departments in the County's name. Petty cash funds of
$8,289 are reflected as cash.
The Keowee Fire Tax District, a discretely presented component unit, does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk. The carrying amount of deposits for the District was $611,017 and the bank
balance was $625,286 at June 30, 2015. The total cash balances were covered by federal
depository insurance coverage. From time to time during the year, the District may have cash on
deposit with banks that exceed the balance insured by federal depository insurance.
As of June 30, 2015, the County has the following investments:
Fair Investment Maturities (in years)
Investment Type Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10
SC State Investment Pool $ 15,357,605 $ 15,357,605 $ - $ -
Certificates of deposit 10,232,463 384,245 8,418,010 1,430,208

$ 25,590,068 $ 15,741,850 $ 8,418,010 $ 1,430,208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

This is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the
investment. The County's policy is to invest in only those securities allowed by state statutes and that
are highly rated. The County is invested in certificates of deposit with varying maturity dates and the
State South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool. The County’s certificates of deposit are
properly collateralized for those deposits that are in excess of federal depository insurance. The
South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool is not rated, but generally, investments in this
pool are collateralized by debt securities in corporate obligations, state or political subdivision
obligations of investment grade or higher quality and in federal agency securities.

Interest rate risk

This is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the
market interest rates. The County's policy is to minimize interest rate risk by structuring the
investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities in the open market, and investing operating funds
primarily in shorter-term securities, liquid asset funds, money market funds, or similar investment
pools limiting the average maturity in accordance with the County's requirements.

Concentration of credit risk

This is the risk of loss aftributable to the magnitude of the County’s investment in a single issuer.
The County's policy is to minimize the concentration of credit risk by diversifying the investment
portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be
minimized, although there is no formal limit on the amount the County may invest in any one issuer.

Custodial credit risk

This is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the County may not be able to
recover the value of investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.
The County's policy is to minimize custodial credit risk by limiting investments to the types of
securities allowed by law and pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealer, intermediaries
and advisors with which the County will do business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4.

RECEIVABLES AND PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied on the assessed value of real and personal property, excluding
automobiles, as of December 31 of the calendar year preceding the fiscal year. The levy date for
automobiles is the first day of the month in which the vehicle license expires and the tax is due by
the end of the same month. Liens attach to the property at the time taxes are levied. Taxes are due
without penalty, for real and personal property excluding automobiles, through January 15. After that
time, penalties are added depending on the date paid as follows:

January 16 through February 1 3% of tax
February 2 through March 16 10% of tax
March 17 and thereafter 15% of tax plus cost

Property tax revenues are recognized when due or past due and collectible within the current pericd
or soon enough thereafter (defined as 60 days) to pay liabilities of the current period. The County
bills and collects its own property taxes, and also collects taxes for the Keowee Key Fire District and
the Oconee County School District. Collections of the County taxes and remittance of them to the
Districts are accounted for in the agency funds. Also, the County collects taxes for surrounding
municipalities. Unavailable property tax revenue represents that portion of property taxes which is
deemed not available to pay current expenditures.

Receivables as of June 30, 2015, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are
as follows:

Capital Economic Other

General Projects Development Governmental
Taxes receivable $ 1,099,743 $ - 3 30,330 $ 219,187
Accounts receivable 221,263 - - 61,515
Due from other governments 815,276 58,646 - 591,943
Less: Allowance (110,495) - (607) (4,384)
Net receivables $ 2025787 $ 58646 $ 29,723 % 868,261

Rock Quarry FOCUS Total

Taxes receivable 3 - $ - $ 1,349,260
Accounts receivable 44,558 162,613 479,849
Due from other governments - 15,882 1,481,747
Less: Allowance - - (115,486)
Net receivables $ 44558 % 168,395 $ 3,195,370
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the County’s governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 was

as follows:
Balance Balance
Governmental Activities June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2015
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land 3 3,249630 $ - 8 - 8 119,436 § 3,369,066
Other costs 36,841,456 45,000 - - 36,886,456
Construction in progress 14,184,682 15,923,588 - (710,728) 29,397,542
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 54,275,768 15,868,588 - (591,292) 69,653,064
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and improvements 54,488,365 - (65,370) 357,295 54,780,290
Equipment and vehicles 41,512,359 817,955 (974,215) 7,900 41,363,999
Infrastructure 71,407,439 701,166 (568,824) 187,077 71,726,858
Other 46,675 - - 46,920 93,595
Total capital assets
being depreciated 167,454,838 1,519,121 (1,608,409) 599,192 167,964,742
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and improvements (18,287,675) (1,733,459) 20,981 - (20,000,153}
Equipment and vehicles (30,909,661) (2,448,128) 942,893 (7,900) (32,422,796)
Infrastructure (51,623,007) (1,846,754) 502,582 - (562,867,179)
Other (46,675) (2,469) - - (49,144)
Total accumulated depreciation (100,867,018) (6,030,810) 1,466,456 (7,800) (105,439,272)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 66,587,820 (4,511,689) (141,953) 591,292 62,525,470
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 120,863,588 $ 11,456,809 $ (141,953) $ - $ 132,178,534
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
A. Primary Government (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
General Government $ 424,130
Public Safety 1,768,591
Transportation 2,641,632
Public Works 627,949
Culture and Recreation 235,899
Judicial Services 306,430
Economic Development 26,179
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 6,030,810
Capital asset activity for the County’s business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 was
as follows:
Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2015
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 393,500 $ - $ - $ - 393,580
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 393,590 - - - 393,580
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 544,786 - - - 544,786
Equipment and vehicles 6,222,571 1,267,349 - (7,900) 7,482,020
Infrastructure 14,245,742 268,247 - 14,513,989
Mineral interests 529,934 - - - 529,934
Total capital assets
being depreciated 21,543,033 1,535,596 - (7,800) 23,070,729
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and improvements (291,362) (26,315) - - (317.677)
Equipment and vehicles (5,125,679) (338,175) - 7,900 (5,455,954)
Infrastructure (859,778) (906,799) - - (1,766,577)
Mineral interests (240,915) (6,882) - - (247,797)
Total accumulated
depreciation (6,517,734) (1,278,171) - 7,800 (7,788,005)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 15,025,299 257,425 - - 15,282,724
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 15,418,889 §$ 257,425 $ - $ - 15,676,314
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the business-type activities as follows:

Rock Quarry Fund $ 344,376
FOCUS Fund 933,795
Total Business-type Activities Depreciation Expense $ 1,278,171

B. Component Unit

Capital asset activity for the Keowee Fire Tax District for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as

follows:
Balance Balance
June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and improvements $ 1,561,039 $ - $ - 8 1,561,039
Vehicles 249,033 - - 249,033
Equipment 49,304 9,474 - 68,778
Total capital assets
being depreciated 1,859,376 9,474 - 1,868,850
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and improvements (259,362) (44,280) - (303,642)
Vehicles (138,097) (12,132) - (150,229)
Equipment (11,957) (9,917) - (21,874)
Total accumulated depreciation (409,416) (66,329) - (475,745)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net $ 1,449,860 3 (56,855) $ - $ 1,393,105
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

A. Primary Government

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities June 30, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year
General obligation bonds 17,145,000 $ - $ (2,100,000) $ 15,045,000 $ 2,185,000
General obligation bond premiums 694,292 - (94,114) 600,178 -
Total general obligation bonds 17,839,292 - (2,194,114) 15,645,178 2,185,000
Capital lease obligations 2,987,997 - (1,143,508) 1,844,489 497,708
o Special source refunding
revenue bonds 2,993,000 - (235,000) 2,758,000 242,000
S Post-closure care costs 2,424,389 - (126,689) 2,297,700 45,954
™ Annual leave 1,327,049 589,719 (666,554) 1,250,214 670,000
Net pension liability 32,522,649 3,182,502 (4,874,025) 30,831,126 -
Net post-employment
benefit obligation 2,428,494 399,702 - 2,828,196
62,522,870 $ 4,171,923 $ (9,239,890) 57,454,903 $ 3,640,662
S Balance Balance Due Within
' Business-type Activities June 30, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year
™ Annual leave 83,262 $ 46,599 $ (36,502) 93,359 $ 36,502
Net pension liability 1,496,394 141,398 (201,445) 1,436,347 -
Net post-employment
benefit obligation 93,945 37,609 - 131,554 -
$ 1673601 $ 225606 $ (237,947) $ 1,661,260 $ 36,502

The General Fund has typically been used in prior years to liquidate the liability for compensated
absences and the net post-employment benefit obligation for all governmental funds.

General Obligation Bonds: During the year ended June 30, 2008, the County issued series 2007
general obligation bonds in the amount of $1,200,000. The bond proceeds were used to
(1) construct a new substation for the Keowee Fire Tax District and (2) expand the current
headquarters of the Keowee Fire Tax District. General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30,
2015, are as follows:

Interest Original Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Due Date Amount Amount
2007 General Obligation Bonds 3-3.6 % 15 years 2022 $ 1,200,000 $ 680,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)
General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the County issued series 2010 general obligation refunding
bonds in the amount of $5,300,000. The bond proceeds were used to (1) refund the outstanding
Series 1996 general obligation bonds, (2) refund the outstanding series 2001 general obligation
bonds, (3) advance refund the outstanding series 2001 general obligation bonds and (4) pay the
costs to issue the 2010 series general obligation bonds. The refunding transaction resulted in an
economic gain of $428,682 and a difference in debt service required between the refunded bonds
and the refunding bonds of $493,680. General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, are as
follows:

Interest Original Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Due Date Amount Amount
2010 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds 2-5% 7 years 2017 $ 5,300,000 $ 1,360,000
Plus unamortized premium 23,002

$ 1,383,002

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the County issued series 2011 general obligation bonds in the
amount of $17,000,000. The bond proceeds were used to (1) defray the costs of designing,
constructing, and equipping a new detention center in the County and (2) pay the costs to issue the
2011 series general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, are as
follows:

Interest Original Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Due Date Amount Amount
2011 General Obligation Bonds 2-5% 20 years 2031 $ 17,000,000 $ 10,690,000
Plus unamortized premium 547,502
$ 11,237,502
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)
General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the County issued taxable series 2013 general obligation
bonds in the amount of $2,600,000. The bond proceeds were used to (1) defray all or a portion of
the costs of design, acquisition, construction, and installation, as applicable, of improvements and
infrastructure serving the Echo Hills Commerce Park and (2) pay the costs to issue the 2013 series
general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Interest Original Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Due Date Amount Amount
2013 General Obligation Bonds 3 -3.6 % 15 years 2028 $ 2,600,000 $ 2,315,000
Plus unamortized premium 29,674
$ 2,344,674

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2015, including interest payments,
are as follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 2185000 $ 539,186 $ 2,724,186
2017 1,305,000 466,754 1,771,754
2018 740,000 437,426 1,177,426
2019 770,000 414,352 1,184,352
2020 795,000 390,378 1,185,378
2021-2025 4,115,000 1,508,990 5,623,990
2026-2030 4,305,000 664,740 4,969,740
2031 830,000 33,200 863,200

$ 15,045,000 $§ 4455026 $ 19,500,026

Debt service funds of $1,682,706 are available to service the general obligation bonds.

The general obligation bonds are secured by a pledge of the full faith, credit and taxing power of the
County.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various debt instruments. The
County is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions including the legal debt limit
imposed by Article X, Section 15 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as
amended.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
A. Primary Government (Continued)

Capital Leases

The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have
been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.

The following is an analysis of equipment leased under capital leases as of June 30, 2015:

Machinery and Equipment and Construction in Progress $ 3,289,016
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (973,499)
$ 2,315,517

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2015:

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental
June 30, Funds

2016 $ 516,792

2017 854,152

2018 516,792

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,887,736
Less: Amount Representing Interest (43,247)

$ 1,844,489
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
A. Primary Government (Continued)

Special Source Refunding Revenue Bonds

During 2014, the County issued special source refunding revenue bonds in the amount of
$2,933,000 to redeem the 2010 series special source revenue bonds which were issues to finance
the Pointe West project. These bonds are limited obligations of the County and are payable solely
from the fee in lieu of tax revenues. The bonds are payable in annual installments through 2025 and
have an annual interest rate of 2.85 percent. The refunding transaction resulted in an economic gain
of $223,847 and a difference in debt service required between the refunded bonds and the refunding
bonds of $263,876.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the special source revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Special Source Refunding Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 249,000 71,706 320,706
2018 256,000 64,610 320,610
2019 262,000 57,314 319,314
2020 273,000 49,847 322,847
2021-2025 1,476,000 128,535 1,604,535
$ 2,758,000 $ 450,615 $ 3,208,615

B. Component Unit

,,,,,,,,

Long-term liabilities for the Keowee Fire Tax District at June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
Keowee Fire Tax District June 30, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year

Annual leave $ 28,099 § 2,200 $ - $ 30,299 $ 3,031
$ 28,099 § 2,200 $ - % 30,299 $ 3,031
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COSTS

Federal and state laws require the County to place a final cover on their landfills when closed and
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for 30 years after closure.
The County has recorded a liability in the government-wide statement of net position for the total
estimated closure and post-closure care costs for the portion of the landfills filled at June 30, 2015,
calculated as follows:

MSwW C&D C&D Il Total

Total Estimated Current Closure and

Post-Closure Care Cost $ 1650500 $ 524427 $§ 605,733
Percentage of Landfill Capacity Used to Date 100% 98% 22%
Reported Liability for Closure and

Post-Closure Care Cost $ 1650500 $ 513,938 § 133,262 $ 2,297,700
Total Estimated Current Closure and

Post-Closure Care Cost Remaning

to be Recognized $ - $ 10,489 $§ 472,471
Landfill's Approximate Remaining Life in Years - 1 18

The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post-closure care costs as
the remaining capacity is filled.

The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post-closure care is based on the amount
that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain
the landfills were acquired as of June 30, 2015. However, the actual cost of closure and post-
closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and
regulations.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMFLOYEE BENEFITS
Hatirament Plan

OB viEy,

Tha Zouth Carclina Public Employvee Bensfit Authority [PEBA), which was created July 1 2012
gdminiziers the varous retiremant systems and refiremant oregrems managsd by its Betiremeant
Division PEBA has an 17-membar Board of Directors, sppointed by the Sowvernce and Ganeral
Assembly leadership, which =arves a5 co-trustes and co-fiduciary of the systerms and the trust
funds. By law, the Budget and Conind! Board, which consists of five elected officisls, gko
reviews certain PEBA Board dedizions reganding the funding of the Sysiems and servss az a
co-frestes of the Systerms o conducting  that reviow. PEBA ssues a Comprehansive Annusl
Financial Repori (CSAFR} containing financizl stataments and requirad supplesraniany information for
tha South Carclina Retiremant Systems’ Pansicn Trust Funds, The CAFR is publizly availabis on
the Retirament Benefits' link cn PEBA's wobsite at wwow.poba.sc goy, of 8 copy may be obtainad by
submiting 3 reques! to PEBA, PO Box 11330, Columbiz, SC 28211-1560. PEBA 15 consdarsd 2
division of the primary government of the stale of South Casoling and therefore, refiremeant
bust fund financial information & alsa included o the comprenensive annuzl fingncial report of the
=ate

Flan Doscnpdion,

The County cantrioutes 0 Lhe Souls Caraling Retiremant System (SCRS), a cosl-sharing multiple-
amplayer defined benefil pension plan, The olan wag estabbshed effective July 1, 1545 pursuant to
e provisons of Seclion 9-9-20 of the South Sareling Code of Laws for the ourpose of providing
retirement alloeances and ccher benedits far employvess of the siste, its public schoot districts, and
poldics! subdivisions

In addition o the SORS pension plan, the County also conirbutes 1o the Souih Caroling Police
Difficars Betrament System (PORSS, a cost-aaanng mutiple-employer defined bensfit persion plan,
The plan was established effective July 1, 1862 pursuant to the provisions of Baction 2-11-20 of the
Sowth Caroling Ceocds of Laws for the purpose of providing ratiremant gllowances and oihar bansiits
for polize affizars and firzmen of she statz and its politizal subdivisions. The Kaowes Fira Tax District
alen conirbutes to the PORE plan

idambarsfip
Membaershin requirsments are prescribed in Title S of fha South Caroling Code of Laws, A brsf
summary of the requirements under each system is describad bokny,

Sputh Carolina Retlrement System. Genera by, a8l employess of covered enployers gra required
to paricipate in and contribuze 1o the SCRE 85 8 condition of 2mployment This plan covers genarsl
employess, teachers and individuzls newly alected to the Souih Caroling General Assembly
Eaginning with the Movember 2012 general alaction



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)

Membership (Continued):

South Carolina Retirement System (Continued). An employee member of the SCRS with an
effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of
the SCRS with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System. To be eligible for PORS membership, an
employee must be required by the terms of his employment, by election or appointment, to
preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control
property destruction by fire; or to serve as a peace officer employed by the Department of
Corrections, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Mental Health. Probate
judges and coroners may elect membership in PORS. Magistrates are required to participate in
PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges,
must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to this work,
unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective date of
membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with
an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

Benefits:

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key
elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final
compensation. A brief summary of benefit terms for each system is presented below.

South Carolina Retirement System. A Class Two member who has separated from service with
at least five or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28
years credited service regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced
pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class Three member who
has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a
monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 80 requirement that the total of the member's age and
the member's creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three
members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-
year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to
beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit
program.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)

Benefits (Continued):

South Carolina Retirement System (Continued). The annual retirement allowance of eligible
retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one percent or five hundred
dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are
eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions at age 55
with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after
reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit
had they not retired.

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System. A Class Two member who has separated
from service with at least five or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at
age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of age. A Class Three member who has separated
from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension
at age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of age. Both Class Two and Class Three members
are eligible to receive a deferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service,
respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired
members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. Accidental death benefits
are also provided upon the death of an active member working for a covered employer whose death
was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser
of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on
July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.

Contributions:

Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The PEBA Board may
increase the SCRS and PORS employer and employee contribution rates on the basis of the
actuarial valuations, but any such increase may not result in a differential between the
employee and employer contribution rate that exceeds 2.9 percent of earnable compensation for
SCRS and 5 percent for PORS. An increase in the contribution rates adopted by the board may not
provide for an increase of more than one-half of one percent in any one year. If the scheduled
employee and employer contributions provided in statute or the rates last adopted by the board are
insufficient to maintain a thirty year amortization schedule of the unfunded liabilities of the plans,
the board shall increase the contribution rates in equal percentage amounts for the employer and
employee as necessary to maintain the thirty-year amortization period; and, this increase is not
limited to one-half of one percent per year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)

Contributions (Continued):
Required employee contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:

South Carolina Retirement System
Employee class two 8.00% of earnable compensation
Employee class three 8.00% of earnable compensation

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
Employee class one $21 per month
Employee class two 8.41% of earnable compensation
Employee class three 8.41% of earnable compensation

Required employer contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:
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Employer incidental death benefit 0.15% of earnable compensation

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System

Employer class one 7.80% of earnable compensation
Employer class two 13.01% of earnable compensation
Employer class three 13.01% of earnable compensation
Employer incidental death benefit 0.20% of earnable compensation

Employer accidental death program 0.20% of earnable compensation

Net Pension Liability:

The most recent annual actuarial valuation reports adopted by the PEBA Board and Budget and
Control Board are as of July 1, 2013. The net pension liability of each defined benefit pension plan
was therefore determined based on the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuations, using membership data as
of July 1, 2013, projected forward to the end of the fiscal year, and financial information of the
pension trust funds as of June 30, 2014, using generally accepted actuarial procedures. Information
included in the following schedules is based on the certification provided by the systems’ consulting
actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued):

The net pension liability is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular
system’s total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB No. 67, less that system’s
fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2014, the County’s net pension liability amounts for SCRS and
PORS are as follows:

Total Plan Employers’ Plan Fiduciary
Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension Net Position as a percentage of
System Liability Position Liability the Total Pension Liability

SCRS $ 56,012,300 $ 33,562,260 $ 22,450,040 59.9%

As of June 30, 2014, the District's net pension liability amounts for PORS is as follows:

Total Plan Employers' Plan Fiduciary
Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension Net Position as a percentage of
System Liability Position Liability the Total Pension Liability

PORS $ 1851272 $ 1,250,467 $ 600,805 67.5%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued):

As of June 30, 2014 the change in the County’s net pension liability for the SCRS Plan is calculated

as follows:

Total pension liability

Service cost

Interest

Difference between actual and expected experience
Benefit payments

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning June 30, 2013
Total pension liability - ending June 30, 2014

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - member

Refunds of contributions to members

Retirement benefits

Death benefits

Net investment income

Administrative expense

Net transfers to affiliated systems

Net change in Plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning June 30, 2013
Plan fiduciary net position - ending June 30, 2014
Net pension liability

60

963,661
3,939,298

832,904
(3,352,570)

2,383,294
53,629,006

56,012,300

1,255,460
851,011
(117,684)
(3,209,798)
(25,088)
4,586,486
(15,341)
(3,221)

3,321,824
30,240,436

33,562,260

22,450,040
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued).

As of June 30, 2014 the change in the County’s net pension liability for the PORS Plan is calculated

as follows:

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 767,193
Interest 2,143,290
Difference between actual and expected experience 329,924
Benefit payments (1,701,418)
Net change in total pension liability 1,538,989
Total pension liability - beginning June 30, 2013 28,714,388
Total pension liability - ending June 30, 2014 30,253,377
Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 797,974
Contributions - member 492,319
Refunds of contributions to members (82,990)
Retirement benefits (1,597,881)
Death benefits (20,547)
Net investment income 2,760,894
Administrative expense (9,393)
Net transfers to affiliated systems 11,591
Net change in Plan fiduciary net position 2,351,965
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning June 30, 2013 18,083,978
Plan fiduciary net position - ending June 30, 2014 20,435,944
Net pension liability $ 9,817,433
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement Plan (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued):
As of June 30, 2014 the change in the District's net pension liability for the PORS Plan is calculated

as follows:

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 46,946
Interest 131,153
Difference between actual and expected experience 20,189
Benefit payments (104,114)
Net change in total pension liability 94,174
Total pension liability - beginning June 30, 2013 1,757,098
Total pension liability - ending June 30, 2014 1,851,272

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 48,830
Contributions - member 30,126
Refunds of contributions to members (5,078)
Retirement benefits (97,778)
Death benefits (1,257)
Net investment income 168,945
Administrative expense (629)
Net transfers to affiliated systems 709
Net change in Plan fiduciary net position 143,868
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning June 30, 2013 1,106,599
Plan fiduciary net position - ending June 30, 2014 1,250,467
Net pension liability $ 600,805

Acluarial Assumptions and Methods:

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined during the valuation
process are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial
experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period. The last experience study
was performed on data through June 30, 2010, and the next experience study is scheduled to be
conducted after the June 30, 2015 annual valuation is complete.

62

3232333333333 3333333333233333333333I33IIIHrdHI)>



277339332333 3)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (Continued):

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the July
1, 2013 valuations for SCRS and PORS.

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.5% 7.5%
Projected salary increases levels off at 3.5% levels off at 4.0%
Includes inflation at 2.75% 2.75%
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 lesser of 1% or $500

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender.
This assumption includes base rates which are automatically adjusted for future improvement in
mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2000.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for actuarial purposes is based
upon the 30 year capital market outlook at the end of the third quarter 2012. The actuarial long-
term expected rates of return represent best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class and were developed in coordination with the investment consultant for the
Retirement System Investment Commission (RSIC) using a building block approach, reflecting
observable inflation and interest rate information available in the fixed income markets as well as
Consensus Economic forecasts. The actuarial long-term assumptions for other asset classes are
based on historical results, current market characteristics and professional judgment.

The RSIC has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds’ assets. As co-
fiduciary of the Systems, statutory provisions and governance policies allow the RSIC to operate in a
manner consistent with a long-term investment time horizon. The expected real rates of
investment return, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset
allocation adopted annually by the RSIC. For actuarial purposes, the long-term expected rate of
return is calculated by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation
percentage and then adding the actuarial expected inflation which is summarized in the table on
the following page. For actuarial purposes, the 7.50 percent assumed annual investment rate of
return used in the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 4.75 percent real rate of return
and a 2.75 percent inflation component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (Continued):

Expected Long-Term
Target Asset Arithmetic Real Expected Portfolio
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Short-Term 5.0%
Cash 2.0% 0.3 0.01
Short duration 3.0% 0.6 0.02
Domestic Fixed Income 13.0%
Core fixed income 7.0% 1.1 0.08
High yield 2.0% 3.5 0.07
Bank loans 4.0% 2.8 0.11
Global Fixed Income 9.0%
Global fixed income 3.0% 0.8 0.02
Emerging markets debt 6.0% 4.1 0.25
Global Public Equity 31.0% 7.8 2.42
Global Tactical Asset Allocation 10.0% 51 0.51
Alternatives 32.0%
Hedge funds (low beta) 8.0% 4 0.32
Private debt 7.0% 10.2 0.71
Private equity 9.0% 10.2 0.92
Real estate (broad market) 5.0% 5.9 0.29
Commodities 3.0% 5.1 0.15
Total expected real return 100.0% 5.88
Inflation for actuarial purposes 2.75
Total expected nominal return 8.63
Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers
in SCRS and PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in
the South Carolina State Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, each System'’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate (Continued):

The following table presents the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
{6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)
County's portion- SCRS  § 29,051,741 $ 22,450,040 $ 16,942,328
County's portion- PORS  § 13,719,527 $ 9,817,433 $ 6,588,669
District's portion - PORS  § 839,529 $ 600,805 $ 403,176

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the County recognized pension expense of $1,572,901 for the
SCRS plan and $852,875 for the PORS plan.

At June 30, 2015 the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the SCRS and PORS pension plans, respectively, from the following sources:

SCRS Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 636,140 $ -

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 1,892,701

Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 1,280,951 -

Total $ 1,917,091 $ 1,892,701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement Plan (Continued)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

(Continued):

PORS Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 261,984 $ -

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 1,135,948

Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 850,224 -

Total $ 1,112,208 $ 1,135,949

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $52,563 for the
PORS plan.

At June 30, 2015 the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the PORS pension plan from the following sources:

PORS Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 16,033 $ -

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 69,518

Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 46,594 -

Total $ 62,627 $ 69,518
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retiremant Plan (Continued)

Cefeman Suifows of Resowrees and Ooferd iffowss of Resowess Ralaled o Pensions
O e AT i),

Courdy contributizns subsaquent to the mesaurement cate af 51280 8571 and 5830 224 for Lhe
SCRS plan ang the PORS plan, respectively, are defzrred outflows of resources and will ba
reccgnized as 3 raduciion of the net pensicn lisbddy in she year endad Junms 20, 2048, Ciher
amcuntzs reported as defamed oulflows of resources and deferred inflows of rescurces relatad to
pansons wil be recognized in pansicn expense as follows:

Year ended June 30: BECRE PORS
ANE 5 ATR 411 3 216,045
2my TR 411 216,045
2 ATh 411 25,045
7019 427,323 225,850

District centriputions subasquent fo tha messuremant date of 348 592 for the PORS plan ars
cefamad outlows of resources and will ke racogrized As & reduction of the net peraion lighiling in the
yaar enclad June 36, 20ME . Cirar amaounss reparted a5 defered aufflows of resources and asfamed
infiows of rezources related to penasions will be recognized i penaion expense 23 fallows

tear ended Jume 30: FORS
016 3 13,2241
2017 13,224
2018 13,221
ah1a 131,823

Farision Fian Fiduciary Nel Posilion:

Cetaded nlormaton regarding e Aduciary el pesition of the plans administered by PEB& s
avallzable In ke separalehy  ssued CGOAFE conlaicing leancml slatemests asd reguined
supplamentary mlormatian 1o B0RS and PORS. The CAFR of fhwe Pansion Trust Fungds iz
publicly available on PEENS Betirement Berafits' websile al s redisamenl scacy, or a copy
may be cblained oy submittng a requast o PEBA, FO Box 11960, Columbla, 5C 28211-1960.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Primary Government
Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, which is administered and controlled by the State of South Carolina.
The plan, available to all government employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

Great-West Retirement Services, PO Box 173764, Denver CO 80217-3764, (under state contract) is
the program administrator of the 457 plan as well as the 401(k) plan and 401(k) Roth plan which are
also available to County employees at their option.

Other Post-Employment Healthcare Benefits (OPEB)
Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits through the South Carolina Retirement System, the County
provides certain healthcare benefits for qualified retired employees who elect health care coverage
through the County upon retirement. All covered County employees may maintain healthcare
benefits if they have 20 years of service with the County and qualify for SCRS or PORS service
retirement. An employee retiring with 20 years of service with the County and the SCRS or the
PORS shall retain the County insurance benefits at reduced cost to the employee. If disabled, as
determined by SCRS or PORS, an employee may qualify with 10 years of County employment. To
remain covered, retired employees must pay all applicable premiums and elect Medicare parts A
and B at age 65, or sooner if eligible. For employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, eligibility under
this plan ends upon their entitlement to Medicare, either through the attainment of the age of
eligibility or because of disability.

Retirees may not convert the benefit into an in-lieu payment to secure coverage under independent
plans. The cost of these benefits is recognized as an expenditure of the General Fund on a pay-as-
you-go basis as provided for in the annual budget ordinance. These benefits will cease if funds are
not available for appropriation. For fiscal year 2015, there were seventy-eight retirees who were
covered under the County's group insurance plans and the total cost of retiree health and dental
benefits was $276,245 for the fiscal year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Primary Government (Continued)
Other Post-Employment Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)
Plan Description (Continued)
The County does not issue separate audited financial statements for this plan.
Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Costs
The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined. The ARC represents a level of funding

that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB costs for the year, the

- amount actuarially contributed to the plan, and changes in the County's net OPEB obligation for the
™ post-employment health insurance benefits:
2015
A Annual Required Contribution $ 751,519
Interest on OPEB Obligation 113,510
o Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (151,473)
PN Annual OPEB Costs 713,556
Contributions Made (276,245)
™ Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 437,311
) Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 2,522,439
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 2,959,750

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2015 were as follows:

Employer Percentage of
(G For the Year Annual Amount Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
N Ended June 30 OPEB Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation
2015 $ 713,656 $ 276,245 38.7% $ 2,959,750
2014 718,130 414,177 57.7% 2,522,439
™ 2013 715,043 456,541 63.8% 2,218,486
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Primary Government (Continued)

Other Post-Employment Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)
Funding Status and Progress

As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was
$8,485,199. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$12,537,849; the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 67.7 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions
about future employment, mortality, and heaithcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based upon the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the County and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the County and plan
members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 2013 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is consistent with the investment return earned on the County's general assets, an
annual medical cost trend decrease of 7.5 percent to 4.5 percent per year over twelve years, and an
annual dental cost trend of 4.5 percent per year. General inflation is assumed to be 3.0 percent per
year. The actuarial value of assets was set equal to the reported market value of assets. The UAAL
is being amortized as a level percent of payroll required to fully amortize the UAAL over an open 30-
year period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9.

SELF-INSURED HEALTH INSURANCE

The County is self-insured for health and dental claims incurred by employees and/or their
dependents and retirees, if they are enrolled in the plan. The plan establishes a "Stop Loss" of
$75,000 per person per contract year. Seven individuals were excluded from this stop-loss
coverage and had different specific deductibles. The estimated maximum annual cost to the County
is $5,857,166. At June 30, 2015, claims due and payable total approximately $298,630 and are
recorded as a liability in the respective funds with employees receiving this benefit. The following
amounts were recorded as liabilities of the respective funds as of June 30, 2015: General Fund —
$285,192; Proprietary Fund — FOCUS $1,493; and Proprietary Fund — Rock Quarry $11,945.

Effective January 1, 2013, the County revised the retiree health benefits for individuals who are
qualified for Medicare. As a result, retirees eligible for health care began receiving a defined
contribution towards the purchase of a Medicare Supplement Plan through Hartford Life. This
resulted in 71 retirees no longer participating in the County's Self Insured Health Insurance Plan. As
outlined in the plan document, all employees hired before July 1, 2010 are eligible for plan benefits
given they meet the 20 years of continuous service requirement and ultimately retire form the
County. As of June 30, 2015, approximately 285 employees were hired prior to July 1, 2010 and
could ultimately benefit from the health insurance plan.

Active retirees as of December 31, 2013 who had not yet attained the age of 65 or otherwise
qualified for Medicare are eligible for plan benefits if they meet the service requirements as outlined
in the plan document. Once eligible for Medicare, these individuals will be automatically enrolled
into the Medicare Supplement Plan through Hartford Life.

Active employees, who had attained 20 years of service on December 31, 2013, will be eligible for
participation in the self-insured heath plan until becoming eligible for Medicare. Once eligible for
Medicare, these individuals will be removed from the self-insured health plan and automatically
enrolled in the Medicare Health Plan through Hartford Life. Employees in the category who become
retirees will receive the same stipend as active retirees in each category (pre-Medicare and
Medicare eligible). All contributions are accounted for in the County's Retiree Health
Reimbursement account. Contributions can only be used in accordance with the plan document.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9. SELF-INSURED HEALTH INSURANCE (CONTINUED)
The following indicates claims versus premiums for the past three fiscal years:

Current Year Claims

For the Year Beginning and Changes in Claim Ending

Ended June 30 Liability Estimate Payments Liability
2015 $ 330,851 $ 3,674,377 $ 3,706,598 $ 298,630
2014 478,761 4,198,846 4,346,756 330,851
2013 546,895 5,555,041 5,623,175 478,761

NOTE 10. INTERFUND ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The balances of the interfund advances to/from at June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 60,000
General Fund FOCUS 4,834,174
$ 4,894,174

Advances are used for long-term interfund loans. The General Fund had two outstanding advances
at June 30, 2015. The advance to the Local Accommodations Tax Fund was used to fund the
purchase of Stumphouse Mountain by the Nature Conservancy and the City of Walhalla to be
repaid over a 10-year period at $30,000 annually. The advance to the FOCUS Fund is to finance
construction and operations. This does not have a fixed schedule for repayment as it will be repaid

from operating income as the project becomes self-sustaining.

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 2,275
General Fund FOCUS 576,563
$ 578,838

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that
(1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions
are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. These

balances normally clear within one to two months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

INTERFUND ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Any transactions to transfer revenues from the fund budgeted to receive them to the fund budgeted
to expend them are reported as transfers from and to other funds.

Total transfers during the year ended June 30, 2015 consisted of the following individual amounts:

Transfer in Fund Transfer Out Fund Amount
General Fund Rock Quarry Fund $ 750,000
General Fund Other Governmental Funds 31,857
Other Governmental Funds General Fund 40,000
Economic Development Fund General Fund 72,725

894582

The transfers noted above were used to (1) provide operational funds, (2) provide salary subsidies,
and/or (3) provide funds for the construction costs associated with infrastructure for economic
development for the Golden Corner Commerce Park. All were made in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the County carries insurance through
the State Budget and Control Board Office of Insurance Reserve Fund. The County pays premiums
to the Fund for its general insurance coverage. The agreement for formation of the Fund provides
that the Fund will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through
commercial companies for each insured event. Additionally, the County participates in a self-funded
program to provide workers' compensation insurance through the South Carolina Association of
Counties, which works in a similar way as the Insurance Reserve Fund. The County continues to
carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The County leases copiers, postage meters and office space under operating leases. Future
minimum lease payments required under the operating leases are as follows:

Total Minimum
Lease Payments

Year Ending June 30,
2016 $ 50,399
2017 41,899
2018 24,644
2019 23,129

$ 140,071

Construction commitments at June 30, 2015 totaled approximately $2,155,971.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Duke Energy Corporation provides a major source of property tax revenues. During the year ended
June 30, 2015, the company paid property taxes in the amount of $27.0 million based on assessed
property values of $130.0 million. This represents approximately 23.4 percent of the 2014 levy.
Approximately $17.7 million of the amount collected was appropriated for the School District of
Oconee County and Tri-County Technical College.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs
are subject to audits by grantors or their representatives. The audits of these programs for or
including the year ended June 30, 2015, have not yet been conducted. Therefore, the County's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed cannot be determined at this time although the
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

LITIGATION

The County is party to a number of lawsuits arising in the course of operations. The nature of the
lawsuits varies considerably. Management and the County’s legal counsel have determined an
aggregate liability, which is probable to arise from the proceedings of up to $150,000. This amount is
recorded as claims and judgments payable on the government-wide statement of net position as
well as the Oconee FOCUS fund statement of net position as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (CONTINUED)
Primary Government

The County has determined that restatements to the July 1, 2014 beginning net position of the
County’s governmental activities and business-type activities, and restatements to the July 1, 2014
beginning fund balance of the Rock Quarry fund and the FOCUS fund were required to recognize
the changes in accounting principles for implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 68, through which accounting for pension plans and the related disclosure requirements were
modified.

This adjustment resulted in a change to the beginning net position of the County’s governmental
activities as follows:

Governmental activities net position, as previously reported $ 144,489,278
Change in accounting principle due to the implementation of

GASB Statement No. 68 (30,556,116)
Governmental activities net position, as restated $ 113,933,162

This adjustment resulted in a change to the beginning net position of the County’s business-type
activities as follows:

Business-type activities net position, as previously reported $ 13,672,394

Change in accounting principle due to the implementation of

GASB Statement No. 68 (1,416,108)
Business-type activities net position, as restated $ 12,256,286

This adjustment resulted in a change to the beginning fund balance of the Rock Quarry fund as
follows:

Rock Quarry fund balance, as previously reported $ 4,981,885
Change in accounting principle due to the implementation of

GASB Statement No. 68 (1,240,375)
Rock Quarry fund balance, as restated $ 3,741,510

This adjustment resulted in a change to the beginning fund balance of the FOCUS fund as follows:

FOCUS fund balance, as previously reported $ 8,690,509

Change in accounting principle due to the implementation of

GASB Statement No. 68 (175,733)

FOCUS fund balance, as restated $ 8,514,776
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (CONTINUED)
Component Unit

The District has determined that a restatement to the July 1, 2014 beginning net position was
required to recognize the changes in accounting principles for implementation of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68, through which accounting for pension plans and the related disclosure
requirements were modified.

This adjustment resulted in a change to the beginning net position of the District as follows:

Keowee Fire Tax District net positicn, as previously reported $ 1,251,570

Change in accounting principle due to the implementation of

GASB Statement No. 68 (601,637)

Governmental activities net position, as restated $ 649,933
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF COUNTY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
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South Carolina Retirement System 2015

County’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.130397%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 22,450,040

County's covered-employee payroll $ 11,703,378
~ County's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 191.8%
o Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 59.9%
- South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 2015
™ County's proportion of the net pension liability 0.51281%
. County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 9,817,433

County's covered-employee payroll 3 6,207,981

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 158.1%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 67.5%

The above schedules will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedules are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.03138%
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 600,805
District's covered-employee payroll $ 371,195

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 161.9%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 67.5%

The above schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

South Carolina Retirement System 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,254,869
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 1,254,869
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Covered-employee payroll 11,703,378
™
™ Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.72%
™ South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 2015
o Actuarially determined contribution $ 791,950
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 791,950
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Covered-employee payroll 6,207,981
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 12.76%

The above schedules will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedules are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 46,593
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 46,593
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Covered-employee payroll 371,195
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 12.55%

The above schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
6/30/2009 - 14,201,310 14,201,310 - 16,053,849 88.5%
6/30/2011 - 7,584,954 7,584,954 - 15,328,947 49.5%
6/30/2013 - 8,485,199 8,485,199 - 12,537,849 67.7%

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.

81




O G G N O G O O O G G O G G G I G G G G G G N G G O S O O A L A A O A A A S R AN

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



COMBINING STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES




OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The Emergency Services Protection District Fund accounts for tax monies collected for the Oconee County
special tax district for emergency services protection. Such monies are restricted for public safety expenditures.

The Road Maintenance Fund accounts for the tax levied to provide funding for maintenance of County roads.

The Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund accounts for monies collected from various sources. Such monies are
restricted for their specific purpose.

The 911 Communications Fund accounts for 911 communication fees that are received from the State of South
Carolina, various wireless carriers, and AT&T. Such monies are restricted for improvements and expansion of the
County’s emergency 911 system.

The State Accommodations Tax Fund accounts for accommodation tax monies received from the State. The first
$25,000 and 5% is transferred to the General Fund. The remainder is restricted for culture and recreation.

The Local Accommodations Tax Fund accounts for the 3% local accommodation tax monies collected on behalf
of Oconee County. These monies are restricted for culture and recreation.

The Sheriffs’ Victims’ Assistance Fund accounts for monies collected by the Magistrates’ Office through summary
assessments and surcharges. Such monies are restricted for public safety expenditures.

The Solicitors’ Victims’ Assistance Fund accounts for monies collected by the Clerk of Court's office through
general sessions, assessments and surcharges. Such monies are restricted for public safety expenditures.

The Duke Energy Fixed Nuclear Facility Fund accounts for the grant revenues from Duke Energy Corporation.
These funds aid in offsetting the cost of the preparation and evaluation of radiological response plans and

preparedness in support of the Duke Energy power plant located in Oconee County as required by the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission.

The Clerk of Court Federal Child Support Fund accounts for federal grant funds received by the Clerk of Court
from the State restricted to child support enforcement expenditures.

The Library State Aid Fund accounts for State aid monies received that provide additional funding for the County's
public libraries allowing them to provide basic levels of service to citizens of South Carolina. These monies are
restricted for cuiture and recreation expenditures.




OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

The Tri-County Tech Fund accounts for tax revenues collected for support of the Tri-County Technical College.
These monies are restricted for education expenditures.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources used for the payment of the County’s principal and interest on
various debt obligations.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities for the County's governmental funds.

The Bridge and Culvert Capital Projects Fund accounts for the taxes levied specifically to fund repairs and
construction of the County’s bridge and culvert infrastructure. These monies are restricted for capital projects.



OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Special Revenue Funds
Emergency
Services Miscellaneous 911 State Local
Protection Road Special Communications Accommodations Accommodations
District Maintenance Revenue Fund Tax Tax
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 148973 $ 716,978 $ 392,234 $ 104,941 § 51,746 $ 193,868
Investments 1,200,000 100,000 - 950,000 - -
Taxes receivable 42,479 25,786 - - - -
Accounts receivable, net - - 17,520 19,843 - 24,152
Due from other governments - - 134,503 21,420 71,975 7.772
Due from component unit - - - - - -
Prepaid expenditures - - 200 - - -
Seized assets - - 194,160 - - -
Total assets $ 1,391,452 § 842,764 S __ 738617 §$ 1096204 $ 123721 § 225,792
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 12,829 § 41,725 $ 143,246 § 9,082 § 21,592 $ 10,000
Due to other funds - - - - - -
Accrued liabilities - - - - - -
Advances from other funds - - - - - 60,000
Unearned revenues - - 5,227 - - -
Total liabilities 12,829 41,725 148.473 9,082 21,592 70,000
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 36,623 21,701 - - - =
Unavailable revenue - seized property - - 194,160 - - -
Unavailable revenue - intergovemmental - - 20,820 - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 36,623 21,701 214,580 - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenditures - - 200 - - -
Seized assets - - 194,160 - - -
Restricted for:
General government - - 156,221 - - -
Public safety 1,342,000 - 94,482 1,087,122 - -
Transportation - 779,338 336 - - -
Debt service - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - 57,778 - 102,129 155,792
Judicial services - - 108 - - -
Education - - - - - -
Health and welfare - - 11,791 - - -
Economic development - - 1,088 - - -
Capital projects - - . N - -
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balances (deficits) 1,342,000 779,338 375,164 1,087,122 102,129 155,792
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 1391452 § 842,764 $ 738617 $ 1,096,204 S 123,721 § 225,792
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M\
(™
m Debt Capital
(% Special Revenue Funds Service Fund  Projects Fund
Sheriff's Solicitor's Duke Energy  Clerk of Court Library Bridge and
(M\ Victims' Victims' Fixed Nuclear Federal Child State Tri-County Culvert Capital
(’W\ Assistance Assistance Facility Support Ald Tech Debt Service Projects Totals
$ - 8 26,864 § 175977 $ 127,245 § - 8 340,192 $ 989,464 $ 118,081 § 3,386,563
@ - - - - - 700,000 - 3,000,000 5,950,000
- - - - - 38,533 95,726 12,279 214,803
@ - - - - - - - - 61,515
- - - 11,071 - - - 345,202 591,943
(W\ - - - - - - 680,000 - 680,000
. - - - - - 1,333 - 1,533
@ - - - - - - - - 194,160
$ - 8 26864 $ 175977 § 138,316 § - § 1,078,725 $ 1766523 $ 3475562 $ 11,080,517
$ - 8 - $ 129 $ - 8 599 § - $ - 8 51,032 $ 290,234
(W\ 1,759 - - - 516 - - - 2,275
2,556 1,169 - 1,966 - - - - 5,691
™ - - - - - - - - 60,000
- - 175,848 - - - - - 181,075
™ 2,315 1,169 175,977 1,966 1115 - - 51,032 539,275
- - - - - 33,890 82,484 10,334 185,032
@ - - - - - - - - 194,160
' - - - - - - - 202,598 223,418
m B - - - - 33,890 82,484 212,932 602,610
m
- - - - - - 1,333 - 1,533
™ - - - - - - - - 194,160
™ . . . . . . - . 15,221
- 25,695 - - - - - - 2,549,299
I . - - - - - - - 779,674
- - - - - - 1,682,706 - 1,682,706
™ - - - - - - - 315,699
- - - 136,350 - - - - 136,458
™ - - - - - 1,044,835 - - 1,044,835
- - - - - - - - 11,791
™ - - - - - - - - 1,088
. - - - - - - 3,211,598 3,211,598
(ﬂh (4,315) - - - {1,115) - = - (5.430)
(4,315) 25,695 - 136,350 {1.115) 1,044,835 1,684,039 3,211,598 9,938,632
m $ - 8 26864 $ 175977 § 138316 § - § 1,078,725 $ 1,766,523 $ 3,475,562 $ 11,080,517
(m
i)
™
ﬁ\
™
N
™
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency
Services Miscellaneous 911 State Local
Protection Road Special Communications Accommodations Accommodations
District Mainte Revenue Fund Tax Tax
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 1378916 $ 1,104295 § - 8 - 8 - § -
Other taxes - - - 283,711 162,142 247,017
Intergovermmental - 208,239 1,065,871 468,237 - -
Licenses and permits - - 11,210 - - -
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - -
Interest revenue - - 106 - 44 194
Contributions and donations - - 27,809 - - -
Other revenues - - 45,055 - - -
Total revenues 1,378,916 1,313,534 1,150,151 751,948 162,186 247,211
Expenditures:
Curment:
General govemment - - 2,589 - - -
Public safety 1,292,008 - 334,634 618,343 - -
Transportation - 845,409 351,925 - - -
Public works - - 24,532 - - -
Cuilture and recreation - - 31,050 - 106,142 208,354
Judicial services - - - - - -
Education - - - - - -
Health and welfare - - 154,879 - - -
Economic develcpment - - 100,000 - - -
Capital outlay - - - 135,225 - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,292,008 845,409 999,609 753,568 106,142 208,354
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 86,908 468,125 150,542 (1,620) 56,044 38,857
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - (31,857) -
Insurance recoveries 11,700 - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 11,700 - - - (31,857) -
Net change in fund balances 98,608 468,125 150,542 (1,620) 24,187 38,857
Fund balances, beginning of year,
as restated 1,243,392 311,213 224,622 1,088,742 77,942 116,935
Fund balances (deficits), end of year $ 1342000 $ 779,338 § 375,164 $ 1087122 § 102,129 § 155,792
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Debt Capital
Special Revenue Funds Service Fund  Projects Fund
Sheriff's Solicitor's Duke Energy  Clerk of Court Library Bridge and
Victims* Victims' Fixed Nuclear Federal Child State Tri-County Culvert Capital
Assistance Assistance Facility Support Aid Tech Debt Service Projects Totals
$ - - 8 - 8 - - $ 1,111,997 $ 3,587,523 § 525,259 7,707,980
- - - - - - - - 692,870
- - 46,309 150,747 92,841 - - 175,639 2,208,883
- - - - - - - - 11,210
63,334 42,260 - - - - - - 105,594
. - - - - - 31,580 - 31,924
- - - - - - - - 27,909
- - - - - - - - 45,055
63,334 42,260 46,309 150,747 92,841 1,111,997 3,619,103 700,898 10,831,435
- - - - - - - - 2,589
140,513 - 42,154 - - - - - 2,427,652
- - - - - - - 678,299 1,875,633
- - - - - - - - 24,532
- - - - 55,619 - - - 401,165
- 62,567 - 118,053 - - - - 180,620
- - - - - 1,066,000 - - 1,066,000
- - - - - - - - 154,879
- - - - - - - - 100,000
- - 4,155 - 38,337 - - - 177,717
- - - - - - 2,335,000 - 2,335,000
- - - - - - 695,866 - 695,866
140,513 62,567 46,309 118,053 93,956 1,066,000 3,030,866 678,299 9,441,653
(77.179) (20,307) - 32,694 (1,115) 45,997 588,237 22,599 1,389,782
30,000 10,000 - - - - - - 40,000
- - - - . - - - (31,857)
- . - - - - - - 11,700
30,000 10,000 - - - - - - 19,843
(47,179) (10,307) - 32,694 (1,115) 45,997 588,237 22,599 1,409,625
42,864 36,002 - 103,656 - 998,838 1,095,802 3,188,999 8,529,007
$ (4.315) 25695 $ - 8 136,350 (1.115) $ 1,044,835 $ 1,684,039 §$ 3.211,598 9,938,632
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

EMERGENCY SERVICES PROTECTION DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,350,000 § 1,350,000 § 1,378,916  § 28,916
Total revenues 1,350,000 1,350,000 1,378,916 28,916
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 1,324,700 2,348,054 1,292,008 1,056,046
Total expenditures 1,324,700 2,348,054 1,292,008 1,056,046
Excess of revenues over expenditures 25,300 (998,054) 86,908 1,084,862
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Insurance recoveries - - 11,700 11,700
Total other financing sources - - 11,700 11,700
Net change in fund balance 25,300 (998,054) 98,608 1,086,662
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,243,392 1,243,392 1,243,392 -
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 1,268,692 § 245338 § 1,342,000 $§ 1,096,662
86
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ROAD MAINTENANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,050,000 § 956,195 § 1,104,296 $ 148,100
Intergovemmental - - 209,239 209,239
Total revenues 1,050,000 956,195 1,313,534 357,339
EXPENDITURES
Transportation 1,050,000 1,143,805 845,409 298,396
Total expenditures 1,050,000 1,143,805 845,409 298,396
Net change in fund balance - (187,610) 468,125 655,735
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 311,213 311,213 311,213 -
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 311,213 § 123603 $ 779338 § 655,735
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REVENUE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Other revenue
Interest revenue

EXPENDBITURES
General govemment
Public safety
Public works
Transportation
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Economic development

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
611,815 § 611816 § 1,065,871 $ 454,056
- - 11,210 11,210
- - 72,964 72,964
- - 106 106
611,815 611,815 1,150,151 538,336
10,137 10,137 2,589 7,548
122,962 127,100 334,634 (207,534)
- - 24,532 (24,532)
480,639 490,639 351,925 138,714
- - 164,879 (154,879)
17,100 20,810 31,050 (10,240)
- - 100,000 (100,000)
640,838 648,686 999,609 (350,923)
(29,023) (36,871) 150,542 187,413
224,622 224,622 224,622 -
195509 § 187,751 $ 375,164 § 187,413
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

911 COMMUNICATIONS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
$ 310,000 § 310,000 § 283,711 $ (26,289)
105,000 105,000 468,237 363,237
400 400 - (400)
415,400 415,400 751,948 336,548
298,000 584,634 618,343 (33,709)
130,000 130,000 135,225 (5,225)
428,000 714,634 753,568 (38,934)
(12,600) (299,234) (1,620) 297,614
1,088,742 1,088,742 1,088,742 -
$ 1,076,142 § 789,508 § 1,087,122 § 297,614
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SHERIFF'S VICTIMS' ASSISTANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures $ 76,000 § 76,000 $§ 63334 § (12,666)
Total revenues 76,000 76,000 63,334 (12,666)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 137,676 137,676 140,513 (2,837)
Total expenditures 137,676 137,676 140,513 (2,837)
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (61,676) (61,676) (77,179) (15,503)
Other financing sources
Transfers in 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Total other financing sources 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Net change in fund balance (31,676) (31,676) (47,179) (15,503)
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 42,864 42,864 42,864 -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), end of year $ 11,188 $ 11,188 § (4,315) § (15.503)
g0
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SOLICITOR'S VICTIMS' ASSISTANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Judicial services
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
46,000 § 46,000 § 42,260 (3,740)
46,000 46,000 42,260 (3,740)
61,519 61,519 62,567 (1,048)
61,519 61,519 62,567 (1,048)
(15,519) (15,519) (20,307) (4,788)
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
(5,519) (5,519) (10,307) (4,788)
36,002 36,002 36,002
30483 § 30483 § 25,695 (4,788)
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
LIBRARY STATE AID

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
$ 92,841 $ 92,841 $ 92,841 $ -
92,841 92,841 92,841 -
64,388 54,503 55,619 (1,116)
25,453 38,338 38,337 1
89,841 92,841 93,956 (1,115)
3,000 - (1,115) (1,115)
$ 3,000 § - 8 (1,116) § (1,115)
92
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
TRI-COUNTY TECH

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,060,500 $ 1,060,500 $ 1,111,997 § 51,497
Total revenues 1,060,500 1,060,500 1,111,997 51,497
EXPENDITURES
Education 1,066,000 1,066,000 1,066,000
Total expenditures 1,066,000 1,066,000 1,066,000 -
Net change in fund balance (5.500) (5.500) 45,997 51,497
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 998,838 998,838 998,838 -
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 093338 $ 993338 § 1,044,835 § 51,497
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes $ - 8 - $ 3,587,523 $ 3,587,523

Interest revenue - - 31,580 31,580
Total revenues - - 3,619,103 3,619,103

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 2,335,000 2,335,000 2,335,000 -
Interest 694,073 694,073 695,866 (1,793)
Total expenditures 3,029,073 3,029,073 3,030,866 (1,793)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (3.029,073) (3,029,073) 588,237 3,617,310
Other financing sources (uses)

Proceeds from the issuance of debt 3,698,000 3,698,000 - (3.698,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,698,000 3,698,000 - (3.698,000)
Net change in fund balance 668,927 668,927 588,237 (80,690)

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,095,802 1,095,802 1,095,802 -
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 1,764,729 § 1,764,729 § 1,684,039 § (80,690)
94
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
BRIDGES AND CULVERTS CAPITAL PROJECTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Actual Variance
REVENUES
Taxes $ 498,000 § 498,000 $ 525259 § 27,259
Intergovernmental - - 175,639 175,639
Total revenues 498,000 498,000 700,898 202,898
EXPENDITURES
Transportation 1,720,000 1,791,850 678,299 1,113,551
Total expenditures 1,720,000 1,791,850 678,299 1,113,551
Net change in fund balance (1,222,000) (1,293,850) 22,599 1,316,449
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 3,188,999 3,188,999 3,188,999
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 1,966,999 § 1,895,149 § 3.211,598 § 1,316,449
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

SBOC General Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

SDOC Debt Retirement

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Family Court

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Clerk of Court

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015

$ 399,747 $ 44,966,888 §  (44,940,744) 425,891
2,189,927 1,888,799 (2,189,927) 1,888,799

$ 2,689674 $ 46,855687 $§  (47,130,671) 2,314,680
$ 2,589,674 $ 46,855,687 (47,130,671) 2,314,680
$ 2589674 $ 46,855,687 $  (47,130,671) 2,314,690
$ 65693280 §$§ 34737252 § (33,900,955) 6,529,587
656,642 564,475 (656,642) 564,475

$ 6,349932 § 35301,727 $ (34,557,597) 7,094,062
$ 6,349,932 § 35,301,727 (34,557,597) 7,094,062
$ 6,349,932 § 35301,727 $  (34,557,597) 7,094,062
$ 21273 § 4,810,784 $ (4,811,985) 20,072
$ 21,273 § 4,810,784 $ (4,811,985) 20,072
$ 21,273  § 4810784 § (4,811,985) 20,072
$ 21,273  § 4810784 § (4,811,985) 20,072
$ 283627 § 1,324,056 § (1,298,028) 309,655
$ 283,627 $ 1,324,056 $ (1,298,028) 309,655
$ 283627 § 1,324,056 $ (1,298,028) 309,655
$ 283,627 $ 1,324,056 § (1,298,028) 309,655
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Municipal Tax Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Keowee Fire District

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Bue to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Magistrate Cash Bond/Juror Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Delinquent Tax Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015

$ 56,907 5,348,025 § (5,325,975) 78,957
200,996 182,679 (200,996) 182,679

$ 257,903 5,530,704 § (5,526,971) 261,636
$ 257,903 5,530,704 § (5,526,971) 261,636
$ 257,903 5,530,704 § (5,526,971) 261,636
$ 13,033 692,594 § (696,925) 8,702
7,659 8,189 (7,659) 8,189

$ 20,692 700,783 § (704,584) 16,891
$ 20,692 700,783 $ (704,584) 16,891
$ 20,692 700,783 $ (704,584) 16,891
$ 13,918 1,012,521 § (997,051) 29,388
$ 13,918 1,012,521 § (997,051) 29,388
$ 13,918 1,012,521 § (997,051) 29,388
$ 13,918 1,012,521 § (997,051) 29,388
$ 978,928 1,866,148 § (2,200,300) 644,776
$ 978,928 1,866,148 § (2,200,300) 644,776
$ 978,928 1,866,148 § (2,200,300) 644,776
$ 978,928 1,866,148 § (2,200,300) 644,776
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Sheriff's Office

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Fireman's Insurance and Inspection Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Probate Judge

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Register of Deeds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015

$ 128,497 $ 266,096 $ (262,807) $ 131,786
$ 128,497 § 266,096 $ (262,807) $ 131,786
$ 128,497 §$ 266,096 $ (262,807) $ 131,786
$ 128,497 § 266,096 $ (262,807) $ 131,786
$ 101 § 181,780 § (181,758) $ 123
$ 101 § 181,780 § (181,758) $§ 123
$ 101 § 181,780 (181,758) § 123
$ 101 § 181,780 § (181,758) § 123
$ 13,870 § 14 § - 8 13,884
$ 13870 $ 14 8 - 8 13,884
$ 13,870 § 14 8 - 8 13,884
$ 13870 § 14 $ - § 13,884
$ 1565616 § 1 8 (15,516) $ -
$ 15515 § 1 8 (15,516) $ -
$ 15515 § 1 8 (15,516) § -
$ 15515 § 1 8 (15,516) $ -
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Solicitor's Worthless Check Program
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,328 § 55,759 § (74,017) $ 70
Total assets $ 18,328 § 55,759 § (74,017) § 70
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies $ 18328 § 55759 § (74,017) § 70
Total liabilities $ 18,328 § 55,759 § (74,017) $ 70
June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Retiree Health Reimbursement
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 794 $ 296,227 $ (297,021) § -
Total assets $ 794 § 286,227 § (297,021) § -
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies $ 7949 $ 286,227 $ (297,021) $ -
Total liabilities $ 794 § 296,227 $ (297,021) $ -
June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Employee Health Flex Spending
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,008 $§ 101,191 § (127,199) $ -
Total assets $ 26,008 $ 101,191 § (127,199) § -
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies $ 26,008 § 101,191  § (127,199) $ -
Total liabilities $ 26,008 §$ 101,191 § (127,199) $ -
June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Pickens County
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24339 $ 40,055 3 (33422) $§ 30,972
Total assets $ 24339 § 40,055 § (33.422) $ 30.972
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies $ 24339 § 40,055 $ (33422) § 30,972
Total liabilities $ 24,339 § 40,056 § (33,422) $ 30,972
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Williamsburg County

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Community Development

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing districts and agencies
Total liabilities

June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
3 25,164 22,308 $ (25,164) $ 22,308
$ 25,164 22,308 $ (25,164) $ 22,308
3 25,164 22,308 $ (25,164) $§ 22,308
$ 25,164 22,308 $ (25,164) § 22,308
June 30, June 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015
$ - 44348 § - 8 44,348
$ - 44348 § - 8 44,348
$ - 44348 § - 8 44,348
$ - 44348 § - 8 44,348
3 7,713,339 05,766,047 $  (95,188,867) $ 8,290,519
3,055,224 2,644,142 (3,055,224) 2,644,142
$ 10,768,563 98,410,189 § (98.244,091) §$ 10,934,661
$ 10,768,563 08,410,189 $ (98,244,091) $ 10,934,661
$ 10,768,563 98,410,189 § (98,244,091) $ 10,934,661
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF COURT FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES

CLERK OF COURT AND MAGISTRATE COURT

JUNE 30, 2015
Amount Remitted Amount Remitted Amount
to County to State Allocated to
Collections Treasurer Treasurer Victims' Services
Clerk of Court
Fines and Fees $ 12,975 $ - 12,975 3 -
Assessments 10,222 - 6,909 3,313
Surcharges 63,167 - 24,220 38,947
Totals 3 86,364 $ - 44,104 $ 42,260
Magistrate Court
Fines and Fees $ 290,937 $ 280,937 - $ -
Assessments 327,336 - 292,332 35,004
Surcharges 159,659 - 131,329 28,330
Totals $ 777,932 $ 280,937 423,661 $ 63,334
Victims' Assistance
Balance for victims' assistance - beginning of year $ 78,866
Amounts allocated for victims' assistance - 7/1/14 - 6/30/15
Assessments and surcharges 105,594
Amounts spent for victims' assistance in fiscal year 2015
from assessments and surcharges
Salaries and benefits (203,080)
General fund subsidy 40,000
Balance for victims' assistance - end of year $ 21,380
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the County's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required supplementary
information, and supplementary information says about the County's overall financial health.

Contents Page
FINANCIAI TIONAS ...ttt ieeeeretiescsssenesseesesssasaeneseestessesssnasesnsserassssesenseessesessssesssassannannmesneenens 102 - 108

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CaPACIY ...ivcriinireiiiinimosesiiisiisnieisiassiaiiosiosssssessssssssssessessanssosssosssssssssessasssesssssssssasssssssssansasnn 109 - 112
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant local
revenue sources.

DEbt CAPACILY .....cccoirieriirinrinnsniianin s resssasssessssesstesesssstsssssssassssssesassssessostnesassasessssessnssasasssnsasansas 113 -117

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's
current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and ECONomic INFOrMAtioN ........ccceeeeccrnerrcrrnsonneersneronseseessneseseseessnssasssnassassnsssssessanes 118 and 121
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County's financial activities take place.

Operating INfOrMAtION ...ttt rncsenensasessaesaesessaesassassssssnsnssassassnsansnesansnnnans 122 - 127
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the County's financial reports
for the relevant year. The County implemented GASB 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide
information (unless otherwise indicated) include information beginning in that year.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NET POSITION BY ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

IEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE R

Govemmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities
net position

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Tota! business-type activities
net position

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government
net position

Fiscal Year
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2016
$ 43464806 $ 95790297 $ 105,195,121 $ 107,401,916 $ 104,968,618 $ 109,846,322 110,258,142 $ 95788551 $ 98,724,529 115,776,114
1,382,218 10,196,048 11,265,793 13,806,528 19,344,365 6,607,598 4,805,047 4,427,846 3,974,459 4,547,704
19,461,663 13,833,247 20,014,132 21,310,360 17,080,527 28,662,046 28,540,516 43,370,642 41,790,290 (2,830,210)
$ 64308687 $ 119819592 $ 137475046 $ 142,618,804 $ 141,373,510 $ 145,115,966 143,603,705 § 143,587,039 $ 144,489,278 117,493,608
$ 8043088 $ 7,503,708 $ 2908740 $ 2715788 $ 2,292,824 $ 2,195,987 11,367,562 $ 16,167,255 $ 15418,889 15,676,314
5,420,623 5,987,762 3,008,070 3,201,022 3,608,176 3,844,173 1,107,930 (16,086) (1,746.495) (4,596,442)
$ 13463711 §$ 13491470 $ 5916810 $ 5916810 $ 5899000 $ 6,040,160 12,475,492 $ 16,151,189 $ 13,672,394 11,079,872
$ 51,507,894 3 103,294,005 $ 109,103,861 $ 110,117,704 §$ 107,261,442 $ 112,042,309 121,626,704 $ 111,955806 & 114,143,418 131,452,428
1,382,218 10,196,048 11,265,793 13,906,528 19,344,365 6,607,598 4,805,047 4,427,846 3,974,459 4,547,704
24,882,286 19,821,009 23,022,202 24,511,382 20,666,703 32,506,219 20,648,446 43,354,576 40,043,795 (7,426,652)
$ 77772398 $ 133,311,062 $ 143,391,856 $ 148,535,614 § 147,272,510 $ 151,156,126 156,079,197 $ 159,738,228 $ 158,161,672 128,573,480




OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Expenses
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 9,703,484 13,2852214 § 16,628,618 $ 18,548,180 $ 12,779,958 $ 11515584 § 11697494 $ 11,261,859 $ 10,047,351 10,126,223
Public safety 11,385,230 12,018,828 10,671,085 15,313,777 16,735,352 17,597,428 18,483,001 19,204,344 20,131,431 20,502,284
Transportation 3,073,462 693,254 5,327,716 5,036,913 6,618,188 7,945,478 7,495,563 7,372,983 8,008,004 6,916,146
Public works - - - - 3,728,944 3,892,013 4,901,973 1,930,852 3,897,503 3,887,619
Culture and recreation 3,102,417 2,859,466 3,069,785 2,037,675 2,857,679 2,917,401 3,019,172 2,986,367 3,213,785 3,343,201
Judicial 2,144,967 2,188,858 2,179,220 2,197,316 2,521,566 2,769,534 2,970,949 3,019,193 3,046,553 3,233,141
Education 972,117 1,112,556 1,048,376 1,036,754 1,041,785 1,066,000
Health and welfare 717,572 6,009,235 790,730 785,094 764,810 1,293,650 1,262,341 494,226 1,057,650 400,441
Economic development - - - - 553,264 756,688 617,995 1,517,386 2,454,331 1,291,090
Miscellaneous 899,571 - - - - - - - - -
Interest and fiscal changes 722,418 560,882 445,205 447,120 384,690 313,024 590,972 854,537 852,127 642,981
Total governmental activities expenses 31,749,121 37,625,737 39,112,449 44,366,075 46,916,568 50,113,356 52,087,836 49,678,501 53,750,520 51,409,126
Business-type activities:
Rock quarry 2,480,151 2,260,482 2,352,819 2,246,791 2,724,555 2,310,280 2,228,448 2,702,814 2,725,580 2,760,715
FOCUS - - - - - - 18,604 228,910 1,606,703 2,324,110
Solid waste 4,429,812 4,700,221 - - - 21,245 - - - -
Total business-type activities expenses 6,909,963 6,960,703 2,352,819 2,246,791 2,724,555 2,331,525 2,247,052 2,931,724 4,332,283 5,084,825
Total primary govemment expenses 38,659,084 44,586,440 41,465,268 46,612,866 49,641,123 52,444,881 54,334,888 52,610,225 58,082,803 56,493,951
Program revenues
Primary govemment:
Governmenta! activities:
Charges for services
General government 4,272,850 4,473,204 5,138,762 4,657,574 635,354 682,115 699,104 721,041 743,811 957,289
Public safety 137,139 125,180 153,435 133,514 712,860 581,997 545,666 954,080 1,060,750 1,121,939
Transportation - - - - 549,140 689,700 911,261 954,518 842,073 840,747
Public works - - - - 861,453 1,186,979 1,221,323 1,145,528 1,202,131 1,143,107
Culture and recreation - - - - 348,402 376,308 377,337 358,074 377,862 378,066
Judicial 1,860 2,889 2,460 1,730 1,281,388 1,106,359 1,109,336 1,005,102 907,605 779,808
Health and welfare - - - - 33,670 - 87,487 - - -
Economic development - - - - - - - 9,500 - -
Operating grants and contributions 1,366,838 1,424,205 1,292,982 1,994,989 2,097,997 2,658,014 1,391,801 1,646,556 1,925,061 1,888,624
Capital grants and contributions 2,149,799 898,741 2,498,147 2,394,832 4,251,132 3,943,974 1,899,031 677,399 2,022,895 2,531,412
Total governmental activities
program revenues 7,928,486 6,924,219 9,085,776 9,182,639 10,771,396 11,225,446 8,242,346 7,471,798 9,072,188 9,640,992
(Continued)
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Rock quarry 2,993,067 2,771,383 3,082,349 3,037,173 3,404,756 3,242,740 2,854,380 2,779,245 3,393,169 478,009
FOCUS - 1,110 913,801 44,879 4,166,519
Solid waste 1,014,610 1,125,509 - - - - - - - -
Operating grants and contributions 25,062 - - - - - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions - 20,115 - - - 210,434 6,455,725 3,141,110 - -
Total business-type activities
program revenues 4,032,739 3,917,007 3,082,349 3,037,173 3,404,756 3,453,174 9,311,215 6,834,156 3,438,048 4,644,528
Total primary government
program revenues 11,961,225 10,841,226 12,168,125 12,219,812 14,176,152 14,678,620 17,553,561 14,305,954 12,510,236 14,285,520
Net (expense) revenue
Governmental activities $ (23,820,635) $ (30,701,518) $ (30,026,673) $ (35,183,436) $ (36,145,172) $ (38,887,910) $ (43,845490) $ (42,206,703) $ (44,678,332) $ (41,768,134)
Business-type activities (2,877,224) (3.043,696) 729,530 790,382 680,201 1,121,649 7,064,163 3,902,432 (894,235) (440,297)
Total primary government {26,697,859) (33,745,214) (29,297,143) (34,393,054) (35,464,971) (37,766,261) (36,781,327) (38,304,271) (45,572,567) (42,208,431)
General revenues and other changes in net position
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Property taxes 29,468,762 30,079,163 32,121,201 33,947,622 35,671,288 36,735,928 38,093,094 37,638,742 39,926,946 40,208,079
Other taxes 1,241,952 1,203,630 1,221,173 1,231,011 848,922 874,795 755,113 772,729 843,741 883,996
Unrestricted grants and contributions 3,119,522 3,431,519 3,816,253 3,639,338 3,038,376 2,577,854 2,286,169 2,732,272 2,743,615 2,760,812
Unrestricted investment eamings 1,117,714 1,623,229 1,485,208 1,061,380 498,702 370,259 427,725 350,417 483,260 521,943
Sale of capital assets (1,112) (253,191) (18,678) (740,289) - - - - - -
Capital contributions 7,567,013 - - - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous 4,286,662 762,775 641,535 287,463 161,281 137,299 137,819 - - -
Special items - - - - 825,000 944,370 - - - -
Insurance recoveries - - - - - - - 232,576 - 203,750
Proceeds from legal settlement - - - - - - - 375,000 - -
Transfers (3.021,235) (2,846,497) 800,878 800,669 687,650 989,861 633,309 116,991 1,583,009 750,000
Total govemmental activities general
revenues and other changes in
net position 43,779,278 33,800,628 40,067,568 40,327,194 41,731,219 42,630,366 42,333,229 42,218,727 45,580,571 45,328,580
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings 208,908 224,958 111,247 110,287 7.449 9,372 4,478 3.714 (1,552) 13,883
Miscellaneous - - - - - - - 37,056 - -
Transfers 3,021,235 2,846,497 (800,878) (800,669) (687,650) (989,861) {633,309) (116,991) (1.583,009) (750,000}

Total business type activities
general revenues and other
changes in net position 3,230,143 3,071,455 (689,631) (790,382) (680,201) (980,489) (628,831) (76,221) (1,584.561) (736,117)

Total primary government general
revenues and other changes

in net position $ 47009421 §$ 36972083 §$ 39,377,937 $ 39,536,812 $ 41051018 $ 41,649.877 $ 41704398 $ 42,142,506 $ 43,996,010 $ 44,592,463
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Fund
Reserved $ 679,695 § 599,801 § 179,781 § 590,626 $ 4,734,880
Unreserved 13,918,914 12,868,375 18,107,692 22,832,404 19,663,178
Total General fund $ 14,598,609 § 13,468,276 § 18,287,473 § 23,423,030 § 24,398,068
All Other Governmenta! Funds
Reserved $ 1885917 8 10,196,048 § 11,265,793 $ 11,422,123 § 18,103,322
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 3,847,185 - - - 2,471,822
Debt service funds - - - - -
Capital projects funds 1,026,126 965,737 4,459,452 2,962,854 -
Total all other governmenta! funds ~ $ 6.759.228 $ 11,161,785 § 15725245 $ 14,384977 § 20,575,144
Total all governmental funds $ 21357837 § 24,630,061 § 34,012,718 § 37,808,007 $ 44,973,212
General Fund
Nonspendable $ 482489 § 7473784 $ 7575436 S 7974803 § 7,893,345
Restricted 1,401,505 - - -
Assigned 7,338,896 8,236,071 6,319,226 6,201,707 5,859,340
Unassigned 13,008,265 7,521,789 7,912,690 7,956,354 7,680,785
Total General fund $ 25,172,051 § 24,633,149 § 21807352 § 22132964 § 21,433,470

All Other Governmenta! Funds

Nonspendable $ 4,782,659 § 5150854 § 5,120,760 § 5715670 § 6,007,910
Restricted 23,000,044 21,761,098 31,810,874 23,056,108 12,010,393
Committed - - - 1,830,000
Assigned 4,720,626 6,514,510 - 1,418,771 -
Unassigned (219,951) (21.702) - - (5,430)
Total all other governmental funds $ 32,283378 § 33,404,760 § 36,931,634 $ 30,180,549 $ 19,842,873
Total all governmental funds $ 57455429 § 58,037,909 § 58,738986 $ 52,323,513 $ 41,276,343

Note: GASB 54 was implemented during fiscal year 2011.
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OCOMEE COUNTY, SOUTH CTARDLIMA,

CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCES OF GOVERNMENRTAL FURDE
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Special items:

Gain on sale of land - - - - - 944,370 - - - -
Courthouse settlement - - - . 825,000 - - - - -
Tota! Special ltems - - - - 825,000 944,370 - - - -
Net change in fund balances $ 1,469,670 $ 3,272,224 $ 4,071,029 $ 3,795,293 $ 3,998,286 $ 12,482,217 $ 582,480 $ (728,630) $§ (6,415473) § (11,047,170)

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures 11.28% 12.86% 1.73% 1.95% 0.95% 0.75% 1.65% 9.28% 22.36% 8.71%

™ For fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, fee in lieu of taxes and franchise fees were reclassified to property taxes and licenses, permits and fees, respectively.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Total Estimated Taxable Assessed
Total Taxable Direct Tax Actual Valug as a
Real Personal Assessed Rate Taxable Percentage of Actual

Year Property Property Other Value Applied Value Taxable Value
2006 $ 183,221,480 $ 40,272,285 $ 183,827,876 $ 407,321,641 75.6 $  6,925,984,344 5.88 %
2007 255,586,460 39,243,746 141,572,055 436,402,261 73.0 7,787,962,417 5.60
2008 274,733,180 39,153,407 143,279,238 457,165,825 723 8,240,526,066 5.55
2009 295,542,685 37,818,501 139,742,088 473,103,274 72.3 8,465,109,305 5.59
2010 309,318,820 34,204,632 141,652,366 485,175,818 70.0 8,780,990,487 5.53
2011 308,416,974 32,632,445 173,553,229 514,602,648 67.1 8,896,160,854 5.78
2012 313,231,359 41,706,217 163,031,512 517,969,088 69.0 9,021,922,673 5.74
2013 318,171,344 35,811,449 161,574,917 515,557,710 69.0 9,047,217,892 5.70
2014 322,552,303 41,212,757 157,529,631 521,294,691 71.0 9,142,100,263 5.70
2015 320,742,833 40,299,075 164,301,126 525,343,034 71.0 9,169,352,176 5.73

Source: Oconee County Auditor

Note: Property in the County was reassessed at December 31, 2005 and 2010, which is reflected in the taxable assessed values stated above for fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2012.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Oconee County:

Operating 68.0 64.3 64.1 64.1 63.9 61.1 58.9 58.9 57.6 57.6
Debt service 4.5 41 4.1 4.1 14 1.9 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
Economic development 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.2 22
Bridges and culverts - 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Road Maintenance - - - - - - - - 21 2.1
Tri-County Tech Operations 2.1 26 2.1 2.1 2.7 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

Total Oconee County 75.6 73. 72.3 72.3 70.0 67.1 69.0 69.0 71.0 71.0

School District
Operating 123.0 113.0 109.8 110.5 111.4 107.1 101.4 110.1 110.1 110.1
Debt Service 18.0 18.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0

Total Schoo! District 141.0 131.0 140.8 141.5 142.4 138.1 132.4 141.1 141.1 141.1

Special Districts
City of Seneca 50.0 50.0 50.0 52.3 52.3 52.3 52.3 52.3 349 36.4
City of Salem 30.0 30.0 30.0 31.0 32.4 32.4 324 324 55.3 55.3
City of Walhalla 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0 84.0
City of West Union 39.0 39.0 39.0 40.3 413 41.3 42.0 45.0 46.0 46.0
City of Westminster 88.0 88.0 88.0 90.7 90.7 80.7 90.7 90.7 90.7 97.3
Emergency Services Protection District - - 29 29 29 2.9 2.9 29 29 29
Keowee fire special district 14.5 13.7 14.0 13.5 14.5 14.4 14.5 14.5 14.5 14.5

Total Special Districts 305.5 304.7 307.9 314.7 318.1 318.0 318.8 321.8 328.3 336.4

Total direct and overlapping rates 522.1 508.7 521.0 528.5 530.5 523.2 520.2 531.9 540.4 548.5

Source: Oconee County Auditor

Note:
Overlapping rates are those of loca! and county governments that apply to property owners within Oconee County, South Carolina. Not all overlapping
rates apply to all of Oconee County, South Carolina property owners (e.g., the rates for the city or special district apply only to the portion of the government's
property owners whose property is located within the geographic boundaries of the city or special district).
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2015 2008
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Value* Value Rank Taxpayer Value* Value

1 Duke Energy Corporation $ 143,912,170 27.39% 1 Duke Energy Corporation $ 133,213,200 32.70%
2 Blue Ridge Electric Coop Inc 6,960,720 1.32% 2 Blue Ridge Electric Coop Inc 5,398,540 1.33%
3 BASF Catalyst LLC 5,908,480 1.12% 3 Engelhard Corporation 3,943,380 0.97%
4 Sandvik, Inc 3,004,922 0.57% 4 Bellsouth Telecommunications Inc 3,480,480 0.86%
5 Cyrovac Inc 2,965,630 0.56% 5 Cyrovac Inc 3,249,830 0.80%
6 Borg Wamer Torq Systems Inc 2,687,914 0.51% 6 Itron Electricity Metering Inc. 1,769,980 0.43%
7 Itron Electricity Metering Inc. 1,876,649 0.36% 7 US Engine Valve Company 1,636,800 0.40%
8 Belisouth Telecommunications Inc 1,872,160 0.36% 8 Square D Company 1,609,050 0.40%
9 Johnson Controls Battery Group 1,750,098 0.33% 9 Westpoint Stevens Inc. 1,528,620 0.38%
10 Sandra H Ingram 1,601,670 0.30% 10 Valenite LLC 1,521,420 0.37%

$ 172,540,413 32.84% $ 157,361,320 38.63%

Total Gross Digest Assessment 3 525,343,034 Total Gross Digest Assessment $ 407,321,641
Source: Oconee County Auditor
* Actual
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected within the
Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Year for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage
Ended Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2006 $ 29,734,480 $ 28,537,940 95.98% $ 898,377 $ 29,436,317 99.00%
2007 31,713,210 30,738,875 96.93% 758,149 31,497,024 99.32%
2008 33,109,438 32,008,545 96.67% 649,634 32,658,179 98.64%
2009 33,769,581 32,376,414 95.87% 737,626 33,114,040 98.06%
2010 35,142,666 33,697,683 95.89% 647,573 34,345,256 97.73%
2011 35,142,660 33,749,807 96.04% 720,960 34,470,767 98.09%
2012 37,241,977 35,899,993 96.40% 1,341,984 37,241,977 100.00%
2013 35,707,481 34,513,231 96.66% 901,118 35,414,349 99.18%
2014 36,786,238 35,519,419 96.56% 735,580 36,255,009 98.56%
2015 37,438,922 36,298,823 96.95% 703,580 37,002,403 98.83%

Sources: Oconee County Treasurer
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year General Special Special Total Percentage
Ended Obligation Source Source Refunding Capital Revenue Capital Primary of Persona! Per
June 30 Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Leases Bond Leases Government Income ' Capita *

2006 $ 11,415000 $ 640,977 $ - $ 1947815 $ - $ - 14,003,792 0.7% 196
2007 10,275,000 - - 1,047,143 - - 11,322,143 0.5% 156
2008 9,075,000 - - 2,185,058 - - 11,260,058 0.5% 154
2009 7,800,000 - - 1,557,968 - - 9,357,968 0.4% 127
2010 6,465,000 3,500,000 - 912,932 - - 10,877,932 0.5% 146
2011 22,365,381 3,500,000 - 617,659 - - 26,483,040 1.1% 357
2012 19,927,443 3,315,000 - 1,928,251 - - 25,170,694 1.1% 337
2013 20,806,549 3,125,000 - 1,300,953 - - 25,232,502 1.0% 337
2014 17,839,292 - 2,993,000 2,987,997 - - 23,820,289 0.9% 317
2015 15,645,178 - 2,758,000 1,844,489 - - 20,247,667 n/a 265

Source: Oconee Finance Department

! See the table for Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data used for these calculations.

Notes:

Prior to fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the County had used the straight-line method to amortize bond issue premiums/discounts. Generally accepted
accounting principles require the use of the effective interest method of amortization. Beginning fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the County started using the
effective interest method for amortization of all bond issue premiums/discounts so as to comply with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites
States of America.

The Oconee County General Obligation Bond, Series 2007 for the Keowee Key Fire Special Tax District was not included above until the fiscal year 2013.
Since this bond was issued for a special tax district, it does not impact the debt limit of the County.

Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Restricted Ratio of Net Bonded
Property Gross Bonded Debt Service Net Bonded Net Bonded Debt Debt Per
Year Population Assessed Value Debt Funds Debt to Assessed Value Capita
2006 71,490 $ 407,321,641 $ 11,415000 § 1,382,218 § 10,032,782 2.46% $ 140
2007 72,407 436,402,261 10,275,000 1,613,985 8,661,015 1.98% 120
2008 73,089 457,165,825 9,075,000 1,880,690 7,194,310 1.57% 98
2009 73,829 473,103,274 7,800,000 2,210,845 5,589,155 1.18% 76
2010 74,364 485,175,818 6,465,000 1,607,112 4,857,888 1.00% 65
2011 74,226 514,602,648 22,365,381 1,218,659 21,146,722 4.11% 285
2012 74,583 517,969,088 19,927,443 1,235,487 18,691,956 3.61% 251
2013 74,913 515,557,710 20,806,549 1,440,108 19,366,441 3.76% 259
2014 75,192 521,294,691 17,839,292 1,095,802 16,743,490 3.21% 223
2015 76,280 525,343,034 15,645,178 1,682,706 13,962,472 2.66% 183

Source: Oconee County Finance Department

Note:
Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2015
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable * Debt
Direct debt:
Oconee County direct debt $ 15,645,178 100% $ 15,645,178
Overlapping debt:
Schoo! District of Oconee County 48,190,075 100% 48,190,075
Incorporated Municipalities:
Town of Westminster 162,610 1.19% 1,935
Town of West Union - 0.29% -
Town of Salem - 0.14% -
City of Walhalla - 1.54% -
City of Seneca 195,468 6.54% 12,784
Special Purpose District:
Emergency Services Protection District - 90.30% -
Keowee Fire District 680,000 8.84% 60,112
Tota! overlapping debt 48,264,906
Totel direct and overlapping debt $ 63,910,084

SOURCES:
Oconee County Auditor and Oconee County Finance Department

NOTE:
Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the County. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that

is borne by the residents and businesses of the Oconee County. This process recognizes that, when considering the County’s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden bome by residents
and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.

! The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the County's taxable assessed value
that is within the District's/Municipality's boundaries and dividing it by the County's total taxable assessed value.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2013
Assessed valuation $ 525,343,034

Debt limit - 8 percent of total assessed value 42,027,443

Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds 14,965,178
Less: amount set aside for repayment of
general obligation bonds (1,682,706)
Debt qualifying for margin 13,282,472
Legal debt margin $ 28,744971
Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Assessed Value of
Taxable Property $ 407,321,641 $ 436,402,261 $ 457,165,825 $ 473,103,274 $ 485,175,818 $ 514,602,648 $ 517,969,088 $ 515,557,710 $ 521,294,691 $ 525,343,034
Legal Debt Limit’ $ 32585731 $ 34912181 $ 36,573,266 $ 37,848262 § 38,814,066 $ 41,168,212 $ 41,437,527 $ 41244617 $ 41703575 $ 42,027,443
Net Debt Applicable
to Limit 10,032,782 8,661,015 7,194,310 5,589,155 4,857,888 20,261,341 17,844,513 18,531,441 16,054,198 13,282,472
Legal debt margin $ 22552949 § 26,251,166 $ 29,378,956 $ 32,259,107 $ 33,956,177 $ 20,906871 $ 23,593,014 $ 22713176 $ 25,649,377 $ 28,744,971
Total net debt applicable
to the limit as a
percentage of debt limit 30.79% 24.81% 19.67% 14.77% 12.52% 49.22% 43.06% 44.93% 38.50% 31.60%

Source:
Oconee County Auditor and Oconee County Treasurer

* Calculated at eight percent of the total taxable assessed value.

Note: Under South Carolina Constitution Article X, Section 14, 7(a), Oconee County's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 8 percent of the total assessed property value.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS

Source: Oconee County Finance Department

2010 Special Source Revenue Bonds - Pointe West Project

Fee in Lieu Debt Service Requirements
Year of Taxes Principal * Interest Total Coverage
2012 $ 346,000 $ 185,000 $ 161,000 $ 346,000 1.00
2013 342,480 180,000 152,480 342,490 1.00
2014 343,750 200,000 143,750 343,750 1.00

2014 Special Source Refunding Revenue Bonds - Pointe West Project

Fee in Lieu Debt Service Requirements
Year of Taxes Principal ' Interest Total Coverage
2015 $ 320,301 3 235,000 $ 85,301 $ 320,301 1.00

! Principal payments were not scheduled in the period in which the debt was issued.

Note:

Additional details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found on the notes to the

financial statements.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal Per Capita County County
Fiscal Income Personal School Median Unemployment
Year Population * (in thousands) ® Income ® Enroliment Age® Rate®
2006 71,490 3 2,101,697 $ 29,378 10,474 40.9 8.9%
2007 72,407 2,218,736 30,601 10,411 41.3 6.9%
2008 73,089 2,342,766 32,970 10,377 41.6 7.3%
2009 73,829 2,324,139 31,599 10,402 424 13.3%
2010 74,364 2,304,809 31,655 10,629 434 11.4%
201 74,226 2,378,718 33,988 10,570 428 10.0%
2012 74,583 2,345,709 34,387 10,546 432 8.8%
2013 74,913 2,595,710 34,650 10,567 43.4 7.7%
2014 75,192 2,691,445 35,794 10,548 n/a 6.3%
2015 76,280 n/a n/a 10,441 n/a n/a

® US Census Bureau, Population Division

® US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
 School District of Oconee County, SC

9 US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics

n/a - Not available
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2015 2006 *
Number of % of Number of % of
Rank Employer Employees Employed Rank Employer Employees Employed
1 Duke Energy Corporation 3,038 9.63% 1 n/a n/a n/a
2 School District of Oconee County 1,605 5.09% 2 n/a n/a n/a
3 Oconee Medica! Center 1,300 4.12% 3 n/a n/a nfa
4 Borg Wamer Torq Systems Inc 750 2.38% 4 n/a n/a n/a
5 Itron Inc 720 2.28% 5 n/a n/a nfa
6 Koyo Bearings USA Inc 620 1.97% 6 n/a n/a nfa
7 Schneider Electric - Square D 550 1.74% 7 n/a n/a nfa
8 Oconee County Government 450 1.43% 8 n/a n/a n/a
9 U.S. Engine Valve Corp. 410 1.30% 9 nfa n/a nfa
10 Greenfield Industries 360 1.14% 10 n/a nfa n/a

Source: SC Appalachian Council of Governments

! Data for 2006 was not available.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Governmental Activities
General Government
Administrative Services - - - - - - - - 1 11
Administrator 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 2
County Council 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Facilities Maintenance 10 11 11 10 10 11 11 " 1 12
Finance 7 7 8 8 9 8 7 6 - -
Human Resources 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 5 - -
Information Technology 11 13 8 8 10 9 12 10 7 5
Planning 2 3 4 3 3 3 2 1 - -
Procurement 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Register of Deeds 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4
Registration and Elections 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Vehicle Maintenance 15 15 15 14 14 14 14 14 14 13
Assessor 14 14 18 21 17 18 18 18 18 19
Auditor 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Delinquent Tax Collector 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Treasurer 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 6
Total General Administration 96 99 97 98 96 96 98 94 89 87
Public Safety
Animal Control 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Community Development 10 10 11 1 9 9 7 9 9 11
Communications 17 19 18 18 18 18 22 22 22 22
Coroner 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Detention Center 25 27 28 36 36 36 31 35 36 50
Emergency Services 3 3 3 16 12 13 20 3 3 3
Rural Fire 4 4 4 - - - - 17 17 17
Sheriff's Office 84 88 87 89 90 87 88 91 91 94
Total Public Safety 150 158 168 177 172 170 175 184 185 204
Transportation
Airport 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 5
Roads and Bridges 37 37 38 38 38 38 36 37 37 38
Total Transportation 42 42 43 43 43 43 40 41 41 43
(Continued)
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Governmental Activities (Continued)
Judicial Services

Clerk of Court 10 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 1 12

Magistrate 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

Probate Court 5 5 5 6 6 7 6 6 6 6

Solicitor 6 7 7 8 10 10 10 10 10 9

Total Judicial Services 30 31 32 33 35 36 35 35 36 36
Health and Welfare

Legislative Delegation 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Veteran's Affairs 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Total Health and Welfare 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Public Works

Soil and Water 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Solid Waste 43 43 42 39 36 36 36 36 38 38

Total Public Works 44 44 43 40 37 37 37 37 39 39
Culture and Recreation

Library 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 24

Parks, Recreation, and Tourism 10 13 13 13 14 13 13 13 14 10

Total Culture and Recreation 28 31 31 31 32 31 31 31 32 34
Economic Development 2 2 2 2 2 3 4 2 4 3
Total Governmental Activities 395 411 410 428 421 420 424 428 430 450
Business-Type Activities

Rock Quarry 17 17 16 16 16 16 15 15 17 16
Oconee FOCUS - - - - - - - - 3 3

Total Business-Type Activities 17 17 16 16 16 16 15 16 20 19
Total Primary Government 413 428 426 444 437 436 439 443 450 469

Note:
The above counts are based on the actual number of full-time employees at June 30 for each fiscal year.

Source: Oconee County Payroll Data
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General government

County council

Regular meetings 24 24 22 24 22 24 21 22 19 22

Special meetings 6 8 15 14 15 10 9 7 7 7
Administrative Services

Accounts payable disbursements - - - - - - - - 14,770 16,500

Payroll disbursements - - - - - - - - 12,542 12,500

Employment applications processed - - - - - - - - 1,483 1,345

Employment terminations processed - - - - - - - - 94 99
Finance

Accounts payable disbursements 9,541 10,516 10,767 10,939 10,869 10,338 10,775 10,012 - -

Payroli disbursements 11,530 12,532 12,753 12,298 12,427 13,103 12,700 13,235 - -
Human resources

Applications processed 1,656 2,568 2,621 2,832 3,148 3,300 2,321 1,510 - -

Terminations 72 72 62 0 108 115 97 93 - -
Procurement

Number of requests for proposals (RFP) 8 2 7 8 8 1 13 15 3 7

Number of purchase orders 698 875 1,020 1,002 1,002 872 846 820 923 750
Register of Deeds

Recorded documents 23,884 23,458 20,226 15,832 15,832 15,502 16,746 16,262 16,695 16,342
Registration and elections

Current registered voters 38,391 39,244 44,233 50,000 46,785 44,844 47,000 46,000 49,000 52,000
Vehicle maintenance

Repair orders processed 2,421 2,640 2,600 1,272 1,272 2,420 2,311 2,225 2,460 2,550
Assessor

Assessment appeals processed 6,500 6,500 800 500 1,208 6,200 1,274 730 650 650
Auditor

Real estate, vehicle, and business property notices nfa 141,037 145,712 148,031 156,180 149,521 150,169 149,251 79,063 151,500

Temporary tags n/a 1,272 1,223 1,167 1,144 1,170 1,045 1,033 984 1,000
Board of assessment and appeals

Appeals filed 8 131 180 100 25 61 n/a 15 - -

Hearings held 3 25 - 29 6 30 38 4 - -
Delinquent tax collector

Records processed 5,955 9,085 6,892 7,551 8,080 6,719 6,216 6,680 6,156 5,995
Treasurer

Tax notices mailed 141,805 129,137 n/a n/a n/a 152,011 175,572 193,569 203,247 213,409
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Public Safety
Animal control
Animals received 5,234 5,198 5,433 5,434 5,241 5,300 4,000 4,000 3,808 3,600
Animals adopted nla 721 767 965 1,029 1,200 1,000 1,000 1,143 1,200
Community Development
Land use/Subdivision reviews n/a 164 156 209 150 278 400 420 450 481
Permits issued 2,100 1,667 2,207 1,338 1,000 1,076 1,185 1,200 1,483 1,703
Coroner
Deaths 362 366 496 547 559 619 677 641 675 n/a
Detention Center
Average daily population 130 139 154 189 169 149 129 135 157 165
Emergency services
Medical rescue call responses 4,538 4,457 4,379 4,509 4,521 4,764 5,129 5,022 4,807 5,000
Special rescue call responses 36 29 31 62 53 10 27 31 43 50
Fire call responses 2,254 1,812 1,306 2,133 3,330 5,622 5,800 5,670 5,670 5,670
Hazardous material call responses n/a n/a na n/a 32 20 n/a n/a - -
Sheriff's office
Service calls nfa nfa 48,000 37,666 6,023 35,519 41,257 48,570 48,742 49,500
Arrest warrants served 3,840 3,548 3,382 3,700 3,700 3,407 3,056 3,217 3,291 3,400
Transportation
Roads and bridges
Work orders 2,514 4,849 2,775 6,938 6,938 7,262 6,847 8,709 8,700 8,900
Tons of gravel hauled 42,007 42,007 42,400 32,763 32,263 44,198 41,399 29,873 28,469 29,000
Judicial services
Clerk of court
Foreclosure auctions 138 138 118 63 393 420 300 237 140 150
Cases processed 6,769 6,769 6,810 3,966 6,147 6,810 5,450 5,603 5,493 5,640
Magistrate
Municipal arrest warrants 4,753 5,626 6,670 1,162 2,236 2,034 1,730 7,796 10,700 11,500
Municipal traffic ticket cases 10,297 9,794 11,752 7,250 14,903 13,461 10,305 1,632 n/a n/a
Health and welfare
Department of social services
Food stamps cases 2,787 2,975 3,100 3,800 4,380 4,450 5,223 5,223 5,102 5,200
Child protective services investigations 331 368 310 213 259 270 175 175 334 350
Public works
Solid waste
Municipal solid waste (MSW) tons 36,880 35,816 37,773 36,779 36,779 34,101 36,794 36,632 37,520 36,900
Construction and demolition (C&D) tons 19,594 23,440 25,014 21,308 21,308 17,905 19,299 14,870 18,165 18,500
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Culture and recreation
Library
Computer users 25,344 27,880 39,838 44,556 54,441 53,169 57,095 54,459 47,665 42,803
Registered patrons 41,665 33,131 33,428 32,941 37,370 41,229 49,125 44,640 47,417 39,887
Enterprise fund
Rock quarry
Tons shot 481,097 489,316 552,517 499,084 392,630 450,000 480,000 477,732 497,295 485,000
Tons sold/used 488,917 435,554 493,165 452,608 497,819 458,000 460,000 421,886 381,182 452,616

Source: Oconee County Administrative Services Department
Note: Not all departments have maintained workload indicator data for each year above.
Due to unavailability of actual numbers, projected numbers may have been used for 2015.
n/a - Data not readily available
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 20156
unctio ram
General Government
Nondepartmental
Buildings 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 8
Heavy equipment 5 5 5 [ 3 3 3 2 4 4
Land (acres) 17.912 17.912 17.912 17.912 17.912 17.912 17.912 17.912 18.846 20.581
Vehicles 41 47 45 58 48 46 48 39 37 38
Culture and Recreation
Nondepartmental
Buildings 1 1 1 1 - - - - - -
Land (acres) 0.756 0.75 0.75 0.75 - - - - - -
Library
Buildings - branches 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Land (acres) 2.59 2.59 2.59 2.59 2.59 2.705 2.705 2.705 4.298 4.208
Vehicles 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3
Parks, Recreation, and Tourism
Buildings 18 18 18 18 18 17 18 18 18 17
Heavy equipment 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 5 4 4
Land (acres) 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171 119.171
Vehicles 10 10 12 10 12 12 10 12 14 15
Economic Development
Economic Development
Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 -
Land (acres) 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 3.33 3.33 3.33 2.831 2.831
Vehicles 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Industrial Development Land
for Resale (acres)
Land - Echo Hills Commerce Park - - - - - 406.71 406.71 398.107 397.16 397.16
Land - Golden Comer Commerce Center Park  397.226 397.226 397.226 397.226 397.226 397.226 397.226 366.800 360.87 360.87
Land - Oconee County Commerce Center 33.17 33.17 33.17 33.17 33.17 33.17 33.17 13.38 13.38 13.381
Land - Propex - - - - - - 111.082 111.082 111.082 111.082
Health and Welfare
Nondepartmental
Buildings
Health clinic 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Nursing home 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Other 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Land (acres)
Health clinic 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521 0.521
Nursing home 3.5 35 3.5 3.5 3.5 35 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
Other 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665 1.665
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Eunction/Program
Department of Social Services
Buildings - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Land (acres) - 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472 9.472
Health Department
Buildings 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1
Land (acres) 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198 1.198
Judicial Services
Nondepartmental
Buildings 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Land (acres) 2,785 2.785 2.785 2,785 2.785 2.785 2,785 2.785 2.785 2,785
Magistrate
Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Land (acres) 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.8 0.8
Vehicles 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 3 3
Solicitor
Vehicles 1 1 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 1
Public Safety
Nondepartmental
Buildings 3 4 4 4 4 4 3 7 7 7
Land (acres) 11.486 11.486 11.486 11.486 11.486 11.71 11.71 39.115 39.675 39.675
Vehicles 2 3 3 1 9 11 9 9 9 9
Animal Control
Buildings 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Land (acres) 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35
Vehicles 6 6 8 8 8 8 9 5 6 8
Coroner
Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Land (acres) 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.07 -
Vehicles 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Emergencyi/Fire Services '
Buildings 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 6 6
Patrol boats 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 8 3 3
Vehicles 85 82 87 91 96 103 110 114 121 125
Sheriff's Department
Aircraft - - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2
Patrol boats 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 5 3 3
Vehicles 94 106 118 120 122 119 118 123 136 137
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Function/Program
Public Works
Solid Waste >3
Buildings - manned convenience centers 1 1" 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11
Construction and demolition (C&D) landfill
{acres) 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Closed municipal solid waste (MSW)
landfill (acres) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Heavy equipment 10 12 15 16 16 16 17 56 64 66
Vehicles 15 15 16 16 17 16 18 15 15 15
Transportation
Airport
Buildings 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 3
Heavy equipment - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3
Land (acres) 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.7216 300.722 304.536
Vehicles 5 6 7 7 6 6 6 6 6 7
Roads and Bridges
Buildings 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Heavy equipment 37 38 45 49 54 55 62 60 64 63
Land (acres) 314.836 314.836 314.836 314.836 314.836 314.836 314.836 314.836 312.864 312.864
Vehicles 45 47 53 53 49 51 46 45 47 46
Enterprise Funds
FOCUS
Vehicles - - - - - - 1 1 1 1
Rock Quarry
Buildings 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3
Heavy equipment 21 21 24 25 18 19 18 17 17 20
Land (acres) 26.429 26.429 26.429 26.429 26.429 26.429 26.429 28.118 29.098 29.098
Vehicles 11 12 13 15 10 12 12 11 10 10

Source: Oconee County Administrative Services

! In fiscal year 2008-2009, Rural Fire was merged into Emergency Services.
2 During fiscal year 2007-2008, Solid Waste was reclassified from an enterprise fund to the General Fund under the General Government function.
® During fiscal year 2008-2010, Solid Waste was reclassified from the General Government function to the Public Works function.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Oconee County Council
of Oconee County
Walhalla, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Oconee
County, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Oconee County, South Carolina's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2015. Our report includes a reference to the changes in accounting
principles resulting from the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 as well as
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, as of July 1, 2014. Our report also includes a reference to other auditors
who audited the financial statements of the Keowee Fire Tax District, as described in our report on the County's
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Oconee County, South Carolina's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Oconee County, South Carolina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Oconee County, South Carolina's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Oconee County, South Carolina's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

o ﬁ”{/‘”““ xxe

Macon, Georgia
December 8, 2015

129

DIIDIIIDIDIDIIIDIIDIIIDIIIDIDIDDASIIIIIDIDIDAIAIIIAIIIIDIIODIIIDIIBO



AULDIN
& JENKINS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Oconee County Council
of Oconee County
Walhalla, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Oconee County, South Carolina’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on the County's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2015. The County's major federal
program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the County’s major federal program based on our audit
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on the major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governpance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

W edetonn ? Gpiner KE

Macon, Georgia
December 8, 2015
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grant
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Identification
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Appalachian Regional Commission
(Passed through the SC Department of Commerce)
Appalachian Area Development
Passed through to the Oconee County, SC School District 23.002 4-G-12-001 $ 500,000
Total Appalachian Regional Commission T 500,000
U.S. Department of Agriculture
(Passed through the SC Department of Social Services)
SNAP Cluster:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 5SC400407 27,732
(Passed through the SC State Treasurer's Office)
Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster:
Secure Payments for States and Counties Containing
Federal Land 10.665 N/A 624,401
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 652,133
U.S. Department of Interior
(Passed through the SC National Heritage Corridor - Heritage
Tourism Grant Program)
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 P280523002114 1,750
Total U.S. Department of Interior 1,750
U.S. Department of Justice
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A 3,412
JAG Program Cluster:
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2014-DJ-BX-0726 22,515
Total U.S. Department of Justice 25,927
U.S. Department of Transportation
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-45-0016-020-2014 179,736
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-45-0016-021-2015 26,595
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-45-0016-022-2015 5,400
(Passed through SC Office of Adjutant General)
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training
and Planning Grants 20.703 HM-HMP-0334-14-01 4,266
{Passed through the SC Department of Public Safety)
Highway Safety Cluster:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 2JC14010 10,762
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 2JC15010 15,226
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 241,985
Institute of Museum and Library Services
(Passed through the SC State Library)
Grants to States 45.310 1ID-10-25 1,530
Grants to States 45.310 IA-11-23 1,000
Grants to States 45.310 1ID-10-47 3,517
Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 6,047
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
(Passed through the SC Emergency Management Division)
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 13EMPGO1 43,304
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 14EMPGO1 47,347
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 30,651

(continued)
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grant
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Identification
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(Passed through the SC Department of Alcohol and Other Drug
Abuse Services)
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 3B08TI010048-1451 $ 1,042
(Passed through the SC Department of Social Services)
Child Support Enforcement - Transaction Reimbursement 93.563 G1501SC1401 113,258
Child Support Enforcement - Incentive Payments 93.563 G1501SC1401 37,489
Child Support Enforcement - Service of Process Payments 93.563 G1501SC1401 10,940
Child Support Enforcement - Filing Fees 93.563 G1501SC1401 20,100
Administration for Children and Families Program 93.563 G1501SC1401 40
(Passed through the SC Department of Social Services)
Promoting Safe and Stable Families Program 93.556 G1510SCFPSS 220
Foster Care - Title IVE (Recovery) 93.658 G1501SC1401 13,431
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 G1502SCSOSR 8,918
CCDF Cluster:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 G1501SCCCDF 230
TANF Cluster:
Administration for Children and Families Program 93.558 G1502SCTANF 24,945
Medicaid Cluster:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 N/A 19,293
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 249,806
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,768,399
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE I.

NOTE Il.

NOTE III.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
Oconee County, South Carolina (the "County"), and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting for governmental fund types and the accrual basis of accounting for the proprietary fund
types. The County reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the County's basic financial statements.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in the schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements.

SUBRECIPIENTS

Oconee County provided $500,000 in funding to subrecipients as part of the Appalachian Regional
Commission, Appalachian Area Development grant program during the year ended June 30, 2015.

NONCASH ASSISTANCE AND LOANS

There were no federal awards expended in the form of noncash assistance during the fiscal year.
There were also no loans or loan guarantees outstanding at year-end.
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTIONI|

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? __yes _X no
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes __ X __none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __yes _X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? __yes _X no
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes __X_ none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs Unmcdified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 510(a)? __vyes _X no

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
23.002 Appalachian Regional Commission — Appalachian Area
Development Program
10.665 U.S. Department of Agriculture — Schools and Roads

Grants to States Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? __yes _X no
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION I
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

None reported.

SECTION Ill
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

R E

None reported.

SECTION IV
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None reported.

2297397
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PUBLIC HEARING

SIGN IN SHEET

OCONEE COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING
DATE: Febrouary 2, 2006 6:00 p.m.

Ordinance 2015-36 AN ORDINANCE COMSENTING TO THE CONVERSION BY THE COUNTY OF
CERTAIN RIGHTS OF BORGWARNER TORQTRANSFER SYSTEMS, INC. (THE "COMBANY) UNMDER AN
EXISTI®G LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY TO A FEE AGREEMENT PURSUANT T0O TITLE
12, CILAFTER 44, 500TH CARCLINA CODE, 1976, AS AMENDED [THE “ACT"), AS PROVIDED IN THE ACT,
AUTHOREENG THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH FEE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND
THE CORPANY [N PLACE OF SAID LEASE PURCHASE .ﬁﬂIiI-Z[éMI-ZN'I', ANDALTHORIEING THE RECOMYEYANCE
BY THE COUNTY TO THE COMPANY OF THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO SUCH LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT:
ANDOTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO

Writien comiments ey he: suhiiireal et B pekar e lcaring Bor mslasan e ol Tl vecord ol ghe mecting.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
OCONEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE 2015-36

AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO THE CONVERSION BY THE
COUNTY OF CERTAIN RIGHTS OF BORGWARNER TORQTRANSFER
SYSTEMS, INC. (THE “COMPANY”) UNDER AN EXISTING LEASE
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY TO A FEE AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44, SOUTH CAROLINA CODE, 1976,
AS AMENDED (THE ¢“ACT”), AS PROVIDED IN THE ACT,
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH FEE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE COMPANY IN PLACE
OF SAID LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE
RECONVEYANCE BY THE COUNTY TO THE COMPANY OF THE
PROPERTY SUBJECT TO SUCH LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4-12-30 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina,
1976, as amended (the "Lease Act"), Oconee County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting
by and through the Oconee County Council (the “County Council”) previously entered into a
Fee-in-Lieu-of-Tax (“FILOT”) Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of October, 1, 1996 (the
"Lease Agreement") with Borg-Warner Automotive Powertrain Systems Corporation, the
predecessor to BorgWamer Torqtransfer Systems, Inc. (the “Company”), for the purpose of
inducing investment by the Company in its manufacturing facilities in the County (the
“Facilities”) (overall, the "Original Project"’) through the provision of certain fee in lieu of
tax benefits thereunder; and

WHEREAS, Section 12-44-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Simplified FILOT Act”) allows the Company to convert property constituting
the Original Project to a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under the Simplified FILOT Act and,
in so converting, to cause such property to be automatically considered economic
development property as defined in Section 12-44-30(7) of the Simplified FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, the qualifying investment period with respect to the Original Project
has terminated pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina
Constitution, the County has caused the Facilities to be located within a multi-county
industrial and business park established by the County pursuant to qualifying agreement
with Williamsburg County, South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this
meeting the form of a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (Conversion) between the County and
the Company (the "Conversion Fee Agreement"") with respect to the Original Project which
includes (i) the conversion of the Lease Agreement for the Original Project to a fee-in-lieu-
of-tax agreement under the Simplified FILOT Act, (ii) the continuation, under the new fee-
in-lieu-of-tax agreement, of the same fee payments required of the Company under the
Lease Agreement, (iii) the reconveyance to the Company of the property of the Original
Project currently under the Lease Agreement, to be treated as Economic Development
Property (as defined in the Simplified FILOT Act) under the fee-in-lieu of-tax agreement,
and (iv) the appropriate provisions and terms to continue the benefits and provisions of the
Lease Agreement for the Original Project under the new fee-in-lieu-of-tax agreement; and
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WHEREAS, it appears that the Conversion Fee Agreement above referred to is in
appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the
County for the purposes intended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council of Oconee
County, South Carolina, in meeting duly assembled, as follows:

Section 1, It is hereby found, determined and declared by the County Council, based
on information provided by the Company, as follows:

(a) The Original Project continues to constitute a "project” and
"economic development property" as said terms are referred to and defined in the
Simplified FILOT Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the Simplified
FILOT Act;

(b)  The Original Project is anticipated to continue to benefit the general
public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other
public benefits not otherwise provided locally;

© The Original Project and the Conversion Fee Agreement will give
rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a
charge against the general credit or taxing power of either;

d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Original Project, i.e.,
economic development, retention of jobs and addition to the tax base of the
County, are and were proper governmental and public purposes; and

(e) The benefits of the Original Project have been and are anticipated to
be greater than the costs.

Section 2. The terms of the Conversion Fee Agreement presented to this meeting and
filed with the Clerk to the County Council are hereby approved and all of the terms,
provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the
Conversion Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of
the County Council and the Clerk to County Council are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Conversion Fee Agreement in the name
and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Conversion Fee Agreement to be
delivered to the Company. The Conversion Fee Agreement shall be in substantially the form
now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall
not be materially adverse to the County and as shall be approved by the officials of the
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their
approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of Conversion Fee
Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 3. It is the intention of the County Council and the Company that the
replacement of the Lease Agreement with the Conversion Fee Agreement shall not diminish
or enhance the value of the existing fee in lieu of tax arrangement between the County and
the Company with regard to the Original Project. In these regards, if the Simplified FILOT
Act is ever declared unconstitutional or otherwise found invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, it is the intention of the County Council that pursuant to the terms of the
Simplified FILOT Act as well as the terms of the Lease Act, the Company shall be afforded,
at its expense, the maximum opportunity to convert the Simplified Fee Agreement back to a
lease agreement pursuant to the Lease Act, pursuant to terms mutually agreeable to the
parties, in order to preserve the benefits of the Company's fee in lieu of tax arrangements
with the County.
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Section 4. Pursuant to Section 12-44-170 of the Simplified FILOT Act, the County
consents to the conversion of property from the Lease Agreement to the Conversion Fee
Agreement. In this regard, the Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk to County
Council, in compliance with the terms of the Lease Agreement and the Conversion Fee
Agreement, are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and
deliver such documents, including all releases of leasehold interests and all deeds and bills
of sale, as are necessary to reconvey the property comprising the Original Project to the
Company in order that it might become Economic Development Property (as defined in the
FILOT Act) under the Conversion Fee Agreement.

Section 5. The Chairman of County Council and the Clerk to County Council, for
and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized and directed to do any and all things
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Conversion Fee Agreement and the
performance of all obligations of the County thereunder.

Section 6. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and
if any section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent
Jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of
the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

Section 7. All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof in conflict herewith
are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be
in full force from and after its passage and approval.

ORDAINED in meeting, duly assembled, this 2" day of February, 2016.

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Hulse, Paul Cain,

Clerk to Oconee County Council Chairman, Oconee County Council
First Reading: December 15, 2015

Second Reading: January 19, 2016

Third Reading: February 2, 2016

Public Hearing: February 2, 2016
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FEE-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT (CONVERSION)

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (CONVERSION) (this "Agreement")
made and entered into as of January __ , 2016 by and between OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH
CAROLINA (the "County"), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the
State of South Carolina, and BORGWARNER TORQTRANSFER SYSTEMS, INC,, a
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, (the
"Company""), is entered into by the parties pursuant to Section 12-44-170, Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended, as a conversion of a Lease Agreement dated as of October 1,
1996 between the parties.

- WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 4-12-30, Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended, (the “Lease Act”) the County and the Company (through its
predecessor, Borg-Warner Automotive Powertrain Systems Corporation, also a Delaware
corporation) previously entered into a Lease Agreement dated as of October 1, 1996 (the "Lease
Agreement"’) for purposes of providing a fee in lieu of tax incentive to the Company with
respect to the Company's investment in certain land, improvements, fixtures, machinery,
equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the "Original Project™) at the
Company's manufacturing facilities (the “Facilities”) in the County, which investment was
completed during the Investment Period provided in the Lease Agreement (the "Investment
Period"): and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-44-170, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as
amended, (the “Simplified FILOT Act” or, simply, the “Act”), the Company, which has made
the legally required minimum investment in the Project during the Investment Period to qualify
for negotiated fee in lieu of tax treatment under Section 4-12-30(b)(3) and the Act, has notified
the County of its desire to convert the Lease Agreement to a fee in lieu of tax agreement to be
governed by the provisions of the Act, containing the same material provisions as the Lease
Agreement in respect of fee in lieu of tax payments, term of the arrangement and other payment
obligations of the Company; and

WHEREAS, the County, pursuant to ordinance of Oconee County Council enacted
February 2, 2016, has consented to the conversion of the Lease Agreement to this fee in lieu of
tax agreement pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to (i) enter into this Agreement in order to provide for
said conversion of the Lease Agreement to a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under the Act, and
(ii) have this Agreement fully replace all provisions of the Lease Agreement and take effect
upon the conveyance by the County to the Company of all portions of the Original Project
currently titled in the name of the County under the Lease Agreement, upon payment by the
Company of the purchase price therefor as prescribed in Section 10.03 of the Lease Agreement
and the satisfaction of certain other conditions set forth herein; and
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WHEREAS, upon the payment of the purchase price and consummation of the
conveyance referred to in the preceding paragraph, this Agreement shall supercede the
provisions of the Lease Agreement and, at such time, the Lease Agreement shall be deemed
terminated (except for those provisions expressly stated to survive termination, including,
without limitation, all indemnification and hold harmless provisions thereof) and the fee in lieu
of tax arrangement of the Lease Agreement shall be continued under the terms and provisions
hereof; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the above, the County and the Company agree that the
requirements of Section 12-44-55(A) of the Act are hereby waived to the extent that, and so
long as, the Company provides the County Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor and the Oconee
County Clerk to Council with copies of all filings and reports required to be made by the
Company under the Act, within thirty (30) days of making and filing such filings and reports;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and
agreements hereinafter contained, the County and the Company agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. Definitions In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in
this Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall
have the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or
intent.

“Act” or “Simplified FILOT Act” shall mean Chapter 44 of Title 12 of the Code and all
future acts amendatory thereof.

“Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses including
ordinary and reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the County with respect to the Project and
this Agreement; provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration
Expense unless the County furnishes to the Company a statement in writing indicating the reason
such expense has been or will be incurred and either estimating the amount of such expense or
stating the basis on which the expense has been or will be computed.

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other
Person which owns all or part of the Company or which is owned in whole or in part by the
Company or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company.

“Agreement” shall mean this Agreement as originally executed and from time to time
supplemented or amended as permitted herein.
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“Authorized Company Representative” shall mean any person or persons at the time
designated to act on behalf of the Company by written certificate furnished to the County
containing the specimen signature of each such person and signed on behalf of the Company by
an officer or employee of the Company to whom the Company has delegated authority to
administer this Agreement.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended through the
date hereof unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Commencement Date” shall mean December 31, 1996, the last day of the initial
property tax year during which Economic Development Property comprising part of the Project
was first placed in service.

“Company” shall mean BorgWarner Torqgtransfer Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation;
and its predecessor, Borg-Warner Automotive Powertrain Systems Corporation, also a Delaware
Corporation; any surviving, resulting or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation or transfer
of assets permitted under Section 9.01 hereof; or any other person or entity which may succeed
to the rights and duties of the Company hereunder in accordance with all applicable provisions
hereof.

“Cost” shall mean the cost of acquiring by construction and purchase, the Project,
including any infrastructure improvements, and shall be deemed to include, to the extent
permitted by the Act or the Lease Act, whether incurred prior to or after the date of this
Agreement: (a) obligations incurred for labor, materials, and other expenses to contractors,
builders, and materialmen in connection with the acquisition, construction, and installation of the
Project; (b) the cost of contract bonds and of insurance of all kinds that may be required or
necessary during the course of construction of the Project which are not paid by the contractor or
contractors or otherwise provided for; (c) the expenses for test borings, surveys, test and pilot
operations, estimates, plans and specifications and preliminary investigations therefor, and for
supervising construction as well as for the performance of all other duties required by or
reasonably necessary in connection with the acquisition, construction, and installation of the
Project; (d) compensation of legal, accounting, financial, and printing expenses, fees, and all
other expenses incurred in connection with the Project; (€) all other costs which the Company
shall be required to pay under the terms of any contract or contracts for the acquisition,
construction, and installation of the Project; and (f) any sums required to reimburse the Company
for advances made for any of the above items, or for any other work done and costs incurred by
the Company which are for the acquisition of land or property of a character subject to the
allowance for depreciation provided for under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, and included in the Project; provided, however, such term shall include
expenditures by the Company with respect to the Project only to the extent made during the
Investment Period.

“County” shall mean Oconee County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns.
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“County Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“County Official” shall include the Administrator, Auditor, Assessor, or Treasurer of the
County.

“Department of Revenue’ shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue and
Taxation.

“Economic Development Property” shall mean each item of real and tangible personal
property comprising a project within the meaning of Sections 12-44-30(6) or 12-44-40(C) of the
Code. Economic Development Property shall include all items of property purchased or
acquired during the Investment Period of the Original Project and for which the Company has
made a return to the Department of Revenue as reflected in an applicable Form PT-300 Schedule
S.

“Equipment” shall mean all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and other personal
property acquired by the Company and placed in service as part of the Original Project during
the Investment Period in accordance with the Lease Agreement and this Agreement.

“Event of Default” shall mean an Event of Default as defined in Section 11.01 hereof.

“Existing Property” shall mean property that does not qualify to become Economic
Development Property pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Code.

“FILOT” shall mean the fee-in-lieu of taxes which the Company is obligated to pay to
the County pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Payments” shall mean the payments to be made by the Company pursuant to
Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Revenues” shall mean the revenues received by the County from the Company’s
payment of the FILOT.

“Infrastructure Costs” shall mean the costs of designing, acquiring, constructing,
improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the Project, and the improved and
unimproved real property, buildings, and structural components of buildings and personal
property, including machinery and equipment (all as described in Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(i)(a)
and (b) of the Code), used in the operation of the Project.

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that Economic
Development Property comprising part of the Project was purchased or acquired and ending
December 31, 2001, the date that was five (5) years after the Commencement Date.

“Joint-County Industrial and Business Park Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1 of the
Code, as amended through the date hereof.
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“Land” shall mean the real estate upon which the Original Project is located, as
described in EXHIBIT “A” attached hereto, as EXHIBIT “A” may be supplemented from time to
time in accordance with the provisions hereof.

“Lease Act” shall mean Chapter 12 of Title 4 of the Code and all acts amendatory
thereof.

“Lease Agreement” shall mean that certain fee-in-lieu-of-tax lease agreement under the
Lease Act, between the County and the Company, dated as of October 1, 1996.

“Minimum Investment” shall have the meaning given to such term under Section 12-44-
30(14) of the FILOT Simplification Act.

“Negotiated FILOT Payment” shall mean the FILOT due pursuant to Section 5.01(b)(ii)
hereof with respect to that portion of the Project comprised of Economic Development Property
and qualifying for the 6% assessment ratio and the millage rate described in subsection 5.01(c) of
the Agreement.

“Non-Economic Development Property” shall mean that portion of the Project consisting
of: (i) property as to which the Company incurred expenditures prior to the Investment Period or,
except as to Replacement Property, after the end of the Investment Period; (ii) property not
placed in service during the Investment Period; (iii) Existing Property; and (iv) any other
property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated FILOT Payments.

“Original Project” shall mean (i) the Land, (ii) the Improvements, (iii) the Equipment,
(iv) the Replacement Property and (v) to the extent not covered by the foregoing, anything
qualifying as a Project under Section 4-12-30(b)(3) of the Lease Act, to the extent it was
addressed and covered by the Lease Agreement.

“Park” shall mean a joint county industrial and business park established pursuant to
Article VIII, Section 13 of the Constitution of the State and Section 4-1-170 of the Code.

“Park Agreement” shall mean an agreement for the development of a joint-county
industrial and business park by and between the County and one or more other counties to create
or expand a Park, pursuant to Section 13 of Article VIII of the South Carolina Constitution and
Section 4-1-170 of the Code.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated
organization, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean, all property from the Original Project to the extent it is converted
from the Original Project by this Agreement, and qualifies to be part of the Project under Section
12-44-30(16) of the Act.
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“Released Property” shall mean any Economic Development Property comprising any
part of the Project removed, scrapped, traded in, sold, or otherwise disposed of pursuant to
Section 4.03 hereof, any Economic Development Property comprising any part of the Project
stolen, damaged, destroyed, or taken by condemnation, or eminent domain proceedings as
described in Article VII hereof.

“Replaced Property” shall mean any Released Property for which the Company has
substituted Replacement Property during the term hereof pursuant to Section 5.01(e) hereof.

“Replacement Property” shall mean, to the extent permitted by Section 12-44-60 of the
Code, any portion of the Project substituted for Released Property pursuant to Section 5.01(¢)
hereof.

“Simplified FILOT Act or, simply “Act” shall mean, Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.
“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 5.01 hereof.
“Threshold Date” shall mean December 31, 2001.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Code, as
amended.

SECTION 1.02. References to Agreement The words “hereof”, “herein”, “hereunder”,
and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole, unless the context clearly
requires otherwise.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State
and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder.

(b) The County, based on representations of the Company, has determined that the
Project will subserve the purposes of the Act, and has made all other findings of fact required by
the Act in connection with the undertaking of the Project.
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(c) By proper action by the County Council, the County has duly authorized the
execution and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions necessary and appropriate to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d)  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the County.

(e) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the County are pending or threatened against or affecting the
County in any court or before any governmental authority which would materially adversely
affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement; provided, however, that no representation
is made by or on behalf of the County as to the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

® Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, the County is executing this
Agreement as statutory accommodation to assist the Company in achieving the intended benefits
and purposes of the Act. The County has made no independent legal or factual investigation
regarding the particulars of this transaction and it executes this Agreement in reliance upon
representations by the Company that the documents comply with all laws and regulations,
particularly those pertinent to industrial development projects in South Carolina. No representation
of the County is hereby made with regard to compliance by the Project or any Person with laws
regulating: (i) the construction or acquisition of the Project, (ii) environmental matters pertaining
to the Project, (iii) the offer or sale of any securities, or (iv) the marketability of title to any
property, including the Land.

SECTION 2.02. Representations and Warranties by Company. The Company
makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part

herein contained:

(a) The Company is a Delaware corporation in good standing in the State of South
Carolina; has all requisite power to enter into this Agreement; and by proper action has been duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement.

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project primarily for the purposes of
manufacturing, and for other lawful purposes.

() The agreements of the County with respect to the FILOT were and have been
instrumental in inducing the Company to locate and maintain the Project within the County and
the State.

(d) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the Company are pending or threatened against or affecting the
Company in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal,
which could materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or
which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.
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(e) The Company placed in service the first phase of the Economic Development
Property portion of the Project during its fiscal year ending December 31, 1996.

ARTICLE III
UNDERTAKINGS OF COUNTY

SECTION 3.01. Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments. The County hereby agrees
to accept FILOT Payments made by the Company in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof in lieu

of ad valorem taxes with respect to the Project until this Agreement expires or is sooner
terminated.

SECTION 3.02. No Warranties by County. The Company acknowledges that it has
examined the Land and so much of the other property constituting the Project as is in existence

on the date of execution and delivery hereof, as well as title thereto, prior to the making of this
Agreement, and knows the condition and state thereof as of the day of the execution hereof, and
accepts the same in said condition and state and subject to any existing encumbrances; that no
warranties or representations as to the condition or state thereof have been made by
representatives of the County; and that the Company in entering into this Agreement is relying
solely upon its own examination thereof and of any portion of the Project acquired subsequent to
the date hereof. The County makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to title to any part
of the Project or any encumbrances (or lack thereof) or the design, capabilities, or condition of
the Project or that it will be suitable for the Company’s purposes or needs or as to the state of
title to the Project.

SECTION 3.03. Execution of Lease. If necessary, the parties acknowledge that the
intent of this Agreement is to afford the Company the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT
Payments in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate and maintain the Project within
the County and that this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the Act.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event that a court of competent
jurisdiction holds that the Act is unconstitutional or that this Agreement or agreements similar in
nature to this Agreement are invalid or unenforceable in any material respect or should the
parties mutually determine that there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement in any material respect, then the County, in accordance with Section 12-44-160
of the Act, upon the conveyance of title to the Project to the County at the expense of the
Company, and to the extent permitted by law, agrees to lease, at the expense of the Company, the
Project to the Company pursuant to the Lease Act. Any such lease shall contain such terms and
conditions as are mutually-agreeable to the parties which shall include, but not be limited to: (1)
full, complete, environmental indemnity by the Company in favor of the County; (2) suitable
provisions for acquisition of the entire Project or part thereof for the consideration of $1.00 at the
completion or earlier termination of the lease if all terms and provisions of the lease have been
met; and (3) to the extent applicable to a lease agreement permitted under the Lease Act, the
same or substantially same provisions set forth in this Agreement. Any such conveyance and
lease shall additionally be subject to receipt by the County of evidence reasonably satisfactory to
the County that no environmental contamination exists with respect to the property being
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conveyed and leased. The Company acknowledges that any such sale/leaseback arrangement
may not preserve the benefits of the Lease Act with respect to any portion of the Project placed
in service prior to the effective date of any such sale/leaseback arrangement with the County, to
the extent that the effective date of such sale/leaseback arrangement is later than December 31 of
the Company’s tax year in which such portion of the Project is placed in service. However, the
County agrees that it will, at the expense of the Company, and to the extent permitted by the
Lease Act, assist in efforts by the Company to have any such Economic Development Property
included within the sale/leaseback arrangement under the Lease Act due to the fact that such
Economic Development Property will never have been subject to normal ad valorem taxation,
but instead, will always have been subject to a fee-in-lieu of tax pursuant to a Park Agreement
between the County and a partner county, established pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the Code.

SECTION 3.04. Joint-County Industrial and Business Park. The Project is
located on property which is currently designated as part of a Park existing pursuant to a Park
Agreement executed and entered into by and between the County and Williamsburg County,
South Carolina.

ARTICLE IV
INVESTMENT BY COMPANY IN PROJECT; JOBS CREATION;
MAINTENANCE AND MODIFICATION OF PROJECT

SECTION 4.01. Acquisition by Construction and Purchase of Project; Jobs Creation.

(a) The Company initially agreed to expend upon the Cost of the Project an expected
Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000), during the Investment Period.

(b) The Company shall retain title to the Project throughout the Term of this
Agreement.

SECTION 4.02. Maintenance of Project. The Company at its own expense during the
Term of this Agreement will keep and maintain the Project in good operating condition. The
Company will promptly make, or cause to be made, all repairs, interior and exterior, structural
and nonstructural, ordinary and extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, that are necessary to
keep the Project in good and lawful order and in good operating condition (wear and tear from
reasonable use excepted) whether or not such repairs are due to any laws, rules, regulations, or
ordinances hereafter enacted which involve a change of policy on the part of the government
body enacting the same.

SECTION 4.03. Modification of Project.
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(a) As long as no Event of Default exists hereunder, the Company shall have the right
at any time and from time to time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

@) The Company may, at its own expense, add to the Project all such real and
personal property as the Company in its discretion deems useful or desirable.

(i)  In any instance where the Company in its discretion determines that any
items included in the Project have become inadequate, obsolete, worn-out, unsuitable,
undesirable, or unnecessary for operations at the Project, the Company may remove such
items or portions from the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise dispose of
them (as a whole or in part) without the consent of the County. The Company may sell,
lease, or otherwise dispose of any portion of the Land, in which event the Company shall
deliver to the County, within 30 days thereafter, a new EXHIBIT “A” to this Agreement.

(b)  No release of Project property effected under the provisions of Section 7.01 or
7.02 hereof or of this Section 4.03 shall entitle the Company to any abatement or diminution of
the amounts payable by the Company hereunder except the FILOT payments as specified in
Section 5.01(d) hereof.

SECTION 4.04. Records and Reports.

(a) The Company agrees to maintain such books and records with respect to the
Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project placed in service in each
property tax year during the Investment Period, the amount of investment with respect thereto
and its computations of all Payments made hereunder and as will comply with all reporting
requirements of the State and the County applicable to property subject to FILOT Payments
under the FILOT Act, including without limitation the reports, and copies thereof to be filed with
the specified County Officials, required by Section 12-44-90 of the Code (collectively, the
“Filings”).

Upon direction of the governing body of the County, a County Official may request and
obtain such financial books and records from the Company that support the FILOT returns of the
Company as may be reasonably necessary to verify the calculations of the FILOT Payments by
the Company.

(b)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 4.04, the Company may
designate with respect to any Filings delivered to the County segments thereof that the Company
believes contain proprietary, confidential, or trade secret matters. The County shall make its
best, commercially reasonable efforts to conform with all reasonable, written requests made by
the Company with respect to maintaining the confidentiality of such designated segments, to the
extent allowed by law, including, but not limited to, the South Carolina Freedom of Information
Act.

(c) Whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or financial entity to
file or produce any reports, notices, returns or other documents with regard to the Project, while this

10

GREENVILLE 337572v2
2015-36



Agreement is in effect, the Company or owner of the Project at the time shall promptly furnish to
the County through the County Attorney the completed form of such required documents together
with a certification by the Company or owner that such documents are accurate and not in violation
of any provisions of law or of the other documents of this transaction, and that the documents meet
the legal requirements of such filing or delivery. In the event of the failure or refusal of the
Company or owner to comply with this provision, the Company or owner agrees to pay the
statement for attorneys fees and administrative time presented by the County for producing and
filing such documents, such statement to be paid within thirty (30) days after presentation by the
County, and to promptly pay any fees, penalties, assessments or damages imposed upon the County
by reason of its failure to duly file or produce such documents.

(d)  Any actions to be undertaken or instruments to be executed by the Company under
this Agreement may be undertaken or executed by an Authorized Company Representative.

ARTICLE V
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

SECTION 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Act, the parties hereby agree that, during the Term of the
Agreement, the Company shall continue to pay, as it did under the Lease Agreement, with
respect to the Project annually a FILOT in the amount calculated as set forth in paragraph (b)
below, on or before January 15 of the year following the first calendar year after the close of the
accounting period regularly employed by the Company for income tax purposes and in which
accounting period a portion of the Project was first placed in service, and at the places, in the
manner, and subject to the penalty assessments as prescribed by the County or the Department of
Revenue for ad valorem taxes.

(b)  The FILOT Payment due with respect to each property tax year shall equal, to the
extent permitted by law, the sum of: (i) with respect to any portion of the Project consisting of
undeveloped land or Non-Economic Development Property, a payment equal to the taxes that
would otherwise be due on such undeveloped land or Non-Economic Development Property
were it taxable; (ii) with respect to those portions of the Project (other than undeveloped land and
Non-Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Investment Period, for each
of the twenty (20) consecutive years following the year in which such portion of the Project was
placed in service, a payment calculated each year as set forth in paragraphs (c) through (e) below
(a “Negotiated FILOT”); and (iii) with respect to increments of the Project constituting
Economic Development Property after such 20-year period, a payment equal to the ad valorem
taxes then due on such property taking into account any exemption allowed by the law. With
respect to clause (ii) above: there shall be excluded any Released Property and any other portion
of the Project which ceases to qualify for a FILOT hereunder or under the Act, subject to the
continuing requirement to maintain a minimum of $2.5 Million (without regard to depreciation)
in the Project once the Investment Period has ended.

11

GREENVILLE 337572v2
2015-36



(c) (1) The Negotiated FILOT Payment with respect to any property tax year
shall be calculated in accordance with subparagraph (c)(ii) or (c)(iii) below.

(i)  The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall be calculated with respect to each
property tax year based on: (1) the fair market value of real property (using the original
income tax basis for South Carolina income tax purposes without regard to depreciation)
and Equipment included within the Project theretofore placed in service (less, for
Equipment, depreciation allowable for property tax purposes); (2) a millage rate, for all
taxing entities within whose taxing jurisdiction the Project falls, of the original millage
rate for the Project site continued in the Lease Agreement, which the Parties hereto
believe to be 180 mills, and (3) an assessment ratio of six percent (6%). The millage rate
and the assessment ratio shall remain fixed for the duration of this Agreement, except as
otherwise provided herein. All such calculations shall take into account all deductions
for depreciation or diminution in value allowed by the Code or by the tax laws generally,
as well as tax exemptions which would have been applicable if such property were
subject to ad valorem taxes, except the exemption allowed pursuant to Section 3(g) of
Article X of the Constitution of the State and the exemption allowed pursuant to Sections
12-37-220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code.

(iii)  If taxes on real and personal property shall be abolished in the County or
in the State, the Company may terminate this Agreement immediately without further
obligation other than to make any payments due hereunder at the time of termination, if
any.

(d) Subject, always to the statutory requirement to maintain the statutory minimum
investment in the Project in order to maintain the FILOT approved hereby, the FILOT Payments
are to be recalculated: (i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company disposes of any part
of the Project within the meaning of Section 12-44-50(B) of the Code, as provided in Section
4.03, by the amount thereof applicable to the Released Property; provided, however, that any
disposal of Released Property need not result in a recalculation of the FILOT Payments unless
the Company so elects; or (ii) to increase such payments in the event the Company adds property
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project.

(e) Upon the Company’s installation of any Replacement Property for any portion of
the Project removed under Section 4.03 hereof and sold, scrapped, or disposed of by the
Company, such Replacement Property shall become subject to FILOT Payments to the extent
permitted by the Act.

SECTION 5.02. Reserved.
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ARTICLE VI
PAYMENT OF EXPENSES BY COMPANY

SECTION 6.01. Payment of Administration and Legal Expenses. The Company will
pay to the County from time to time amounts equal to the Administration Expenses of the

County promptly upon written request therefor, but in no event later than forty-five (45) days
after receiving written notice from the County specifying the nature of such expenses and
requesting payment of the same. The Company shall also pay all reasonable attorneys fees
incurred by the County in connection with this Agreement, the Inducement Agreement and all
other related documents necessary to provide the Company with the incentives provided herein
and therein.

SECTION 6.02. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make
any of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall
continue as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.
If any such default relates to its obligations to make FILOT Payments or payments of
Administration Expenses hereunder, the Company agrees to pay the same with interest thereon at
the rate per annum provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes together with any
penalties provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes or for non-payment of
FILOT Payments.

ARTICLE VII
CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION

SECTION 7.01. Damage and Destruction. If all or any part of the Project shall be
lost, stolen, destroyed, or damaged, the Company in its discretion may repair or replace the same.
If the Company shall determine to repair or replace the Project, the Company shall forthwith
proceed with such rebuilding, repairing, or restoring and shall notify the County upon the
completion thereof. The County shall not have any responsibility to complete the work thereof
or pay any portion of the costs thereof. The Company shall not by reason of any such damages
or destruction or the payment of any costs be entitled to any reimbursement from the County or
any abatement or diminution of the amounts payable hereunder.

SECTION 7.02. Condemnation. In the event that title to or the temporary use of the
Project, or any part thereof, shall be taken in condemnation or by the exercise of the power of
eminent domain, there shall be no abatement or reduction in the payments required by be made
by the Company hereunder except as set forth in Section 7.03 hereof. The Company shall
promptly notify the County, as to the nature and extent of such taking and, as soon as practicable
thereafter, notify the County whether it has elected to restore the Project. If it shall be
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determined to restore the Project, the Company shall forthwith proceed with such restoration,
and shall notify the County, upon the completion thereof.

SECTION 7.03. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or
Condemnation. In the event that the Project or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed,

lost or stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, which damage, destruction, loss, theft
and/or condemnation would substantially impair the operating ability of the Project or such
portion thereof, the parties hereto agree that the FILOT Payments required pursuant to Section
5.01 hereof shall be abated in the same manner and in the same proportion as if ad valorem taxes
were payable with respect to the Project, subject, always, to the requirements of Section 5.01
hereof.

ARTICLE VIII
PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

SECTION 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. The Company is hereby
granted and shall have the right during the Term of this Agreement to occupy and use the Project

for any lawful purpose authorized pursuant to the FILOT Act. Insofar as it is practicable under
existing conditions from time to time during the Term of this Agreement, the Project shall be
used primarily as a manufacturing facility.

SECTION 8.02. Right to Inspect. The Company agrees that the County and its
authorized agents shall have the right at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to
enter upon and examine and inspect the Project and to have access to and examine and inspect all
the Company’s books and records pertaining to the Project. The County and its authorized
agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice, to
examine the plans and specifications of the Company with respect to the Project. The aforesaid
rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and necessary
terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, which conditions shall be deemed to
include, but not be limited to, those necessary to protect the Company’s trade secrets and
proprietary rights. In no way shall this requirement of confidentiality be deemed to apply to or
restrict the rights of the United States Government and the State of South Carolina or its political
subdivisions in the exercise of their respective sovereign duties and powers.

SECTION 8.03. Limitation of Pecuniary Liability for County. Anything herein to
the contrary notwithstanding: (a) the Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or

charge against its general credit or taxing powers; (b) any obligation of the County created by or
arising under the Agreement shall be a limited obligation of the County, payable by the County
solely from the proceeds derived hereunder and shall not under any circumstances be deemed to
constitute a general obligation of the County under the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
limitation; and (c) the County may require as a condition to the participation by it with the
Company in any contests or in obtaining any license or permits or other legal approvals a deposit
by the Company of such amount as reasonably determined by the County to be appropriate to
assure the reimbursement to the County of the costs incurred by it in such participation, with any
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amount of such deposit in excess of such costs to be returned to the Company; provided,
however, that nothing herein shall prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by
suit for mandamus or specific performance or any other remedy available at law or in equity.

SECTION 8.04. Maintenance of Existence. The Company covenants that any
alteration of its separate existence, dissolution, consolidation, merger, transfer, or disposition of
substantially all of its assets to any other entity shall be done in accordance and compliance with
the Transfer Provisions. The Company may permit one or more other Affiliates to consolidate or
merge into it without the consent of the County, provided no default shall have occurred and be
continuing at the time of such proposed transaction or would result therefrom.

SECTION 8.05. Indemnification Covenants.

(a) The Company shall and agrees to indemnify and save the County, including the
members of the governing body of the County, and the employees, officers and agents of the
County (herein collectively referred to as the "Indemnified Parties") harmless against and from
all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, company or legal entity arising from the conduct
or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project during the Term, and,
Company further, shall indemnify and save the Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all
claims arising from any act, error or omission occurring during the Term from: (i) any condition
of the Project, (ii) any breach or default on the part of Company in the performance of any of its
obligations under this Agreement, (iii) any act of the Company or any of its agents, contractors,
servants, employees or licensees, related to the Project, (iv) any act of any assignee or sublessee
of the Company, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee
or sublessee of the Company, related to the Project, or (v) any environmental violation,
condition, or effect of, upon or caused by the Project. Company shall indemnify, defend and save
the Indemnified Parties harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in
connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or
proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from an Indemnified Party, Company shall defend
it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding, with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
County.

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified
Parties not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, or the undertakings
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the execution of this Agreement, by reason of the
performance of any act requested of it by the Company, or by reason of the operation of the
Project by the Company, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the
Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company
shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm,
corporation or other legal entity, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses, including,
but not limited to, attorneys fees, incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection
with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company shall have the sole
right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense thereof, at its expense, with full power to
litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole discretion; provided the Company shall obtain
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the prior written consent of the County to settle any such claim unless such claim is for monetary
damages for which the Company has the ability to, and does, pay. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the event the County reasonably believes
there are defenses available to it that are not being pursued or that the counsel engaged by the
Company reasonably determines that a conflict of interest exists between the County and the
Company, the County may, in its sole discretion, hire independent counsel to pursue its own
defense, and the Company shall be liable for the reasonable cost of such counsel.

These indemnification covenants shall be considered included in and incorporated by
reference in subsequent documents after the closing which the County is requested to sign, and
any other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be construed to
reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants.

ARTICLE IX
TRANSFERS; FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

SECTION 9.01. Transfers of Interest in Agreement and Economic Development
Property; Transfers of Equity Interests; Financing Arrangements. The Transfer Provisions

shall apply to this Agreement and the Economic Development Property, except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement. Pursuant to the Transfer Provisions, the County’s prior approval or
subsequent ratification of the transfer of this Agreement or any Economic Development Property
to which this Agreement relates may be evidenced by a letter or other writing of the County
Administrator. To the extent permitted by the Act, the County approves that equity interests in
the Company may be transferred (directly or through merger, consolidation or other
reorganization) to another Person at any time, with or without notice to the County; provided,
however, that in the event of such a transfer, the Company shall maintain its legal existence and
duly perform and comply with the terms of this Agreement. Pursuant to the Transfer Provisions,
the Company may enter into lending, financing, security, leasing, or similar arrangements, or
succession of such arrangements, with a financing entity concerning all or part of the Project at
any time. Any release of liability of the Company in connection with any transfer shall be
subject to the County’s consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, and the County’s consent to
such release may be evidenced by a resolution adopted by the County Council of the County to
that effect.

SECTION 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured
Parties. The parties acknowledge that the County’s right to receive FILOT Revenues hereunder
shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Code, and Chapters 4
and 54 of Title 12 of the Code. The County consents and agrees that its rights under this
Agreement, except for its rights to receive FILOT Payments or any other amounts payable to the
County hereunder, Administration Expenses and indemnification pursuant to Section 8.05, shall
be subordinate to the rights of the secured party or parties under any financing arrangements
undertaken by the Company with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 9.01 hereof, such
subordination to be effective without any additional consent or action on the part of the County;
provided, however, that the County hereby agrees to, at the Company’s expense, execute such
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agreements, documents, and instruments as may be helpful or reasonably required by such
secured party or parties to effectuate or document such subordination. The County hereby
authorizes the then-current County Administrator to execute such agreements, documents, and
instruments as necessary or useful therefor.

ARTICLE X
TERM; TERMINATION

SECTION 10.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and
provisions herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a
term commencing on the date on which the Company executes the Lease Agreement, and ending
at midnight on the last day of the property tax year in which the last Negotiated FILOT Payment
is due hereunder. The County’s rights to receive indemnification and payment of Administration
Expenses pursuant hereto shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 10.02. Termination. The Company may terminate this Agreement at any
time, in which event the Project shall be subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of
termination. This Agreement shall automatically terminate (subject to the provisions of Section
5.01(f) hereof) if the Act and/or the FILOT are declared invalid or unenforceable.

ARTICLE XI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

SECTION 11.01. Events of Default by Company. Any one or more of the following
events (herein called an “Event of Default”, or collectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute
an Event of Default by the Company:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any FILOT
Payments, indemnification payments under Section 8.05, Administration Expenses or any other
amount payable hereunder, which default shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days
following receipt of written notice thereof from the County; or

(b) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or
compliance with any of the terms hereof, including payment, other than those referred to in the
foregoing paragraph (a), and such default shall continue for ninety (90) days after the County
shall have given the Company written notice of such default, the Company shall fail to proceed
promptly to cure the same.

SECTION 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence
of any Event of Default, the County may exercise any one or more of the following remedies,

any of which may be exercised at any time during the periods permitted under the following
clauses:
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>i) declare immediately due and payable FILOT Payments,
Administration Expenses, or any other amounts due hereunder;

(ii)  terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the
Company not less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified
therein;

(iii)  have access to and inspect, examine, and make copies of the books,
records, and accounts of the Company pertaining to the construction, acquisition,
or maintenance of the Project; or

(iv)  take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to
enforce observance or performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement of
the Company under this Agreement.

SECTION 11.03. Application of Moneys Upon Enforcement of Remedies. Any
moneys received by the County upon enforcement of its rights hereunder shall be applied as

follows: first, to the reasonable costs associated with such enforcement proceedings including
reasonable attorneys fees; second, to pay Administration Expenses; and third, to pay the FILOT.

SECTION 11.04. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the

performance of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
including without limitation a suit for mandamus or specific performance.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. Each right, power, and remedy

of the County or of the Company provided for in this Agreement shall be cumulative and
concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided for in this
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any jurisdiction where such rights,
powers, and remedies are sought to be enforced, and the exercise or the failure to exercise by the
County or by the Company of any one or more of the rights, powers, or remedies provided for in
this Agreement or now or hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise shall
not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the County or by the Company of any or all
such other rights, powers, or remedies.

SECTION 12.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.
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SECTION 12.03. Notices; Demands; Requests. All notices, demands, and requests to
be given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, or
via facsimile transmission or reputable courier service, addressed as follows or to such other
persons and places as may be designated in writing by such party.

(a) As to County:

Oconee County, South Carolina
Oconee County Administrator
415 S. Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

(b) As to Company:

Borgwarer Torgtransfer Systems, Inc.
Attn:

SECTION 12.04. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the law of the State.

SECTION 12.05. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other as to its subject matter,
and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to
the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in
connection with the execution and delivery hereof.

SECTION 12.06. Severability. In the event that any clause or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

SECTION 12.07. Headings and Table of Contents: References. The headings of the
Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit the provisions

hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.  All references in this Agreement to
particular Articles or Sections or subdivisions of this Agreement are references to the designated
Articles or Sections or subdivisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 12.08. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument. Facsimile signatures may be relied upon as if originals.
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SECTION 12.09. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 12-44-
40(J)(2) of the FILOT Simplification Act, this Agreement may be amended, or the rights and
interests of the parties hereunder surrendered, only by a writing signed by both parties.

SECTION 12.10. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with
any term or condition of this Agreement only in writing signed by the waiving party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
above written.

[Execution Pages Follow]
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OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman of County Council

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Clerk to County Council
Oconee County, South Carolina
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BORGWARNER TORQTRANSFER
SYSTEMS, INC.

BY:

ITS:
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EXHIBIT “A”

LAND DESCRIPTION

[To be provided by Borgwarner Torqtransfer Systems, Inc.]
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February 2, 2018
Litigation Concems

1. Lease Agresment (Exnibit A)
2. Release Agreement (Exhibit 8)

| want to state first that | do not accept nor will | vote for these settlement agreements. They are
unathical and most likely & violstion of the State's Constitution and state laws. Veting in favor of
these agreements ig in vielation of my cath of office

The reason for the original litigation was for the purpose of collecting past taxes on an aiplans
owned by the defendants. In the investigation of the taxes the ssue arcse of the fact that the
ariginal leaze agreement did not mest state statutery reguirements. There was never an
ardinance; alse, a first, second, public hearing, and third reading was naver held. The
defendants have now made the main issue the Lease Agreement and not the payment of back
taxes.

Wy major reason for opposing this setiliement agreement i3 the tax on the plane. | pay my laxes
and | hope you do, too. After all, these laxes provide the much needsd services to our citizens.

A5 to what | objach 1o

1. Exhibit B- Section Ga- Plaintiffs Release of Defandants- Plaintiffs Release "do hareby
faraver release past due taxes on personal property or aircraft...” This amounts to
$315,000 of past taxes due to Oconee County, Forgiveness of this tax is illsgal.

2 Exhibit B-Section 3- by this agreement defendants receive 535 000 to pay legal feas.
Wy iz the county paying for this?

3. Exhibit A- Section 2.1- instead of the hangar being turned over to the county in 2021, tha
data has now been changsd to 2031, Why?

S0 what does this agreement actually state?
For ihe defendanis:

1. A tex forgiveness of 5315 000 dollars, the taxpayers’ gift 1o the defendants

2. A 10 year lease extension on the hangar.

3. Taxpayer money to pay the defendants attorneys, another 535,000 dollar present from
the taxpayers

Far the citizens of Ocones County:

1. Mothifg.
2. Faro.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF OCONEE

ORDINANCE 2015-35

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
A REFORMED AND RESTATED GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OCONEE COUNTY, AS LESSOR, AND HANGAR III, LLC, AS
LESSEE, AND AUTHORIZING THE CONTEMPORANEOUS EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF A RELEASE AND STIPULATION OR ORDER OF
DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE, ENDING THE LITIGATION CAPTIONED
OCONEE COUNTY, KEVIN ROBINSON, OCONEE COUNTY DELINQUENT
TAX COLLECTOR V. HANGAR 1II, LLC, 25 EP CORP., BDS, JERRY
EDWARDS, AND STEVE EDWARDS, C.A. NO. 2014-CP-37-539; AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Oconee County, South Carolina (the “County”) is a body politic and
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina and is authorized by
the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 9 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as
amended, to lease real property and to make and execute contracts; and,

WHEREAS, the County is authorized by the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of
the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to sue and be sued, and
consequently resolve such litigation; and,

WHEREAS, the County currently desires to execute and enter into a Reformed
and Restated Ground Lease (the “Lease”) with Hangar III, LLC by which the County will
reform and restate that certain lease agreement of May of 2001, the County thereby
leasing certain land situated at the Oconee County Airport to Hangar III, LLC; and

WHEREAS, the County desires that contemporaneous to the execution and
delivery of the Lease, that a Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Release™) be
executed and delivered, thereby effecting the resolution of that certain litigation

captioned Oconee County, Kevin Robinson, Oconee County Delinquent Tax Collector v.

Hangar III, LLC, 25 EP Corp., BDS, Jerry Edwards, and Steve Edwards, C.A. No. 2014-
CP-37-539, the parties thereto having mutually agreed to resolve all claims which they

asserted or could have asserted against each other, and in order to avoid the uncertainty,
time, cost, and expense associated with further litigation; and

WHEREAS, the Lease and the Release are congruous to one another, and there
exists a significant nexus between the subject matter thereof;, and



WHEREAS, the Oconee County Council (the “Council”) has reviewed the form
of the Lease, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the Release, attached hereto as Exhibit B,
and determined that it is in the best interest of the County and its residents and citizens
for the County to execute and enter into both the Lease and the Release, and the Council
wishes to approve the same and to authorize the County Administrator to execute and
deliver the Lease and the Release and all related agreements and documents necessary or
incidental thereto, including a stipulation or order of dismissal with prejudice.

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by Council in meeting duly assembled that:

Section 1. Lease Approved. The Lease is hereby approved, and the County
Administrator is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Lease in substantially the
same form as Exhibit A, attached hereto, with only such changes as may be approved by
the County Administrator and deemed in his sole discretion to be necessary and which
are not materially adverse to the County.

Section 2. Release Approved. The Release is hereby approved, and the
County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Release in
substantially the same form as Exhibit B, attached hereto, with only such changes as may
be approved by the County Administrator and deemed in his sole discretion to be
necessary and which are not materially adverse to the County.

Section 3. Related Documents and Instruments; Future Acts. The County
Administrator is hereby authorized to negotiate any all documents and instruments which
may be necessary or incidental to the Lease and/or the Release and to execute and deliver
any such documents and instruments on behalf of the County, including a stipulation or
order of dismissal with prejudice.

Section 4. Severability. Should any term, provision, or content of this
Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such determination shall have no effect on the remainder of this
Ordinance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, as there exists a significant nexus
between the subject matter of the Lease and the Release, if the approval of one or the
other is deemed unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable, then this Ordinance shall be
void in its entirety.

Section 5. General Repeal. All ordinances, orders, resolutions, and actions of
the Oconee County Council inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency
only, hereby repealed, revoked, and superseded.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective and be in
full force and effect from and after public hearing and third reading in accordance with
the Code of Ordinances of Oconee County, South Carolina.



ORDAINED in meeting, duly assembled, this of , 2016.

OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Paul A. Cain, Chairman, County Council
Oconee County, South Carolina

ATTEST:

Elizabeth G. Hulse, Clerk to County Council
Oconee County, South Carolina



Exhibit A

REFORMED AND RESTATED GROUND LEASE

THIS GROUND LEASE (“Lease”) is made and entered into by Oconee County, South
Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South
Carolina, as lessor (“Lessor”) and Hangar III, LLC, a South Carolina Limited Liability
Company, as lessee (“Lessee), dated as of  day of , 2016 (the “Effective
Date”).

RECITALS
A. Lessor is the fee owner of that certain real property, a portion of which consists of
approximately acres, ( sq. feet), (the “Ground Lease Premises”) located
in Oconee County, South Carolina and as more fully described on Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference, being those same premises as were subject to the May 30,
2001 Lease, referenced below, and subject to all easements, restrictions, rights of way and
encroachments of record.

B. On or about May 30, 2001, Lessor entered into a lease agreement (“2001 Lease”)
whereby Lessor leased the Ground Lease Premises to one or more of Lessee’s members. By
assignment dated July 19, 2001, the 2001 Lease was assigned to Lessee.

C. Pursuant to the 2001 Lease, Lessee constructed and/or is the sole owner of certain
improvements, including building(s), fixtures, attached structures or things, and infrastructure on
the Ground Lease Premises, consisting primarily of a hangar for the storage of aircraft
(collectively the “Hangar”). -

D. Lessor and Lessee desire to reform and restate the 2001 Lease in order to extend the
lease term and clarify certain provisions of the 2001 Lease, and to ensure that proper legislative
authorization exists for the lease arrangement.

E. The'parrtvies desire to establish the following terms and conditions of this Lease to fulfill
the foregoing objectives. ’

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the
parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree
that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference, and
further agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - DEMISE OF GROUND LEASE PREMISES

Section 1.1. Ground Lease Premises. Lessor, for and in consideration of the rents,
covenants, and conditions herein set forth, and upon appropriate authorization by Oconee County
Council, the governing body of Lessor, by ordinance, does hereby lease to Lessee, and Lessee
does hereby lease from Lessor, the Ground Lease Premises, subject to the terms, conditions and
provisions hereof.

Section 1.2. Quiet Enjoyment. Lessor covenants and agrees that Lessee, upon paying the
rent and other charges herein provided and observing and keeping the covenants, conditions, and
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terms of this Lease on Lessee’s part to be kept or performed, shall lawfully and quietly hold,
occupy and enjoy the Ground Lease Premises during the “Term” (as hereinafter defined) of this
Lease without hindrance of Lessor or any person claiming under Lessor, subject to all easements,
restrictions, rights of way and encroachments of record. Lessor hereby retains the right to enter
upon and inspect the Ground Lease Premises and the Hangar at reasonable times and upon
reasonable notice; and Lessor further reserves the right to enter upon the Ground Lease Premises
and the Hangar, without prior notice, in the event of an emergency condition or situation, as
reasonably determined by Lessor.

ARTICLE 2 - LEASE TERM

Section 2.1. Lease Term. The term of this Lease (the “Term”) shall commence on the
Effective Date. The last day of the Term shall be April 30, 2031 (the “Expiration Date”).

Section 2.2. Reversion. At the Expiration Date or the sooner termination of this Lease,
whether by default, eviction, or otherwise, the Hangar, Ground Lease Premises and all other
improvements/infrastructure upon the Ground Lease Premises shall, without compensation to
Lessee or any other party, then become the sole property of Lessor or Lessor’s designee, free and
clear of all claims to or against them by Lessee or any third person attributable to Lessor or
Lessee, and all claims, liens, security interests, and encumbrances. Lessee shall defend and
indemnify Lessor against all liability and loss, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs through litigation and all appeals, arising from the act or omission of Lessee or
Lessee’s agent during the Term of this Lease (“Lessee/I'hlrd Party Clalm(s)”) against the Ground
Lease Premises. All alterations, improvements, additions and utility installations which may be
made on the Ground Lease Premises shall be the property of Lessor and shall remain upon and
be surrendered with the Ground Lease Premises at the Expiration Date or sooner termination of
this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any machinery or equipment owned by Lessee or any
lessee or sublessee of the Hangar, other than that which is permanently affixed to the Ground
Lease Premises so that it cannot be removed without material damage to the Ground Lease
Premises, shall remain the property of Lessee, such lessee or sublessee, as may be applicable,
and may be removed; provided, however, that Lessee removes or causes its removal within thirty
(30) days after the date of expiration or termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE 3 - RENT, TAXES AND UTILITIES

Section 3.1.  Rent. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor, for the use and occupancy of the Ground
Lease Premises, an annual rent of $0.17 per square foot, on or before or as of, and for, June 1,
2015 and, thereafter, on or before each 1% day of June during the Term of this Ground Lease.

Section 3.2. Taxes. Lessee shall be responsible for any and all taxes, fees, assessments, and
charges attributable to the Ground Lease Premises and the improvements and activities located
thereon, in accordance with the normal ad valorem property tax law of the state of South
Carolina. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and understand that separate and apart from the ad
valorem taxes assessed on the Ground Lease Premises, personal property taxes shall be paid on
any aircraft located or housed in Oconee County by the person or entity responsible for paying
said taxes to the extent owed in accordance with South Carolina law.

Section 3.3. Proof of Compliance. Lessee shall furnish to Lessor, within ten (10) days
before the date when any tax, fee, assessment, or charge (for which Lessee is responsible
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hereunder) would become delinquent, receipts or other appropriate evidence establishing
payment thereof.

Section 3.4. Utilities. Lessee shall pay or cause to be paid any and all charges for water,
heat, gas, electricity, cable, trash disposal, sewers and any and all other utilities used upon the
Ground Lease Premises throughout the Term, including without limitation any connection and
servicing fees, permit fees, and inspection fees.

Section 3.5. No Security Deposit. No security deposit is required hereunder.

Section 3.6. Costs. It is the intent of the parties, except as is otherwise provided in this
Lease, that Lessee shall pay all costs, charges, insurance premiums, taxes, utilities, expenses and
assessments arising during the Term of every kind and nature incurred for, against, or in
connection with the Hangar and the Ground Lease Premises.

ARTICLE 4 - USE OF PREMISES

Section 4.1. Permitted Uses. Lessee shall use or allow the use of the Ground Lease
Premises solely for the management and operation of a non-commercial storage facility for
aircraft and related non-commercial activities of Lessee’s flight department. Lessee shall obey
all rules, regulations, laws, ordinances, and directives of Lessor or any governmental entity (i.e.:
FAA, EPA, OSHA, etc.) now in force or hereafter promulgated with respect to the use of the
Airport or the Hangar. Any other use of the premises by Lessee without the prior written consent
of Lessor shall constitute a material breach allowing Lessor to immediately terminate the Lease
and resulting in reversion of the Ground Lease Premises and all improvements to the Lessor, or
its designee, as described in Section 2.2 above. Notwithstanding any other term or condition of
this Agreement, however, Lessee shall be permitted to rent space within the Hangar located on
the Ground Lease Premises to third-parties for purposes of parking or storing the aircraft owned
by such third-parties.

ARTICLE 5 - HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Section 5.1. Definitions. “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any material, substance or
waste that is or has the characteristic of being hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive or corrosive,
including, without limitation, petroleum, PCBs, asbestos, materials known to cause cancer or
reproductive problems and those materials, substances and/or wastes, including infectious waste,
medical waste, and potentially infectious biomedical waste, which are or later become regulated
by any local governmental authority, the State of South Carolina or the United States
Government, including, but not limited to, substances defined as ‘“hazardous substances,”
“hazardous materials,” “toxic substances” or ‘“hazardous wastes” in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
§ 9601, et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801, et seq.; the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq.; all corresponding and
related State of South Carolina and local statutes, ordinances and regulations, including without
limitation any dealing with underground storage tanks; and in any other environmental law,
regulation or ordinance now existing or hereinafter enacted (collectively, “Hazardous Materials
Laws”).



Section 5.2. Use of Premises by Lessee; Remediation of Contamination Caused by Lessee.

(@) Use. Lessee hereby agrees that Lessee and Lessee’s officers, board members,
employees, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors, successors, assigns,
sublessees, concessionaires, invitees and any other occupants of the Ground Lease
Premises (for purpose of this Section, referred to collectively herein as “Lessee’s
Representatives™) shall not use, generate, manufacture, refine, produce, process, store or
dispose of, on, under or about the Ground Lease Premises or transport to or from the
Ground Lease Premises in the future for the purpose of generating, manufacturing, refining,
producing, storing, handling, transferring, processing or transporting Hazardous Materials,
except in compliance with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws. Furthermore, Lessee
or Lessee’s Representatives shall, at their own expense, procure, maintain in effect and
comply with all conditions of any and all permits, licenses and other governmental and
regulatory approvals required for the storage or use by Lessee or any of Lessee’s
Representatives of Hazardous Materials on the Ground Lease Premises, including without
limitation, discharge of (appropriately treated) materials or wastes into or through any
sanitary sewer serving the Ground Lease Premises.

(b) Remediation. If at any time during the Lease Term any contamination of the
Ground Lease Premises by Hazardous Materials shall occur where such contamination is
caused by the act or omission of Lessee or Lessee’s Representatives (“Lessee
Contamination”), then Lessee or Lessee’s Representatives, at no expense to Lessor, shall
promptly and diligently remove such Hazardous Materials from the Ground Lease Premises,
or the groundwater underlying the Ground Lease Premises, to the extent reasonably possible
in accordance with the requirements of the applicable Hazardous Materials Laws and
industry standards then prevailing in the Hazardous Materials management and remediation
industry in the State of South Carolina. However, Lessee shall not take any required
remedial action in response to any Lessee Contamination in or about the Ground Lease
Premises or enter into any settlement agreement, consent, decree or other compromise in
respect to any claims relating to any Lessee Contamination without first notifying Lessor of
Lessee’s intention to do so and affording Lessor the opportunity, at Lessor’s expense, to
appear, intervene or otherwise appropriately assert and protect Lessor’s interest with respect
thereto. In addition to all other rights and remedies of the Lessor hereunder, if Lessee does
not promptly and diligently take all steps to prepare and obtain all necessary approvals of a
remediation plan (the “Plan”) for any Lessee Contamination, and thereafter commence the
required remediation, in accordance with the Plan, of any Hazardous Materials released or
discharged in connection with Lessee Contamination within thirty (30) days after Lessor has
reasonably approved the Plan and all necessary approvals and consents have been obtained
and thereafter continue to prosecute said remediation to completion in accordance with the
approved Plan, then Lessor, in its sole discretion, shall have the right, but not the obligation,
to cause said remediation in accordance with the Plan to be accomplished, and Lessee shall
reimburse Lessor within fifteen (15) business days of Lessor’s demand for reimbursement of
all amounts reasonably paid by Lessor (together with interest on said amounts at the
judgment rate until paid), when said demand is accompanied by proof of payment by Lessor
of the amounts demanded. Lessee shall promptly deliver to Lessor copies of hazardous
waste manifests reflecting the legal and proper disposal of all Hazardous Materials removed
from the Ground Lease Premises as part of Lessee’s remediation of any Lessee
Contamination.



(c) Disposition of Hazardous Materials. Except as removed from the Ground Lease
Premises in strict accordance and conformity with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws,
Lessee shall cause any and all Hazardous Materials removed from the Ground Lease
Premises as part of the required remediation of Lessee Contamination to be removed and
transported solely by duly licensed haulers to duly licensed facilities for final disposal of
such materials and wastes.

Section 5.3. Notice of Hazardous Materials Matters. Each party hereto (for purposes of this
Section, “Notifying Party”) shall immediately notify the other party (the “Notice Recipient”) in
writing of: (a) any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other governmental or regulatory action
instituted, contemplated or threatened concerning the Ground Lease Premises pursuant to any
Hazardous Materials Laws; (b) any claim made or threatened by any person against the
Notifying Party or the Ground Lease Premises relating to damage contribution, cost recovery,
compensation, loss or injury resulting from or claimed to result from any Hazardous Materials on
or about the Ground Lease Premises; and (c) any reports made to any environmental agency
arising out of or in connection with any Hazardous Materials in or removed from the Ground
Lease Premises, including any complaints, notices, warnings or asserted violations in connection
therewith, all upon receipt by the Notifying Party of actual knowledge of any of the foregoing
matters. Notifying Party shall also supply to Notice Recipient as promptly as possible, and in
any event within five (5) business days after Notifying Party first receives or sends the same,
copies of all claims, reports, complaints, notices, warnings or asserted violations relating in any
way to the Ground Lease Premises or Lessee’s use thereof.

Section 5.4. Indemnification by Lessee. Lessee shall indemnify, defend (by counsel
reasonably acceptable to Lessor), protect, and hold Lessor and each of Lessor’s officers, Council
members, employees, agents, affiliates, subsidiaries, attorneys, successors and assigns free and
harmless from and against any and all claims, actions, causes of action, liabilities, penalties,
forfeitures, damages, losses or expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and costs
through litigation and all appeals) resulting from death of or injury to any person or damage to
any property whatsoever, arising from or caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly by (a)
any Lessee Contamination, (b) Lessee’s failure to comply with any Hazardous Materials Laws
with respect to the Ground Lease Premises, or (c) a breach of any covenant, warranty or
representation of Lessee under this Article 5. Lessee’s obligations hereunder shall include all
costs of any required or necessary repair, clean-up or detoxification or decontamination of the
Premises, and the preparation and implementation of any closure, remedial action or other
required plans in connection therewith. The foregoing indemnification by Lessee shall extend to
conditions attributable to Lessee in existence prior to the commencement of the Term.

ARTICLE 6 - IMPROVEMENTS

Section 6.1. Improvements. Lessee may construct additional improvements/infrastructure
on the Ground Lease Premises in accordance with plans that are pre-approved prior to the
commencement of construction in writing by Lessor and which are in compliance with local
building code requirements, zoning requirements, and this Lease. All work shall be performed in
a good and workmanlike manner, shall comply with all applicable governmental permits, laws,
ordinances, and regulations. All costs in any way associated with construction of the Hangar and
additional improvements/infrastructure shall be the sole responsibility of Lessee.



Section 6.2. Title; Subordination. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease, Lessee
shall own and hold title to all of its improvements/infrastructure on the Ground Lease Premises
until termination or expiration of this Lease, at which time title to any and all
improvements/infrastructure on the Ground Lease Premises shall be transferred to the Lessor.
Lessee’s title to said improvements/infrastructure on the Ground Lease Premises shall be subject
to and subordinate to this Lease.

ARTICLE 7 — MAINTENANCE

Section 7.1. Maintenance of Ground Lease Premises. Lessee agrees that it will, at its own
cost and expense, maintain or cause to be maintained the Ground Lease Premises and any other
improvements/infrastructure thereon and appurtenances thereto and every part thereof, in good
order, condition and repair and in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders
and regulations of all governmental authorities. In the event any repairs required to be made
under the provisions of this Lease are not made or commenced and diligently pursued thereafter,
within sixty (60) days after written notice from Lessor.to do so, then Lessor may, at its option,
enter upon said Ground Lease Premises and repair the same, and the cost and expense of such
repairs, with interest at the maximum rate then allowed by law, shall be due and pald by Lessee
as additional rent to Lessor upon demand.

Section 7.2. Emergency Repairs. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.1, in the
event of an emergency, Lessor, at its option, may without notice enter on the Ground Lease
Premises to effect repairs needed as a result of the emergency. The reasonable cost of such
repairs shall be due and paid by Lessee to Lessor on demand as additional rent due hereunder.
However, if Lessee contests the necessity of "emergency repairs” completed by Lessor without
notice, the reasonable cost of such repairs shall not be treated as "additional rent" hereunder for
purposes of determining a default of this agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - MECHANICS’ LIENS

Section 8.1. : Prohibition of Llens on Fee Unless removed as set forth in Section 8.2,
Lessee shall not suffer, create or permit any mechanic’s liens or other liens to be filed against the
Ground Lease Premises or any buildings or improvements/infrastructure on the Ground Lease
Premises, by reason of any work, labor, services or materials supplied or claimed to have been
supplied to Lessee or anyone holding the Ground Lease Premises or any part thereof through or
under Lessee. = -

Section 8.2. Removal of Liens by Lessee. If any such mechanic’s or laborer’s liens or
materialman’s lien shall be recorded against the Ground Lease Premises, or any
improvements/infrastructure thereof, within sixty (60) days after notice of the filing thereof, or
fifteen (15) days after Lessee is served with a complaint to foreclose said lien or Lessor advises
Lessee in writing that Lessor has been served with such a complaint, whichever is earlier, Lessee
shall cause such lien to be removed, or will transfer the lien to bond pursuant to applicable South
Carolina law. If Lessee in good faith desires to contest the lien, Lessee may do so, but in such
case Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify and save Lessor harmless from all liability for damages,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, occasioned thereby and shall, in the event of a
judgment of foreclosure upon any mechanic’s lien, cause the same to be discharged and removed
prior to the execution of such judgment.



ARTICLE 9 - CONDEMNATION

Section 9.1. Interests of Parties on Condemnation. If the Ground Lease Premises or any
part thereof shall be taken for public purpose by condemnation as a result of any actlon or
proceeding in eminent domain (as commenced by a governmental entity other than Lessor'), or
shall be transferred in lieu of condemnation to any authority entitled to exercise the power of
eminent domain (other than Lessor), the interests of Lessor and Lessee in the award or
consideration for such transfer, and the allocation of the award and the other effect of the taking
or transfer upon this Lease, shall be as provided by this Article 9.

Section 9.2. Total Taking - Termination. If the entire Ground Lease Premises is taken or so
transferred, this Lease and all of the right, title and interest of Lessee hereunder, including
Lessee’s obligation to pay rent, shall cease on the date tltle to such land so taken or transferred
vests in the condemning authority. :

Section 9.3. Partial Taking - Termination. In the event of the taking or transfer of only a
part of the Ground Lease Premises, leaving the remainder of the Ground Lease Premises in such
location, or in such form, shape or reduced size as to be not effectively and practicably usable in
the good faith opinion of Lessee for the operation thereon of Lessee’s activities, this Lease and
all right, title and interest of Lessee hereunder may be terminated by Lessee giving, within sixty
(60) days of the occurrence of such event, thirty (30) days’ notice to Lessor of Lessee’s intention
to terminate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon notice from Lessee to Lessor that Lessee
desires to continue this Lease, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 9.4. Partial Taklng “Award. If tltle and possession of a portion of the Ground
Lease Premises is taken under the power of eminent domain, and this Lease continues as to the
portion remaining, all compensation and damages (“Compensation™) payable to Lessee by reason
of any 1mprovements/mﬁ'astructure so taken shall be available to be used, to the extent
reasonably needed, by Lessee in replacing any 1mprovements/mfrastructure so taken with
improvements/infrastructure of the same type as the remaining portion of the Ground Lease
Premises. All plans and specifications for such replacement and improvements shall be subject
to Lessor’s reasonable prior approval and all such repairs shall be in compliance with all then
existing codes, zoning ordinances, rules and regulations governing the Ground Lease Premises.

Section 9.5. Allocation of Award. Any compensation awarded or payable because of the
taking of all or any portion of the Ground Lease Premises by eminent domain shall be awarded
in accordance with the values of the respective interests in the Ground Lease Premises and all
improvements/infrastructure thereon immediately prior to the taking. The value of Lessor’s
interest in the Ground Lease Premises and all improvements/infrastructure thereon immediately
prior to a taking shall include the then value of its interest as Lessor under this Lease, together
with the value of its reversionary interest in the Ground Lease Premises and the Hangar and
related improvements/infrastructure. The value of Lessee’s interest in the Ground Lease
Premises and improvements/infrastructure immediately prior to a taking shall include the then

VIf Lessor is deemed to “take” any interest in the Ground Lease Premises, including any
improvements/infrastructure thereon, or any part thereof, for public purpose as a result of any action or proceeding
in eminent domain, or by related power, the rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall be as prescribed by the
laws of the State of South Carolina and the United States of America.
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value of its interest in the Ground Lease Premises and the Hangar and related
improvements/infrastructure for the remainder of the Term of this Lease (without giving effect to
any early termination provision). In the event of separate awards, then Lessor and Lessee may
retain such separate awards made to each and any of them. Such values shall be those
determined in the proceeding relating to such taking or, if no separate determination of the values
is made in such proceeding, those determined by agreement between Lessor and Lessee. If such
agreement cannot be reached, such values shall be determined by an appraiser or appraisers
appointed in the manner provided below. The time of taking shall mean 12:01 a.m. of,
whichever shall first occur, the date of title or the date physical possession of the portion of the
Ground Lease Premises on which the improvements/infrastructure are located is taken by the
taking agency or entity. If the appointment of an appraiser or appraisers is required, Lessor and
Lessee will each select an MAI real estate appraiser licensed in the State of South Carolina and
having experience in the appraisal of commercial real estate to conduct an appraisal of the
Ground Lease Premises or applicable portion thereof, taking into account the then use of the
Ground Lease Premises by Lessee, together with the appurtenances to the Ground Lease
Premises such as access, parking and landscaping, but including such value only as
appurtenances to the Ground Lease Premises. If the two appraisers shall agree, the agreed value
shall be the fair market value of the Ground Lease Premises or applicable portion thereof. If the
appraisers do not agree and the difference between the two appraisals does not exceed ten
percent (10%) of the greater appraisal, then the average of the two (2) fair market values as
determined by the two appraisals shall determine the fair market value of the Ground Lease
Premises or applicable portion thereof. If the difference between the two appraisals is greater
than ten percent (10%) of the greater appraisal, then the two appraisers shall select a third MAI
appraiser licensed in the State of South Carolina, and the average of the three appraisals shall be
the fair market value of the Ground Lease Premises or applicable portion thereof. Each party
shall pay the cost of its chosen appraiser and should a third appraiser be necessary, Lessor and
Lessee shall each pay one-half (}4) of the costs of the third appraiser.

ARTICLE 10 - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 10.1. Limitation on Assignment and Subletting. Lessee may not sell, assign,
sublease, convey or transfer Lessee’s interest in this Lease and the leasehold estate created
hereby, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed. In the event Lessee sells, assigns, subleases, conveys or transfers Lessee’s
interest in this Lease, Lessee shall remain primarily liable for the payment of the rent herein
reserved and for the performance of each and all of the covenants and conditions hereof on the
Lessee’s part to be performed. Any assignment, sublease, conveyance or transfer of Lessee’s
interest in this Lease shall be subject to compliance with the provisions of this Lease, including
without limitation, Articles 4 and 5 above. In the event of a sale or transfer of Lessee’s interest in
this Lease, any assignee shall be required to assume in writing the “Lessee” obligations under
this Lease, notwithstanding the forgoing. Notwithstanding any other term or condition of this
Agreement, however, Lessee shall be permitted to rent space within the Hangar located on the
Ground Lease Premises to third-parties for purposes of parking or storing the aircraft owned by
such third-parties. Such rental of space is not subject to County consent or approval as provided
in Article 4 herein.

ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Section 11.1. Comprehensive Liability Insurance. Lessee shall, at its cost and expense, at all
8



times during the Term, maintain in force, for the joint benefit of Lessor and Lessee, and any
holder of a mortgage on the Ground Lease Premises, a broad form commercial general policy of
liability insurance issued by a carrier reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and licensed to do
business in the State of South Carolina, by the terms of which Lessor and Lessee, and any holder
of a mortgage on the Ground Lease Premises or Lessee’s leasehold interest, are named as
insureds and are indemnified against liability for damage or injury to property or persons
(including death) entering upon or using the Ground Lease Premises, or any structure thereon or
any part thereof. Such insurance policy or policies shall be maintained on the minimum basis of
$1,000,000 per occurrence with respect to bodily injury, death, property damage and personal
injury, or such lesser amount as may be permitted from time to time pursuant to applicable
mortgage requirements with respect to the Ground Lease Premises. Such insurance policy or
policies shall be stated to be primary and noncontributing with any insurance which may be
carried by Lessor. A certificate of said insurance, together with proof of payment of the
premlum thereof shall be delivered to Lessor, and renewal certificates and proof of payment of
premium therefor shall be delivered to Lessor not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the renewal
date of any such insurance policies during the Term. Such insurance shall be cancelable only
after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Lessor and Lessee, and any holder of a mortgage on
the Ground Lease Premises. In the event Lessee fails to timely pay any premium when due,
Lessor shall be authorized to do so, and may charge all costs and expenses thereof, including the
premium, to Lessee, to be paid by Lessee as additional rent hereunder.

Section 11.2. Fire and Extended Coverage Property Insurance. Lessee shall, at its cost and
expense and at all times during the Term, maintain in force, for the joint benefit of Lessor and
Lessee, and any holder of a mortgage on -the Ground Lease Premises, or any holder of a
mortgage on the leasehold interest in the Ground Lease Premises, a policy of insurance insuring
the Ground Lease Premises and the Hangar against loss or damage by fire, lightning and
earthquake, and such other perils as are covered under a broad form of “extended coverage”
“all risk” endorsement as available in South Carolina. Lessor shall be named as an addmonal
insured on such policy of insurance, and the leasehold mortgagee shall be named as required by
its loan documents, and subject to terms of any mortgage encumbering the Ground Lease
Premises or any interest therein, any insurance proceeds shall be applied in the manner as set
forth in this Lease. The insurance shall be carried and maintained to the extent of full
replacement cost of the improvements/infrastructure, in such amounts as may be reasonably
acceptable to Lessor from time to time during the Term of this Lease; provided however, that
during the period of construction, Lessee shall provide or cause to be provided in lieu thereof
builders’ risk or similar type of insurance to the full replacement cost thereof. Such insurance
policy or policies shall be stated to be primary and noncontributing with any insurance which
may be carried by Lessor. In addition, the deductible for such insurance shall not exceed
$10,000.00. A certificate of said insurance, together with proof of payment of the premium
thereof, shall be delivered to Lessor. Any renewal certificates and proof of payment of premium
therefor shall be delivered to Lessor not less than five (5) days prior to the renewal date of any
such insurance policies during the Term. Such insurance shall be cancelable only after thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to Lessor, Lessee, and any holder of a mortgage on the Ground
Lease Premises. In the event Lessee fails to timely pay any premium when due, Lessor shall be
authorized to do so, and may charge all costs and expenses thereof, including the premium, to
Lessee, to be paid by Lessee as additional rent hereunder.

Section 11.3. Waiver of Subrogation. Lessor and Lessee and all parties claiming under them
mutually release and discharge each other from all claims and liabilities arising from or caused
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by any casualty or hazard covered or required hereunder to be covered in whole or in part by the
casualty and liability insurance to be carried on the Hangar and the Ground Lease Premises or in
connection with any improvements/infrastructure on or activities conducted on the Ground Lease
Premises and the Hangar, and waive any right of subrogation which might otherwise exist in or
accrue to any person on account thereof, and shall evidence such waiver by endorsement to the
required insurance policies, provided that such release shall not operate in any case where the
effect is to invalidate or increase the cost of such insurance coverage (provided that in the case of
increased cost, the other party shall have the right, within thirty (30) days following written
notice, to pay such increased cost, thereby keeping such release and waiver in full force and
effect).

Section 11.4. Indemnification. Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify, protect, defend and save
Lessor and its officers, Council members, employees, agents, attorneys, successors and assigns
harmless from and against any and all losses, damages, actions, fines, penalties, demands,
damages, liability and expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs through litigation and all
appeals, in connection with the loss of life, personal injury and damage to property, resulting
from the negligence or intentional misconduct of Lessee, its employees or agents, and arising
from or out of (i) any occurrence in, upon, at or about the Ground Lease Premises; (ii) the
occupancy, use, construction upon and maintenance of the Ground Lease Premises; and (iii) the
operation of the Hangar. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to make Lessee liable for
any injury or loss primarily caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Lessor or
any agent or employee of Lessor.

ARTICLE 12 - DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION

Section 12.1. Lessee’s Duty to Restore Premises. At any time during the Term, or any
extensions thereof, and so long as no Event of Default has occurred, if any buildings or
improvements/infrastructure now -or hereafter located on the Ground Lease Premises are
damaged and/or destroyed in whole or in part by fire, theft, the elements, or any other cause, this
Lease shall continue in full force and effect, and Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall repair
and restore the damaged or destroyed Hangar and related improvements/infrastructure according
to the original plan hereof or accordmg to such modified plans as shall be reasonably approved in
writing by Lessor. The work of repair and restoration shall be commenced by Lessee as soon as
possible after the damage or destruction occurs, and shall be completed with due diligence.

Section 12.2. Application of Insurance Proceeds. Any and all fire or other insurance
proceeds that become payable at any time during the Term, or any extensions thereof, because of
damage to or destruction of any buildings or improvements/infrastructure on the Ground Lease
Premises shall be paid jointly to Lessee and Lessor, and applied toward the cost of repairing and
restoring the damaged or destroyed buildings or improvements/infrastructure.

ARTICLE 13 - DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 13.1. Defaults. Each of the following events shall be a default by Lessee and a
breach of this Lease and constitute an “Event of Default™:

(a) Abandonment. Abandonment of the Ground Lease Premises, or the
improvements/infrastructure now or hereafter constructed thereon, where such abandonment
continues for a period of sixty (60) days after notice thereof by Lessor to Lessee. Such
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abandonment shall not include any time that the Ground Lease Premises are vacated due to a
casualty.

(b) Attachment or Other Levy. The subjection of any right or interest of Lessee in the
Ground Lease Premises to attachment, execution or other levy, or to seizure under legal
process, if not released within sixty (60) days, after written notice of same.

(c) Insolvency: Bankruptcy. An assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors, or
the filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition by or against Lessee under any law for the
purpose of adjudicating Lessee a bankrupt; or for extending time for payment, adjustment or
satisfaction of Lessee’s liabilities; or reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on account
of, or to prevent bankruptcy or insolvency; unless, in case of such that are involuntary on
Lessee’s part, the assignment, proceedings, and all consequent orders, adjudications,
custodies and supervisions are dismissed, vacated or terminated within sixty (60) days after
the assignment, filing or other initial event. :

(d) Transfer of Lessee’s Interest. Any transfer, sale, conveyance, assignment,
subletting, hypothecation, encumbrance or pledge of Lessee’s interest in the Ground Lease
Premises or the Hangar, whether voluntary, involuntary or otherwise by operation of law, in
violation of Article 10 of this Lease. This Section 13.1(e) shall not be effective unless and
until Lessee has exhausted all rights to contest any involuntary encumbrance.

(e) Default in Payment or Performance Under this Lease. Failure of Lessee to pay any
installment of rent or any impositions or other monetary obligations required to be paid by
Lessee under this Lease when due and payable; or failure of Lessee to observe or perform
any of its other covenants, conditions including, but not limited to use restrictions and time
constraints on completion of construction, or agreements under this Lease; or the breach of
any warranties or representations of Lessee under this Lease. For purposes of this Article
13, all monetary payments required to be made under this Lease, including, but not limited
to, taxes, insurance premiums, utility payments, and assessments, together with all other
sums Lessee is obligated to pay under this Lease (other than rent), shall be deemed
additional rent hereunder.

Section 13.2. Notice and Right to Cure. If the alleged default is monetary in nature such as
(but not limited to) nonpayment of rent, taxes or any other sums required to be paid by Lessee to
Lessor, Lessee will have thirty (30) days to cure the default following written notice of the
default from Lessor to Lessee and the leasehold mortgagee. As to any non-monetary default,
Lessee shall have sixty (60) days to cure the default after written notice is given by Lessor to
Lessee and to the leasehold mortgagee, specifying the nature of the default; provided, however,
that if after exercise of due diligence and its best efforts to cure such non-monetary default
Lessee is unable to do so within the sixty (60) day period, then the cure period shall be extended
for such reasonable time as may be required to cure the default. As used herein, non-monetary
default shall include, without limitation, a breach of any covenant of Lessee hereunder, Lessee’s
failure to perform as required hereunder, and a breach of any warranty, representation or other
agreement of Lessee under this Lease.

Section 13.3. Remedies. If any default by Lessee shall continue uncured by Lessee and/or
the leasehold mortgagee upon expiration of the applicable cure period, Lessor may exercise any
one or all of the following remedies in addition to all other rights and remedies provided by law
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or equity, from time to time, to which Lessor may resort cumulatively or in the alternative:

(a)

(b

(d)

Termination of Lease in its Entirety. Lessor may, at Lessor’s election, terminate this
Lease. All Lessee’s rights in the Ground Lease Premises, the Hangar and in all
improvements/infrastructure thereon shall terminate upon termination of this Lease.
Promptly after any such termination, Lessee shall surrender and vacate the Ground Lease
Premises, the Hangar and any other improvements/infrastructure thereon, and Lessor may
re-enter and take possession of the Ground Lease Premises, the Hangar and all other
improvements/infrastructure thereon, subject to any space leases between Lessee and any
valid sublessee of Lessee. Termination under this paragraph shall not relieve Lessee
from the payment of any sum then due to Lessor, or from any claim for damages
previously accrued, or then accruing, against Lessee.

Re-entry Without Termination. Lessor may, at Lessor’s election, re-enter the Ground
Lease Premises, the Hangar and improvements/infrastructure thereon, and without
terminating this Lease, at any time, relet the Ground Lease Premises and
improvements/infrastructure thereon, or any part(s) of them, for the account, and in the
name of Lessee or otherwise, all upon commercially reasonable rates and terms
determined by Lessor, without hereby obligating Lessor to relet the Ground Lease
Premises and the Hangar or make an effort to relet either or both of them in whole or in
part, at any time. Any reletting may be for the remainder of the Term or for any longer or
shorter period. Lessor may execute any leases made under this provision either in
Lessor’s name or in Lessee’s name. Lessor shall have the further right, at Lessor’s
option, to make such reasonable and necessary alterations, repairs, replacements and/or
restorations which shall not operate or be construed to release Lessee from liability
hereunder. Lessee shall nevertheless pay to Lessor on the due dates specified in this
Lease the equivalent of all sums required of Lessee under this Lease, plus Lessor’s
expenses. No act by or on behalf of Lessor under this provision shall constitute a
termination of this Ground Lease unless Lessor gives Lessee written notice of
termination. Notw1thstand1ng any other term or condition contained in this Agreement,
nothing shall be construed to abridge Lessor’s duty to mitigate damages as imposed
under South Carolina law.

Lessee’s Personal Property. Lessor may, at Lessor’s election, use Lessee’s personal
property and trade fixtures or any of such property and fixtures without compensation
and without liability for use or damage, or store them for the account and at the cost of
Lessee. The election of one remedy for any one item shall not foreclose an election of
any other remedy for another item, or for the same item at a later time.

Appointment of Receiver. To the extent provided for and allowed by applicable law,
Lessor may, if Lessor elects to file suit to enforce this Lease and/or protect its rights
hereunder, in addition to the other remedies provided in this Lease and by law, have the
appointment of a receiver of the Ground Lease Premises and the
improvements/infrastructure thereon.

Section 13.4. Remedies Cumulative. Suit or suits for the recovery of such damages, or any
installments thereof, may be brought by either party from time to time at their election, and
nothing contained herein shall be deemed to require either party to postpone suit until the date
when the term of this Lease would have expired nor limit or preclude recovery by either party
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against the other of any sums or damages which, in addition to the damages particularly provided
above, either party may lawfully be entitled by reason of any default hereunder on the part of the
other. All the remedies hereinbefore given to the parties and all rights and remedies given to
them at law and in equity shall be cumulative and concurrent.

Section 13.5. Lessee’s Liability After Default. If Lessee shall default in the performance of
any of its obligations under this Lease, Lessor, without thereby waiving such default, may (but
shall not be obligated to) perform the defaulted obligation for the account and at the expense of
Lessee, without notice in a case of emergency, and in any other case only if such default
continues after the expiration of the curing period applicable under this Lease. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by Lessor in connection with any such performance, and all reasonable
attorneys’ fees, including appellate, bankruptcy and post-judgment proceedings involved in
collecting or endeavoring to collect the rent or any additional rent or any part thereof or
enforcing or endeavoring to enforce any rights against Lessee or Lessee’s obligations hereunder,
shall be due and payable upon Lessor’s submission of documentation verifying it incurred such
amounts in relation to the enforcement of this Agreement. All sums advanced by Lessor on
account of Lessee under this Section, or pursuant to any other provision of this Lease, and all
rent, if delinquent or not paid by Lessee and received by Lessor when due hereunder, shall bear
interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum from the due date thereof until paid and
the same shall be and constitute additional rent and be due and payable upon Lessor’s demand
therefor.

Section 13.6. Holdover. If Lessee remains in possession of the Ground Lease Premises or
any part thereof after the expiration or sooner termination of the Term or any extension thereof,
Lessee shall become a Lessee at sufferance. Notwithstanding that Lessor may allow Lessee to
continue in possession after the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, neither that nor
the provisions of this Section shall constitute a waiver of any of Lessor’s rights under this
Section or this Lease. -

ARTICLE 14 - SURRENDER AND REMOVAL

Section 14.1. Surrender of Possession. At the Expiration Date or any earlier termination
thereof, Lessee shall surrender to Lessor possession of the Ground Lease Premises and all
improvements/infrastructure constructed and installed thereon. If Lessee is not then in default
under any of the covenants and conditions hereof, Lessee may remove, or cause to be removed,
all personal property and equipment of Lessee, other than permanent fixtures, from the Ground
Lease Premises within thirty (30) days after the date of expiration or termination of this Lease;
thereafter all such personal property and equipment not removed shall belong to Lessor without
the payment of any consideration.

Section 14.2. Lessee’s Quitclaim. Upon the expiration of the Term, or any sooner
termination of this Lease, Lessee agrees to execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor, if
requested by Lessor, a proper instrument in writing, releasing and quitclaiming to Lessor all
right, title and interest of Lessee in and to the Ground Lease Premises and all
improvements/infrastructure thereon.

ARTICLE 15 — GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 15.1. Conditions and Covenants. All of the provisions of this Lease shall be deemed
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as running with the land, and construed to be “conditions” as well as “covenants” as though the

words specifically expressing or imparting covenants and conditions were used in each separate
provision.

Section 15.2. Survival of Indemnities. All representations, warranties and indemnities of
Lessee or Lessor under this Lease shall survive the expiration or sooner termination of this
Lease, subject to such limitations as imposed by South Carolina law.

Section 15.3. No Waiver of Breach. No failure by either Lessor or Lessee to insist upon the
strict performance by the other of any covenant, agreement, term or condition of this Lease, or to
exercise any right or remedy consequent upon a breach thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any
such breach or of such covenant, agreement, term or condition. No waiver of any breach shall
affect or alter this Lease, but each and every covenant, condition, agreement and term of this
Lease shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any ‘other then existing or subsequent
breach.

Section 15.4. Unavoidable Delay - Force Majeure. If either party shall be delayed or
prevented from the performance of any act required by this Lease by reason of acts of God,
strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, inability to procure materials, restrictive governmental laws, or
regulations or other cause, without fault and beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated
(financial inability excepted), performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the
delay; and the period for the performance of any such act shall be extended for a period
equivalent to the period of such delay; provided, however, nothing in this Section shall excuse
Lessee from the prompt payment of any rental or other charge required of Lessee except as may
be expressly provided elsewhere in this Lease. :

Section 15.5.Notices. Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Lease or by law, any
and all notices or other communications required or permitted by this Lease or by law to be
served on, given to, or delivered to any party to this Lease shall be writing and shall be deemed
duly served, given, delivered and received when personally delivered (including confirmed
overnight delivery service to the party to whom it is directed), or in lieu of such personal
delivery, when three (3) business days have elapsed following deposit thereof in the United
States mail, first-class postage prepaid, certified, return receipt requested, addressed to:

LESSOR: Oconee County Administrator
415 South Pine Street
‘Walhalla, SC 29691

with a copy to:

Oconee Regional Airport Manager
365 Airport Rd

Seneca, SC 29678

LESSEE: Hangar III, LLC
Attn: Steve Edwards
125 Eagle’s Nest Drive
Seneca, SC 29678

Either party may change its address for the purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of
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such change to the other party in the manner provided in this paragraph.

Section 15.6. Captions. Captions in this Lease are inserted for convenience of reference only
and do not define, describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Lease or any of the terms
hereof.

Section 15.7. Waiver; Amendment. No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge or
change of this Lease shall be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by the party against
which the enforcement of such modification, waiver, amendment, discharge or change is or may
be sought.

Section 15.8. Attorney’s Fees. If either party retains an attorney to enforce this Lease, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to all other items of recovery permitted
by law, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred through litigation, bankruptcy proceedings
and all appeals.

Section 15.9. Time. Time is of the essence of each obligation of each parfy hereunder.

Section 15.10. Governing Law. This Lease shail be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of South Carolina, without regard to conflict of law principles.

Section 15.11. Binding Effect. Subject to any provision of this Lease that may prohibit or
curtail assignment of any rights hereunder, this Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
respective heirs, assigns, personal representatives, and successors of the parties hereto.

Section 15.12. Execution of Other Instruments. Each party agrees that it shall, upon the
other’s request, take any and all steps, and execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party
any and all further instruments necessary or expedient to effectuate the purpose of this Lease.

Section 15.13. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Lease is
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable or is otherwise
challenged and determined to be invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced as a result of any
rule of law or public policy issued by an administrative or judicial forum that is not subject to
. further appeal or is not actually appealed, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full
force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. In such event or if an
opinion of counsel is provided to the effect that this Lease is not so enforceable, the parties
hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Lease so as to effect the original intent of the
parties as closely as possible and to comply with applicable law, regulations or published
governmental interpretations thereof, in an acceptable manner to the end that the transactions
contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the extent possible.

Section 15.14. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original and when taken together will constitute one instrument.

Section 15.15. Estoppel Certificate. Either party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to
the other party, within twenty (20) days after requested by the other party, a statement in writing
certifying, if such is the case, that this Lease in unmodified and in full force and effect (or if
there have been modifications that the same is in full force and effect as modified); the date of
commencement of this Lease; the dates for which the rent and other charges have been paid; any

15



alleged defaults and claims against the other party and providing such other information as shall
be reasonably requested.

Section 15.16. Dispute Resolution; Waiver of Trial by Jury.

(a) Any conflict, dispute or grievance (collectively, “Conflict”) by and between Lessor
and Lessee shall be submitted to mediation before initiating court proceedings. The
mediator selected to conduct the mediation must be mutually agreed upon by Lessor and
Lessee. Unless the parties otherwise agree, the mediator must be certified in South Carolina
state and federal courts and have experience in matters forming the basis of the Conflict.
The site for the mediation shall be Walhalla, South Carolina, and the mediation hearing shall
be held within 30 days of the selection of the mediator, unless otherwise agreed. Each party
shall bear its own expenses associated with the mediation and the parties shall split the fees
and expenses of the mediator evenly. Failure to agree to the selection of a mediator, refusal
to participate in the mediation process, or failure to resolve the Conflict through mediation
will entitle the parties to pursue other methods of dispute resolution, including without
limitation, litigation. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed as requiring either party to participate in mediation prior to
initiating court proceedings in which a temporary restraining order or preliminary injunction
is sought. In such situations, the parties shall conduct mediation within thirty (30) days after
the hearing on such motions or within such other time as is prescribed by the Court.

(b) LESSOR AND LESSEE MUTUALLY, EXPRESSLY, IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY FOR ANY PROCEEDINGS ARISING
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE, OR ARISING OUT OF ANY
CONDUCT OR COURSE OF DEALING OF THE PARTIES, STATEMENTS
(WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN) OR ACTIONS OF ANY PERSONS. THIS WAIVER
IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT TO LESSOR TO ACCEPT DELIVERY OF THIS
LEASE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lease has been executed on the respective dates set forth
below. R ’

IN THE PRESENCE OF: LESSOR:
Oconee County, South Carolina
By:

Name: Paul A. Cain
Title:  Chairman, Oconee County Council

LESSEE:

Hangar III, LLC

By:
Name:
Its:
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EXHIBIT “A”

DESCRIPTION OF GROUND LEASE PREMISES
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Exhibit B

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
)
COUNTY OF OCONEE ) C.A.NO: 2014-CP-37-539
)
Oconee County, Kevin Robinson, )
Oconee County Delinquent Tax Collector, )
)
Plaintiffs, ) SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
) AND RELEASE
V. )
)
Hangar III, LLC, 25 EP Corp., BDS, )
Jerry Edwards, and Steve Edwards, )
)
Defendants. )
)

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE ("Agreement") is made and

entered into this day of 2016, by and between Plaintiffs Oconee

County, Kevin Robinson, Oconee County Delinquent Tax Collector (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “Oconee” or “Plaintiffs”) and Defendants Hangar I1I, LLC, 25 EP Corp., BDS,
Jerry Edwards, and Steve Edwards (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Defendants”).
(Plaintiffs and Defendants are hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties.")

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs filed a lawsuit against Defendants, styled Oconee County, Kevin
Robinson, Oconee County Delinquent Tax Collector v. Hangar IlI, LLC, 25 EP Corp., BDS,
Jerry Edwards, and Steve Edwards, C.A. No. 2014-CP-37-539 (the "Lawsuit"), asserting various
causes of action, seeking damages and allegedly due personal property taxes, and other monetary
and equitable relief against Defendants, which involved, infer alia, a hangar, a hangar lease
agreement executed between the Parties on or about June 2001, a copy of which is attached

hereto as “Exhibit A” (the “Lease Agreement”), and certain airplanes at the Oconee County

Airport;



WHEREAS, the Parties have mutually agreed to resolve all claims which they asserted
or could have asserted against each other in the Lawsuit, and, thus, settle the litigation between
them,;

WHEREAS, Defendants have denied, and continue to deny, any and all liability to
Plaintiffs;

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs and Defendants have agreed to settle this matter in the interest of
avoiding the uncertainty, time, cost, and expense associated with further litigation.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, terms, and
conditions hereinafter expressed, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by all Parties, it
is agreed by and between Plaintiffs and Defendants as follows:

1. Prospective Personal Property Taxation of Airplanes:

Following the final execution of this Agreement and going-forward from that date,
Defendants agree to pay personal property taxes in Oconee County on any plane owned
individually or collectively by Defendants or owned by an entity in which a Defendant or
Defendants have a controlling interest, to the extent owed in accordance with the laws of the
State of South Carolina and without regard to any statement, representation, or agreement made
by or entered into between any party 01; parties with respect to the payment of personal property
taxes. Defendants further agree that nothing in this Agreement, the Lease Agreement or any
other statement, representation, or agreement shall be construed to reduce, waive, release or
otherwise adjust or modify any party’s liability or obligation to pay personal property taxes in
Oconee County. The terms of this Agreement, as related to the payment of personal property

taxes for airplanes, solely has prospective effect.



2. Revision of Lease Agreement:

Plaintiffs and Defendants acknowledge that approximately six (6) years remain on the
Lease Agreement. In consideration of the promises contained in this Agreement, passim, the
Parties hereby agree that nothing in the Lease Agreement, including as amended by that certain
Reformed and Restated Ground Lease (attached hereto as “Exhibit B,”) which is being executed
contemporaneously herewith, shall hereinafter be construed to reduce, waive, release, or
otherwise adjust or modify any party’s liability or obligation to pay personal property taxes in
Oconee County.

3. Attorney's Fees:

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, Oconee County
agrees to pay the actual attorneys’ fees incurred in this matter by Jerry Edwards, 25 EP Corp.,
and Steve Edwards to Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough, LLP in the amount of thirty-five
thousand dollars and no cents ($35,000.00) upon Oconee County's receipt of documentation
verifying that such amount was actually incurred and paid in connection with the instant dispute.

4. Property Taxes & Proof of Payment:

Nothing contained herein shall affect payment of property taxes on the hangar in
question. Defendants will continue to pay property taxes on the hangar in accordance with the
laws of the State of South Carolina.

5. Dismissal with Prejudice and Covenant Not to Sue:

The Parties agree that contemporaneous with the execution of this Agreement, a consent
Order, or Stipulation of Dismissal, with prejudice will be executed and filed with the Court.
Plaintiffs and Defendants further agree and covenant that they will not institute any legal

proceedings, either individually or as a class representative or member, against Plaintiffs or



Defendants as to any matter alleged or which could have been alleged in this Lawsuit and that
relates to or arises from the actions or transactions alleged in the Complaint, except as
specifically and explicitly provided herein.

6. Mutual Release:

The Parties acknowledge that a Mutual Release of claims is an integral part of this
Agreement.

a. Plaintiffs’ Release of Defendants:

Except as specifically and explicitly set forth in this Agreement, Plaintiffs, on behalf of
themselves, their heirs, successors, and assigns, and any person claiming by or through them,
intend to and do hereby forever release, remise, acquit, and discharge Defendants, their owners,
partners, stockholders, parent or subsidiary entities (both direct and indirect), subsidiaries of such
parent entities (both direct and indirect), heirs, agents, employees, servants, representatives,
insurers, attorneys, successors and assigns, of and from any and all contracts, claims, demands,
causes of action, and suits, for actual, general, special, punitive, and statutory damages, costs,
attorneys' fees, reputational damages, allegedly past due taxes on personal property or aircraft, or
any other loss or injury whatsoever, asserted or unasserted and known or unknown, whether
foreseen or unforeseen, in law or equity, whether in tort or in contract or by statute, of any kind
or character from the beginning of time to the present, which Plaintiffs have or could have
asserted against Defendants in the above-captioned Lawsuit, and all other past, present, and
future claims asserted or that could be asserted by Plaintiffs against Defendants in connection
with, or that are in any way related to, any of the facts, acts, events, representations, omissions,
and transactions alleged in the above-captioned Lawsuit (whether raised in the same or

otherwise) or arising from or related to Defendants’ actions as alleged in the Complaint.



b. Defendants’ Release of Plaintiffs:

Except as specifically and explicitly set forth in this Agreement, Defendants on behalf of
themselves and their heirs, successors, and assigns and any other person claiming by or through
them, intend to and do forever release, remise, acquit, and discharge Oconee County and Kevin
Robinson as Oconee County Delinquent Tax Collector, and their successors, agents, employees,
servants, County Council members, managers, the County Administrator, County officers,
elected officials, representatives, insurers, attorneys and assigns (hereinafter collectively referred
to as "Released Plaintiff Parties"), of and from any and all contracts, claims, demands, causes of
action, and suits, for actual, general, special, punitive, and statutory damages, costs, attorneys'
fees, reputational damages, or any other loss or injury whatsoever, asserted or unasserted and
known or unknown, whether foreseen or unforeseen, in law or equity, whether in tort or in
contract or by statute, of any kind or character from the beginning of time to the present, which
Defendants have or could have asserted against the Released Plaintiff Parties in the above-
captioned Lawsuit, and all other past, present, and future claims asserted or that could be asserted
by Defendants against the Released Plaintiff Parties in connection with, or that are in any way
related to, any of the facts, acts, events, representations, omissions, and transactions alleged in
the above-captioned Lawsuit (whether raised in the same or otherwise) or arising from or related
to Defendants’ actions as alleged in the Complaint.

c. Express Exceptions to Release’s Scope

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, except as specifically and
explicitly set forth in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to release either

party’s responsibilities and obligations as stated in the Lease Agreement, including as amended



by that certain Reformed and Restated Ground Lease, which is being executed
contemporaneously herewith. Subject to this Agreement, all rights set forth in the Lease
Agreement, including as reformed and restated aforesaid, are expressly excepted from this
Mutual Release and remain in full force and effect.

7. No Admission of Liability:

It is understood and agreed that this Agreement is in full compromise of doubtful and
disputed claims. Neither the Agreement, nor the consideration stated herein, shall be construed
as an admission of liability, such being denied by all Parties.

8. Additional Provisions:

a. Effective Date:

The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date when all Parties, or their authorized
representatives, have executed the Agreement so that all terms and conditions contained herein
are in conformity with South Carolina law such that they are in full force and effect. Plaintiffs
and Defendants hereby declare that they have read this Agreement in its entirety, that they fully
understand all of the provisions, terms, covenants, and conditions set forth herein, that they
freely and voluntarily accept the same for the purpose of making a full and final settlement of all
of the matters hereinabove set forth, that they (or their respective attorneys) participated in the
drafting of this Agreement, and accordingly, the rule of construction to the effect that any
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party or parties shall not be employed in the
interpretation of this Settlement Agreement and Release.

b. Severability:

Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any term or provision is held

to be invalid, void, or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction for any reason



whatsoever, such ruling shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement. If any
provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, the Parties hereby agree and stipulate
that they shall thereafter cooperate and jointly undertake any and all efforts to render such
provision as enforceable, thereby reincorporating the same into this Agreement.

c. Complete and Final Agreement between Plaintiffs and Defendants:

This Agreement contains all of the agreements, conditions, promises, and covenants between
Plaintiffs and Defendants with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior or
contemporaneous agreements, representations, or understandings with respect to the subject
matter hereof.

This Agreement may not be orally amended, modified, superseded or cancelled, it being
specifically understood that any of the terms, covenants, representations, and conditions hereof
may be amended only by written instrument executed by Plaintiffs and Defendants. If any
provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, the Parties hereby agree and stipulate
that they shall thereafter cooperate and jointly undertake any and all efforts to render such
provision as enforceable thereby reincorporating the same into this Agreement.

d. Contract Is Valid, Binding. and Governed by South Carolina Law:

Plaintiffs and Defendants further agree that the terms of this Agreement are contractual in
nature and are mere recitals, and that the validity, affect, and enforcement of this Agreement
shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina. This Agreement
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit and detriment of all Parties.

e. Enforcement:

Should any Party to this Agreement reasonably retain counsel for the purpose of enforcing

any provision of this Agreement, including the covenants not to sue, or for pursuing damages or



injunctive relief for any claim arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled
to its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees, including reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees incurred
in enforcing any judgment or order.

f. Execution in Counterparts:

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which together constitute one and the same instrument and
Agreement. Signatures transmitted electronically shall for all purposes be deemed originals and
shall bind the parties delivering such signatures.

g. Sufficiency of Consideration:

This Agreement is supported by the consideration expressed in the terms, conditions, and
mutual promises stated herein. All Parties acknowledge and stipulate that the consideration
stated herein constitutes good and valuable consideration sufficient to support the enforceability
of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed

intending to be bound thereby.

Dated:

Authorized Signatory for
Hangar, II1, LLC

Dated:

Authorized Signatory for
25 EP Corp.



Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Authorized Signatory for
BDS

Jerry Edwards

Steve Edwards

Scott Moulder
Oconee County Administrator
As Authorized Signatory for Oconee County

Kevin Robinson, Oconee County
Delinquent Tax Collector



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF OCONEE

RESOLUTION R2016-01

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A
PROCEDURE FOR LIMITED EMERGENCY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS AND
MAINTENANCE, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, pursuant to S.C. Code § 4-9-25, Oconee County has the authority to
enact regulations, resolutions, and ordinances, not inconsistent with the Constitution and
general law of the State of South Carolina, including the exercise of such powers in
relation to health and order within its boundaries and respecting any subject as appears to
it necessary and proper for the security, general welfare, and convenience of the County
or for preserving health, peace, order, and good government therein; and

WHEREAS, there exist certain unpaved Private Roads' within Oconee County
that are in serious need of repair, roads which are often impassable by emergency
vehicles and/or that are otherwise dangerous, and which do not meet the standard
requirements for acceptance into the County Public Road System. For purposes of this
Resolution, these roads are hereinafter referred to as “Substandard Roads;” and

WHEREAS, there exist within unincorporated Oconee County a limited number
of communities or neighborhoods (hereinafter “Communities™) consisting of eleven (11)
or more residences, which are served by Substandard Roads; and

WHEREAS, the cost of bringing certain of these Substandard Roads up to County
standards for acceptance into the County public road system would be prohibitive for the
adjacent and/or affected homeowners.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the County Council of Oconee County in
meeting duly assembled that:

Section 1. Study. The Oconee County Roads and Bridges Department (hereinafter the
“Department”) is hereby directed to undertake a study for the limited improvement and
maintenance of Substandard Roads. As part of this study, the Department shall: (1) Draft
standards for limited upgrading and scheduled maintenance for Substandard Roads, to
include a requirement that sufficient right of way be available for dedication to, or
acquisition by, the County, and (2) develop criteria for a petition program, whereby
Communities consisting of eleven (11) or more residences’ may petition the County for

! See 0.C. Code §26-2(c).
? “Residence” to be defined by the Department in the proposed petition criteria.
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minimal upgrade and maintenance of the Substandard Road(s) serving that Community in
accordance with the standards adopted pursuant to item (1) of this Section. Due to
budgetary constraints, among other variables, it is anticipated that only one such petition
will be granted per fiscal year.

Section2.  Study Results and Recommendations. The Department shall report the
results of the study to the Oconee County Transportation Committee along with any
proposed legislation necessary and/or requested by the Transportation Committee,
including the proposed standards for limited upgrading and scheduled maintenance for
Substandard Roads and criteria for the petition program, for recommendation by the
Transportation Committee to the Oconee County Council for analysis and adoption by
ordinance, as appropriate.

Section 3.  Severability. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
finding shall not affect the remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable.

Section4.  General Repeal. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are,
to the extent of such conflict only, repealed and rescinded.

Section 5.  Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect and be in force
immediately upon enactment.

RESOLVED this 2™ day of February, 2016, in meeting duly assembled.

OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Paul A. Cain, Chairman, County Council
Oconee County, South Carolina

ATTEST:

Elizabeth G. Hulse, Clerk to County Council
Oconee County, South Carolina

R2016-01



PROCUREMENT - AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

OCONEE COUNTY, 5C
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: ___February 2, 2016

ITEM TITLE:

Procurement #: ITE 15-07 Title: Boolkmobile Department: Library Amount: 5215.383.11
FINANCIAL IMPACT: _ i
Procurement was approved by Council in Fiscal Yenr 201 5-2016 budget process. Finance Approval: M’é ,\‘gj g"’__.-"",.-'rﬁ:,i'_
Budget: $185,000.00 Project Cost: $215,383.11 DiMference Needed: F303R3.11
Library Lottery and State Aid Funds:  520,000.00
Additional Lease Purchase Funds: H10.383.11
Additional Lease Purchase Funds approved from sawne,e. in other equipment already purchased.
| BACKGROUND DESCRIPTION: = m |

This R Hcr'um' tor Proposals was iszied Movember 6, 2015 for a new bookmaobile for the Library. This new bookmobile will replace the existing anc that is a

1997 model with over 96,000 miles, The old baokmabile will be retained by the County for use by Emergeney Services or Law Enlorcement as & staging or
Lraining vehicle,

{In Docember 9, 2013, formal sealed proposals were opened for this bookmobile, Eight firms were originally notificd of this opportunity aond five firms
submited proposals, I waluation Criteria included: Compliance with Specifications (40%4), Cost Requirements (30%), Delivery, Training and Wamanty
(10%5) and Capabilities of the Fiem, Experience ond Relerences (20%0). An Evaleation Comumilles consisting of Philip Chency, Library Dirsctor, Blair
Hinsom, Branch Serviees Libearian, Hally McPheeters, Libeary Board Meimber, John Michae]l Cox, 1T Dircctor and Emie Beck from Tleel Maintenance
unammaously voled to recommend Farber Specialty Vehicles, Inc. of Columbus, OH, for this award.

| SEECIAL CONSIDERATIONS OR CONCERNS: |

This purchase was approved for Lease Purchase fanding for 8183000000, Al propaogals recelved were over this armmmt. The recommended propozal was
8213,383.11 alter negotiations, The Library contributed $15,000 from Lottery Funds and $5.000 from State Aid and the balance needed of 51038311 was
_approved te come from suvings in other Lease Purchase squipment.
| ATTACHMENT(S): |

EFP Pricing

| STATTF RECOMMENDATION:

It 15 the stalTs recommendation that Couner] L|1r'.-|'mc the awpr |g| ot RFP 1507 for a Library Bookmobile Farher Bpecialty Vehicles, Ine, of Columbus, OLL

in the amount ol 321338311, ;
Submitted or Prepared By: /& 'l fm& Approved for Submittal to Council:

Rabyn Counrtrighe, Procurement Birec T. Scott Moulder, County Administrator

Comprell fras directed e r.hr_p repeive e rr;.n':'m:.l'u pq'rr.l'qjge,'.' i ek ||':|r'r'.|1-|-' o ench Cosnedl Hrﬂ'r‘rlﬂgr IIrLFrEﬁJ?';F. .-'Ig.pu.l.fq- fremy Swrmmaries mpst e spbonisied te mhe
Adwrinistratar for bis peviewdapproval mo later thare 12 days prive fo caclh Corecdl meering, 0t is the Departmens Head 7 Elected Officials responsibility to ensure fear all
approvely gre abteined prior to schmicsdoen g e Adwdaistragor foe fncluyion an an agemii,

A calendar with die Tates marked meay be obsained from the Clerk to Council,



RFP 15-07

LIBRARY BEOORMOBILE

Decemberd, 2015

Farber Speciality Sumimit Body
Vehiclas LW 0OBsS Waorks Tri-"an

Location Columbus, OH Burlington, W Canton, OH Commerce City, CO Ferndale, Wa
Addendurn #1 Signed Yeas ¥ag Yes Yas e
i 1] Original, (&} Copies Yag You Wi Yas Yag
5:{" Bid Bond i Yas Yes Yas Yas
Signed Pg. 14"Understands Gen. Info & Inst* Form Mes Yas Yias Yas Yas
Signed Exhibit B [Pg, 18} "Assurance, Compolance, Nan o
Calluzion” Form, Matanzed e W Yios Yas fas
Signed Exhild O - "Orug Free Workpiace® Form Yas Ve Yesg Y Yas
Mon-Residen] Taxpayer Affidavit Yos Yes Yes Yas Y85
Seclion 4 Signatura page 33 Yas YR e — - Yag Yes
Time of Delivery from Receipt of PO 240 days B months or less apprex. B months 270 days 180 days
Bass Price wilh Mo Jplions 353-!-1'-_!'1_E|ﬂ3. 11 5247 89800 S228, 700,00 524888300 27T, 750.00
Vehicle Sales Tax FAT ] §300.00 §300.00 Sa00. 00 RN
MOTAL R L R S22 19000 §228 300 5240 R3O0 T27H,050.00
OVERALL RAMKING BY EVALUATION COMMITTEE
{Other factors besides price reflacted in scores) 1 3 3 4 5




QOCONEE COUNTY BOARD / COMMISSION { COMMITTEE

CANDIDATE LISTING

i

| =2 Questicnnalra

= w Recaived Dats
Coray, James 1 x Apri] 015
Coray, Glenn 1 | LCcH March] 2018
Efiott. Kathy 1 [Ves| | * March| 2015
Eves, Kevin 1 Moverioer| 2115
?jégnﬂ_l_‘.ar.—jr& 1 % S “ Dolopear| 2015
Haliar, Ardy 1 X A ] July) 2015
| Fousion, Joanna [ R i K i Movemriber] 2015
Lyle Dized 1 | ¥as s Movember] 201
‘Washburn, Catherine| 1 K Dacamber| 20
arcengll, Richad 2 | Yes X 2 January| 2015
Wik, Rubieoos 2 | wavembear| 2018
Shadeick, Al 3 Movemiber| 2015
Wanhok, Shamm 3| Auust) 20
Brocxinglon, Bill 4 | "\.nl.n"mEr'r 2015
Cabiern, William 4 | Yos COCR ~ April| 2018
Dizan, Barkara 4 Movambar] 2018
Jehrson, Shaen 4 | Yas A i s Movambar| 2015
Marnson, Chanda 4 | Yas Mavembar] 201
Nichp=an, Brag 4 Duapamibar| 2015
Pearson, Frankie ™ | 4 ;- " x January| 201E |
"u'l:lEE- JEFI'I"E' - 3 | ves [Dscamtbar| 2015
"vH["IE"-' D*‘-."IE'l:l g | Yes M x Lacambar] 25

E!Ift'slll’.l"ﬂ:llrﬂ o mainfaned on e far one &I’ Ehair rovnoid frowt conadaraliian nnless ppdaied by canciaaio

T Me, Mo gervas onlhe Ooenes Cownly Cancervdion Bank Beard oud iF appointed o te Deslivation Jcores Commiticr

wili ragign ner pogilion an the QCCH.

= Mr. Pearsea carrgnlly serees on the Caplis! Project advisory Conerilize and wishes resppaintment H he & mat
resppainied ta CPAC he wshnes 0 be congldared for oiber clhecked boerdsicommissions

Area of Interest
[-pll:'asr: chock ono or mara]

Board/Commission Applicable to Interests

Beranautics

Ssranautics Cammissian

Public Safely, Health & Waelfars

Anderson-Occase Balars Health Sardces Comission

| Reaulatary

Buidling Codes Appeal Board

Farks, Becreation & toursm Cnmmlaslnn

Board of EDH"@_&PFE&H

Planning Activitias

Appalactian Council of Gavernmend Board of Dirsctors

Board af Zoning Appeals

Capital Frojects Advisary Committea

Corservation Benk Board [OCCH]|

F"Iannlng Commissoan

Edication

Seeniz Highway Committes

Arls & Hstoncal Commission

Lll::-rarg.r Board

Tu:iu_rh‘:ﬁ‘-l!h Reoreatan

Ars & Hatodcal Commi

Parks Racrastion & toursmn Cammissian

|Scanic Highway Conrritan

Cll-canzidale Lising

Lasl Updmed:

120G



——

Erda YWaame Joed Rag
& Cammick McGall Paul Cain Thiift Daxtar
[E = £ | E
E o E E & 201 5-2018 [ 2093-2016 | 2015-20008 [ 201352008 | 20152016 | 2015-2012 | 2013-2016
o - Reps| @ |2 | 5 Mecting
% = E [ EST] |_| E o Date to
Commissions|s S & I ; : e s e e
O E D | = | = | Appoint District | Disirict 1 District Il | District IV | Disinctiy | AtLarge | Al Lange

) o Jan - |Randy Renz| David Bryant|  Edward Dar Ronald | & Brightwell [Michael Gray
Aeronautics Commission | 2262 | 6-2 |YES| 2X |YES| March [2] 1] Fery [2] | Schmeldtfz] | Chiles [1] 4] [<1]
Arts & Hislorical Jan - Rl Meradith | Mariam Barbara | i, Richordson Jean
Commission 2-321 h-2 |YES| 2% [YES| March Borernan [1] | LaCeur [=1]| Moorai [1] | Waters [2] [2] Dobson [2]

. . _ Jari - &llen Sammy Lee| Bill Gilster Marty  |John Menzies| Berry Paul
Board of Zoning Appeals | 38-6-1 | 5-2 |YES| 2X |YES| March | Medford [2] [2] [1] McKea [£2] [=1]  |Nichols [2]| Reckert [2]

Building Codes Appeal Jan - Seorge Matt Bob Mike: Harry N \h'
Hoard 5-0 [YES| 2X [YES| March | Smith[1] [Roshester[#]|DuBose [2]] willimen (2] | Tollison [2] %\\\\E\\N

T 3
, iz Jan- |SheaAirey| Andylee| Jennifer | Marvin |Frank Ables| Richard | Bill Smith
Conservalion Bank Board| 2-351 Freieeva | 2% |YES| March 2] [2] Moss [1] | Prater [2] (1] Cain [2] =1]
Cestinaticn Ocones David Jennifer Robeart
Action Commities n'a 5-2 | a | nfe | nia na VWashburn | Luther Lvle | Barharl | Kate Smith | Bob Hul Moore | Hal Welch
PRT Commission jmesss o | 9425 | Appainted by dan - Brian Greer [2], Rosemary Balles Bechy Wise [2], Rlek Lacey [2], | D Pollock
fizi Ih:-||l|r;_!ll|lllt-l'1 du= toindlizl sragg e E-EE.'I Inid uairy 20 IYES Mlarchy [EL JoAnne Blake EE] Mike Wallace [2] :1 _,
Scenic Highway I Jan- | \ \‘* S ] Seott Lusk | Staley
Commitieg 26-151 | 0-2 [¥YES| 2X |YES| March & & a % [1] Powell [1]
|
: 4-9-35 | Jan - Daniel Day [2]. L. Mart [1], B Helheringtan [1] William Caster [2], Maria Jacobson
Library Board _ 18-1 0-9 |YES| 2 |YES| March H McPhasters 1], & Champion [1], K Holleman [1] (1], Marxe Mchahan [1]
_ o §-28-310 Jan - G, Swan
Planning Commission 32-4 YES| Mia |[YES| March | Brad Kisker| Richards Childress |Ryan Henea| MePhail | John Lyle

Eehmrf:nr*al Health Soervicas Steve Jenking [1], Harald Alley [1], Louie Halleman [1], Wande Long [1], Priscillz Taylor [1],
GﬂnTH‘ISSIt:-.n 2281 | D-7 |YES| 2X | 3w A, Jogn Black [1], Jere DuBols [1]  BHS conlacs Councl W recommandatans wien saats ooen
Capilal Project Advisary LE, PG Councll Reprezantative Wayae MeCall'Paad Cain in MeCall absence, Randy Frankie
Committee 2-381 |2@Lg|NO| 3K [1yr| January Planning Cammission GhicPhail [1] Abbott [1] [Pesrson [1]]
Ceonee Busingss SEducatian

Farinarship A ”-'j-”' N';' MAA | MO | January  |Council Representative Appoinied Annually

Eu_::n-ae_E&m*-nnm Allance MIA, MiA | NO TN T ND | January [Council Representative Appoinied Annually

Ten At The Top [TATT} MO | NO | January [Council Represeniative Appointed Annually

AL BOD Council Rep: CC CHAIR or designee [vearly]; 2 yr terms

MIA| NO Jenuary |Citizen Rep: Bob Winchester, Minorily Rap: Bennie Cunningham
M Worklink contacts Council wi recommendations when seats open [Current: B. Dobbins]

Waorklink Board
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PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT mﬁ)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF OCONEE

MCNAIR LAW FIRM

IN RE: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

BEFORE ME the undersigned, a Notary Public for the State and County above named,

This day personally came before me, Hal Welch, who being first duly sworn according

to law, says that he is the General Manager of THE JOURNAL , a newspaper published
Tuesday through Saturday in Seneca, SC and distributed in Oconee County, Pickens
County and the Pendleton area of Anderson County and the notice (of which the annexed
is a true copy) was inserted in said papers on 01/09/2016

and the rate charged therefore is not in excess of the regular rates charged private
individuals for similar insertions.

Hal Welch
General Manager

Subscribed and sworn to before me this
01/11/2016

Jennifer A. White
Notary Public for South Carolina
My commission Expires: 07/01/2024

ONEEE AW
NOTARY PUBLIC
State of South Carolina
ly Commission Expires July 1, 2024



lTafl
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PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF S0UTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF (CONEE

OCONEL COUNTY COUNCIL

IN RE: ORDINANCE 2015-36

BEFORE ME the undersipned, a Motary Public fee the State amd County above mamed,
This das personally came Belore mee, Hal Welch, who being Dest duly sworn acconding

10 b, savs that ke is the General Manager ol THE JOURNAL. a newspaper publisled
Tuesday through Saturday in Seneca, 5O and diswiboted in Ovonee County, Pickens
County and the Pendleten wrea of Anderson Counly and e netice (ol swhich e anmnexed
P brue cops ) s inserted inosad papers e 0116201 6

amd the rate chersed thereFore 5 ool inexeess of Uee regular rates charsed private

individuals for stmilar insertions.

Subhscribed and sworn to before me this
01182016

ap

HaT Welch

Laeneral Manager

Jennitog AL White
Mmh Public
srae of South Carolina
My Commission Expires July 1, 2024

A ]

NOTARY PUBLIC
State of South Carcling

Cammissio 5 July 1, 3034

P20 A 200 B
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LEGALE

LEGAES

ROTICE OF SALE
HOTICE OF SaLE CIVIL ACTICH
MO 201 5-CR-37-00420 BY YIETUE
ol tha decree nervichore granlsd in
tha cy=za o Dagracts Bank Majiomal
Trust Compary 25 Tromles
Sourcheew FLime Laso Trest 20051,
Arsal . Barked  Cerfloaies,  owies
S003-1 e, Khnoery 3R Acdaema)
Soeuin Cardline Dopatment of Moo
Vehiekes, e oncermgrsd Clak of
Coin hiw Oennan Coorly, Ecuth
Carodl, wil s2dl on Febuary 1.
A oA TR, ol e Oooree
Sourby Gourouss, Sy ol W el
Staia ol Bout Soeolna, o the
nghzl bidkder: ALL THAT CERTAIN
FECE, PASGEL OR LOT OF LAKLE,
BITUATE, LYING AnD BEING N
THE ETATE OF SCATH DAL
Ba, - COUNTY OF DCONEE, CEN-
TER TOSRSHIP, BEMG HHOWT
AMD EBIKINATED - A LAOT T
CONTAINING 1011 ACRES, MORE
CA LESE, &5 SHOWT AND MORE
FULLY CEECAIEED OH & PLAT
THEREDF PREPASELD DY JAMES
> HEAT, 558 BRETY, DATED LIULY
o6, 4no7. AHD RECORCED ™
PLAT BOCK ASES. PAGQE 2, RE
CORDE OF OSUREE COUHTY.
S0, ALSO: A RIOH-EXCLUSVE
EASEMENT AMND RIEFHT DF WhAY
FOH INGHESS AND EGRESS FIF-
T |50 FEET IN WilOTH, ACRDES
OTHES LAHDS How SR FORKER-
LY 0OF HAMEY, BEING EHIWH
AMD DESIGHATED 50 HAKMEY
CANE N THE AZONWE REFER-
EHCGEDR FLAT. AL30  INCLUCED
HMEHEWITH 15 THAT CEATAIN
1600 CEKWOCDE MANUFACTLHEL
HIME DEARIMG SERLAL NUIMESR
13474202, THIS ZEING A FPOR-
TICR OF “THE: PRCPERTY COM-
VEYED TO KIMBE=LY 2 ADAME
BY DEED FAOM HEAL & E&sMEYT
DATED 114700 AND BECLD=DED
10200 1 DOC 1120 FAGE 177
CCOREE COLURNTY AEC USRS,
CUARENT ADDRESS
OF PRACPERTY:
113 A Haiwoy Raad,

5C 2960
THS: 510-00-02-094;
MH decal 17041
TERMS OF SALE: Tha successiul
hodor, cther Bar the Piairi, wil
chpcal- with e Sk ol Tout, o
condusion ol the biddng, e
pament 5% el fis bid, In cash o
piuneenl 8= evdencs Gl good i,
sama o ba appled to the puronaso
s (n paseo® cosplancs, bt i be
torkaitad and  appied Ts: tn costs
i 1590 (o the Flantfts deot 11 the
eaks of non-gonpliancs, Shadd tha
2=t and hghest Hdder 1ae o comphy
il o= aleen s O Tha Bl sithen
thiry (30 d=ue, den e Comk ol
Gione] misp re=sul e propendy cn iha
amo tomms ard cond ions on some
psbesguan] Saka Day (@l 17 b=k of
lha sadd fghest Ddder]. Mo oo
sopnal Gor deficiswy jwikesil bain
domanded. s biddng shell mok
mman axen ahar tha daio of sake
and shal be fiml an thal deta, 50w
rompianca wih Te bd may Do
mads mmedabbs, Fochasar kK pay
Ior documanizy champs ono e
Owad, The socieeslul Bidds =il Da
reubed - be oay Inlerest om b
drraconie® of the Balanss ol 1hs Bd bam
dale of sap 1o date o complisrcs
with Iha hid &% e mla ol 123755
per annum: The sae shel s gubpc!
o ixdps and aAsssssTens, pEsng
casemams  and - mesitchons,  sans-
manlz gl e gl osaued aml
ary oher sonor crodmbrancss. In
i suRtE an b oof Flanhd dess
el Agpmar |l He fne of sale) the
wihin preperty shall ke withdmsn
vam ak amd =gkl oal e sesl
ovalogsc sans dafo wpan e onme
ard sondbioes wmowsl lonh in the
Judamert of Forscksure and Zalaor

Iy 0k k= DORDESED, ADJUDEL &XD
DECAEED that e cfandiria Max-
In Mom's Dayoare, LLC, Slove Mdasis
wd Tracy D, Maxie aipsar hakom
me ot ‘Deance coundy Louthowss,
2 Wiest Main Sheel, Wahala,
Soith Camcina, an the 200 dow ol
Risrch 2008, 48 TR0 o) pes, o
EHOW DALHEE, T oany, Tay can, o
wiy ke, s andior £ oshould a0l e
hadd in fonlamns of Coun 1T B
FURTHEA JADEAED: $ral & cop ol
| gndar ard Rida ta Show Causo
bz semsd upon o defendaik
Sowtteadth, AMD T IS BD DSEEAED
Els B Draw. Jr

Cnnas oy

Paster im Eguly

Anderenn, Boh Camlnn

Janiary 4, 2216

1 50 MOWE:

BESMETEIN & BEEAMSTER, FA
Akt &, Bsafkiaim

AHomeys bar Fanlii

THE QCOMEE COLUNTY SOUNCI
Wil mdd & Fuble Hexieg o for
Ordinsrce 261508 "AM  OADE-
MAMCE  COMEEWTIMIG TA  THE
CONYEASION. BY THE COLNTY
OF ZEATAIN RIGHTES OF BIRG-
WAHHHER TOHJTHANSFER SYE5-
TEMS, WG HE "CORPANY
URDES & EXIETINGEG LEASE PLUR-
CHASE AGREENENT WITH THE
OOURTY TO & FEE AGHEEMENT
PUBSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAP-
TER 44, S0OUTH CARDLINS DR0E,
1875, AL AMERCED (THE “&CTI,
AS. FROMIDED N THE  ALT,
AUTHOELEING  THE EXECITEIN
A0 DEUNESY O SUCH FEE
AGREEMENT BETWEEM ThHE
COUNTY 8RE THE - SOMPA&HT TN
PLACE O SalD LEASE  PUR-
CHASE AGREEMBENT, M0 - &L
THOHIZMNG TRIE BRECORVEYARCE
BY THE COUMNTY TO THE GOMPA-
MY OF THE PRIPEATY SUAIECT
T SLUCH S LEABE - PURCHASE
AGHEEMEMT; AHD OTHER BAT-
TERS RELATING THERETO. “on
Tusaday, Felgary 2 2015 & 800
om. n Councit Ghombem, Dconos
oty Adednaiaiee e, 915
E: PlneStreel; Walalh, =0

Tha - Siga gian o Pubke
Ltiltes Hevew Commites s begre
g i ERRANTg obess 1o Beats
1,5 5 ad7n Soth Caming

Publv  Bavvitw Comemigaon. Tha
tmahe Hegaiabon o Pudlc LSS
Revigw Comemillas wil 2 amtaiing
apnlcaliors dor Eeals 1, 5,5, ard T
bagnniog  Weway. Feprosy sl
untl 1200 p.m. Monday, Febnzany
2l The Pulbe Sarecs Comine-
snn - has jrsdoion over maters
pefaking 1o rnsstGr-earel akck
and gng LEkes, males and washres
ler compeEriss, BEcTTineTEsive
rompanis, arhes o househald
goods and hazamous wssls lor
dispoesl, erahs, nnd oiher maolnr
walidy pRswErEr amece. & S
mkscnor Fus hevo At least 2
barcalarass dagpaa I is pralamad
that & commissiorer have o back-
grour of sbstantind duration o one
of thas foliowing seeers: (20 @csngy: (k]
wipcommuninadnns; ) ConsOaTmar
prafsHiony and athocy 08 Waler
ad washkewater; Ja) fnance, ooc-
wamics, Ahd stalilcs, o] Amonting
o engreening: or G0 low, The
cuTTEEsion A m-un|i.~:1:n|:| ol saan
commssioers, oy iom esch ol the
AN Congmssioral dstios:. Tha
Conrmisscnar for e Bl Pulibc
Serskce  Cammlsson DISTE repne
sanla Ghirkakan Fakiy, Saauln,
Doreresie, and Colelon coumlies,
The Commissiorss Tar tha Thicd
Publi; Servics Commstion vl
mpresents Deanoe, Piokens, Andcr
i, -‘-l.ll.lul-'i!u. | ALHTE, IT-rﬁ-.rf«l:l.:ﬂ.
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PLEASE ADVERTISE IN THE NEXT ISSUE
OF YOUR NEWSPAPER

The Ocanee County Council will hold a Public Hearing for Ordinance 2015-36
“AN ORDINAMCE CONSENTING 'T0O THE CONVERSION BY THE COUNTY OF
CERTAIN RIGHTS OF BORGWARNKER TORQTRANSFER SYSTEMS, INC. [THE
"COMPANY") UNDER AN EXISTING LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE
COUNTY TO A FEE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44, SOUTH
CAROLINA CODE, 1976, AS AMENDED (THE "ACT"), AS PROVIDED IN THE ACT,
AUTHORIZING 'THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH FEE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE COMPANY IN PLACE OF SAID LEASE
PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE RECONVEYANCE BY THE
COUNTY TO THE COMPANY OF THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO S5UCH LEASE
PURCHASE AGEREEMENT; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETOD. "on
Tuesday, February 2, 2015 at &:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, Oconee County
Administrative Offices, 415, 5, Pine Street, Walhalla, SC.



Beth Hulse

From: Beth Hulse
- Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2016 3:29 PM
To: Beth Hulse; classadmgr@upstatetoday.com
Subject: PH 2015-36
Attachments: 011416 - PH 2015-36, 2-2-16.docx

Please run at earliest convenience.
Thanks.

Elizabeth G. Hulse, CCC

Clerk to Council

Oconee County Administrative Offices
415 South Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

864-718-1023

864-718-1024 [fax]
bhulse@oconeesc.com
www.oconeesc.com/council




Beth Hulse
From: Beth Hulse
~ Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2016 3:30 PM
To: Beth Hulse; Carlos Galarza; Chad Dorsett; DJM News Editor; Fox News; Greenville News
(localnews@greenvillenews.com); Kevin; Ray Chandler; Steven Bradley
(sbradley@upstatetoday.com); Westminster News / Keowee Courier
(westnews@bellsouth.net); WGOG (dickmangrum@wgog.com); WSPA TV - Channel 7
(assignmentdesk@wspa.com); WYFF 4 News
Subject: Public Hearing: 2015-36

The Oconee County Council will hold a Public Hearing for Ordinance 2015-36 “AN
ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO THE CONVERSION BY THE COUNTY OF CERTAIN RIGHTS OF
BORGWARNER TORQTRANSFER SYSTEMS, INC. (THE “COMPANY”) UNDER AN EXISTING
LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY TO A FEE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO
TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44, SOUTH CAROLINA CODE, 1976, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), AS
PROVIDED IN THE ACT, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH FEE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE COMPANY IN PLACE OF SAID LEASE
PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE RECONVEYANCE BY THE COUNTY TO
THE COMPANY OF THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO SUCH LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. “on Tuesday, February 2, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. in
Council Chambers, Oconee County Administrative Offices, 415. S. Pine Street, Walhalla, SC.

™ Elizabeth G. Hulse, CCC
Clerk to Council

Oconee County Administrative Offices
415 South Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

864-718-1023

864-718-1024 [fax]
bhulse@oconeesc.com
www.oconeesc.com/council






